TO:

Public Document Pack The Royal Borough

NOTICE

OF

Maidenhead
MEETING I

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT
CONTROL PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 20TH JULY, 2016
At 7.00 pm
in the
COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL,

MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

COUNCILLORS MALCOLM ALEXANDER (CHAIRMAN), PHILLIP BICKNELL
(CHAIRMAN), MICHAEL AIREY, JOHN BOWDEN, JOHN COLLINS, JESSE GREY,
EILEEN QUICK, SAMANTHA RAYNER AND SHAMSUL SHELIM

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS NATASHA AIREY, HASHIM BHATTI, NICOLA PRYER, GARY MUIR,
JACK RANKIN, WESLEY RICHARDS AND EDWARD WILSON

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: 11 July 2016

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628 796 251

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly
by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building
until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings — The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/

ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

PAGE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.

MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Head of Planning & Property/Development Control
Manager’s report on planning applications received.

e Items 16/01097 and 10/01098 (109 High Street, Eton) has been
WITHDRAWN from the agenda

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing
the Planning Applications Public Access Module by selecting the following
link.

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp or from Democratic Services on
01628 796251 or democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk

11-224

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring reports.

225 - 228



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp
mailto:democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs)

DPIs include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses.
e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed
which has not been fully discharged.
e Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.
e Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.
e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority,
and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to
impartially consider only relevant issues.

DECLARING INTERESTS

If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or
Prejudicial Interest. If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the
item but must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body
determining the issue. You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote,
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.

If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services
Officer before participating in the meeting.

If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 15 JUNE 2016

PRESENT: Councillors Malcolm Alexander (Chairman), Phillip Bicknell (Vice-
Chairman), Michael Airey, John Bowden, John Collins, Jesse Grey, Eileen Quick,
Samantha Rayner and Shamsul Shelim
Also in attendance: Councillor E. Wilson
Officers: Melvin Andrews, Wendy Binmore, Alistair Barnes, Daniel Gigg, Jenifer
Jackson, Laurel Isaacs and Claire Pugh.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None received.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Alexander — Declared a prejudicial interest in item four as he will be appointed as a
member of the Board at the end of June. ClIr Alexander left the room during the debate and
the vote.

Clir Bicknell - Declared a personal interest in item two as he is the Chairman of Windsor and
Eton Football Club and if the all weather football pitch is approved, Windsor and Eton Football
Club may want to use it. ClIr Bicknell also declared a personal interest in item four as he is a
full member of the Fire Authority Board. Clir Bicknell left the room during the debate and the
discussion.

Clir Rayner — Declared a pecuniary interest in items two and three and left the room during
the debate and the discussion of both items.

Clir E. Wilson — Declared a personal interest in item three as his son attends and his wife
works in nearby schools.

MINUTES

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting of the Windsor Urban
Development Control Panel held on 25 May 2016 be approved.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

16/00083* Mr Muir: Replacement and raising of roof to provide habitable
accommodation at first floor at Brymays, Rays Avenue, Windsor SL4
5HG — THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to REFUSE for the
amended reasons in Section three of the Panel Update Report as
listed below:

e The Proposed first floor extension would appear significantly
overbearing and dominating when viewed from the rear
gardens of numbers 3, 5, 7 and 9 Rays Avenue which are
directly adjacent to the application site. The proposal therefore,
fails to comply with Policy H14 of the Royal Borough of
Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (incorporating

.



16/00851*

16/00907*

16/01114*

16/01440*

Alterations Adopted 2003), and Core Planning Principle Bullet
Point 4 (paragraph 17) of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

(the Panel was addressed by Lee Thomas in objection)

Legoland Windsor Park Ltd: Development of a new ride to replace the
existing Loki’'s Labyrinth attraction, including erection of new building,
entrance portal, courtyard, temple and associated queue line,
infrastructure and landscaping at Ninjago, Legoland, Winkfield Road,
Windsor — THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to APPROVE the
application in accordance with the Borough planning Manager’s
recommendations and with the conditions listed in Section 9
(except condition 8) of the Main Report (condition 8 was covered
in the Panel Update Report).

(The Panel was addressed by Ingrid Fernandes on behalf of Legoland
Windsor).

Graeme Aldous: Construction of synthetic turf pitch, floodlighting,
fencing, drainage and ancillary works at Dedworth Middle School,
Smiths Lane, Windsor SL4 5PE - THE PANEL VOTED
UNANIMOUSLY to APPROVE the application in accordance with
the Borough Planning Managers recommendations and to secure
the Community Use Agreement through S106 and condition the
hours of use and hours of illumination to 8am to 9pm ever day
each year..

(The Panel were addressed by the Head boy and Head Girl of Dedworth
Middle School and Will Calvert (Windsor Youth Football Club) in support of
the application and Clir E. Wilson in objection).

Mr Craker: Erection of 5 x 4 bedroom town houses, a block of 9 x 2
bedroom apartments with access, parking, landscaping and
associated works, following the demolition of existing fire station as
approved under planning permission 15/01889 without complying with
condition 11 (vehicle parking and turning space) to amend wording, 26
(approved plans) to substitute some approved plans under planning
permission 15/03742/VAR at Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue
Service, Windsor Fire Station, St Marks Road, Windsor SL4 3BE —
THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to DEFER and DELEGATE
the Borough Planning manager to grant planning permission on
the satisfactory completion of Deed of Variation (S106
Agreement) to secure the infrastructure in Section 7 of the Main
report and with the conditions listed in Section 10 of the Main
report. Councillor Quick chaired this item as Clirs Alexander and
Bicknell left the room during the discussion and vote.

Quantum Estates: Erection of 9 dwellings and new access following
demolition of No. 23 at 23 and Land Rear of 17 to 21 Clewer Hill
Road, Windsor — THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to REFUSE
the application in accordance with the Borough planning
Manager’s recommendations in the Main Report, but the reasons
recommended for refusal are amended as discussed in Section 2

8



of the Panel update Report and set out in Section 3 of the Panel
Update Report, as listed below:

e The layout and design of the proposed buildings would result in
cramped relationships with the surrounding residential
development that would be harmful to the character of the
surrounding area, and would introduce a scale of built form that
would be harmful to the character and amenity of its
surroundings. This harm would arise from: the width of the two
terraces across the site; the proximity of the two buildings
comprising Plots 2 — 9 and of the ends of the access road to
the side boundaries, which would result in there being little
space available for significant planting along these boundaries
that could assist in mitigating the impacts of the development
on the properties to either side; and the amount of
hardstanding in front of the Plots 2 — 9 houses, which would
result in a blurring of the clearly defined plots at this site. The
proposal is therefore contrary to saved policies DG1, H10 and
h11 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local
Plan 1999 (incorporating alterations adopted June 2003) and to
advice in the National Planning Policy Framework Section 7
(Requiring Good Design).

e The proposed would be detrimental to the privacy of
surrounding properties at Clewer Hill Road and Kimber close,
particularly from overlooking second floor windows in the
proposed townhouses (Plots 2 — 9) and from the rear balconies
at Plots 6 — 9. In addition the siting and width of the terraced
buildings on the rear of the plot combined with their height
would present a mass that would be harmful to the outlook of
the occupiers of Kimber Close. The proposal would be contrary
to Core Planning Principle 4 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

e While the level of car parking would be sufficient for nine 3
bedroom dwellings some of the dwellings could be utilised as
four-bedroom houses, and the development does not provide
sufficient car parking to meet the likely level of future demand
for car parking. As such, the proposal is conrrary to Local plan
Policies DG1, P4 and T5.

(The Panel was addressed by Emrys Kay, Sheena Cater and
Margaret Parsons in objection and Philip Ross the Agent in support).

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 002 OF 2016 — CLEWER YOUTH AND COMMUNITY
CENTRE 39A PARSONAGE LANE, WINDSOR

T1 - Oak

Background

The TPO has been made to safeguard the visually prominent Oak tree within the grounds of
Clewer Youth and Community Centre, Parsonage Lane, Windsor. The Oak tree is considered
a primary landscape feature and makes a significant contribution to the character and
appearance of the area and is important within the local and wider landscape and softens the
built environment. The Local Authority deemed it expedient to serve a preservation order to

9



ensure the retention of this prominent landscape feature and to protect it from further
inappropriate pruning which could negatively affect the character of the area. The TPO is not
designed to hinder the appropriate management of the trees and consent for works in line with
good arboricultural practice would not be unreasonably withheld.

The Tree Team were made aware that the resident at The Old Stable Yard adjacent to the
Community Centre had instructed a tree surgeon to carry out pruning work in accordance with
their common law rights to the mature Oak tree growing within the Community Centre. At that
time the tree was not protected and over the weekend of the 17" and 18" of January the
resident employed a tree surgeon to exercise those common law rights; the tree surgeon
pruned a significant quantity of branch material from the stem growing over the rear garden of
the Old Stable Yard. In this instance it was expedient to serve a TPO to ensure the long term
protection of the tree, the TPO was served on Monday the 18t.

THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to NOT CONFIRM the TPO because the amenity
value of the tree has been eroded.

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

Details of Planning Appeals Received and the Appeal Decision Report were noted.

The meeting, which began at Time Not Specified, finished at Time Not Specified

CHAIRMAN. ... .o

10



Agen altem4
ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

20 July 2016 ltem: 1
Application 15/02248/FULL

No.:

Location: Thames Court 1 Victoria Street Windsor SL4 1YB

Proposal: Construction of 5 storey building with associated car parking (including provision for

public use at specific times), access and landscaping works following demolition of
existing office building.

Applicant: BMW (UK) Trustees Limited

Agent: Mr Philip Marsden - Savills (UK) Limited

Parish/Ward:  Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628 685739 or at
claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 This application for the proposed five storey office building was reported to Panel on the 25" May
2016. At the meeting Councillors resolved to defer the application in order for Officers to ask the
applicant if they wanted the description of the development to be updated to include the use of
the car park for the public at specific times, and to allow Councillors to visit the site in order to
consider the impact on the Conservation Area, to view a sample panel of the materials, and to
consider the impact of the proposal on the amenity of neighbouring properties.

1.2 The applicant agreed to the change of the description of the development (see paragraphs 6.42-
6.43). Neighbours and contributors were consulted on the change to description. At the time of
writing this report, three letters of objections have been received in response to the change of
description of the development. These letters strongly reinforce the objections already made to
this planning application, but in respect of the proposed use of the car park by the public, the
main concerns are summarised as:

1. How the car park would be managed? This detail is not provided and is critical for
consideration.

2. Concerns over the security to the flats at Victoria Court if the car park is opened up to the
public.

3. How will parking be maintained for the residents of Victoria Court?

1.3  Officers are of the view that the detail of how the public use of the car park would be managed
and enforced is critical to understand if it would be acceptable. Also, such an arrangement would
need to be secured through a legal agreement and this has not been offered. Notwithstanding
this, Officers maintain the view that the proposed use of the car park by the public at specific
times is not a benefit that would outweigh the adverse impacts of the development.

1.4 The report has been updated to consider the impacts on the occupiers of the fairly recently
constructed apartments at number 15 Victoria Street to the west of the application site. It is not
considered the proposed development would cause an unacceptable impact on the residential
amenity of these apartments, and this assessment is set out in paragraphs 6.30- 6.32 of this
report.

15 The original report is reproduced below and updated taking into account the points raised above.

11




11

1.2

3.1

3.2

4.1

Summary

The application proposes the demolition of existing office space, and the erection of a larger
office building. A new access and re-configured car park area is proposed. The site is situated
within the town centre and the Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area. The Highways
Authority has raised an objection to the proposal on the basis that the Travel Plan does not have
acceptable targets to shift the mode of travel from the car, given the lack of parking provided for
the development. However, officers are not of the view that this objection would form a valid
reason for refusal, when the office development is situated within a sustainable town centre
location, and the site can be accessed by people walking or taking the train.

The proposed office development would provide benefits namely positive impacts to the local
economy, the provision of high specification office space within the Borough and potentially the
use of the car park by the public during weekends. However, these benefits are not considered
to be significant enough to outweigh the less than substantial harm caused to the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area. The proposal is also considered to have an unacceptable
impact on the amenity of neighbouring residential properties. As such the scheme is
recommended for refusal for the reasons summarised below.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 9 of this report):

1. | The proposal owing to its combined height and mass set close to the road would be
out of keeping with the size of surrounding properties and as such the building
would appear overdominant and incongruous. The scale of the building will be
emphasised by the large glazed openings. The proposal would result in less than
substantial harm to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, and
the public benefits are not considered to outweigh this harm.

2 | The proposal would result in unacceptable overlooking and overbearing impact to
the detriment of the occupier’s use of the balcony to the apartment in Lancaster
House. The proposal would also result in an unduly overbearing impact to the
outlook to bedroom windows in apartment block of Victoria Court.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

The Borough Planning Manager and Lead Member for Planning consider it appropriate that
the Panel determines the application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The site comprises a building which faces both Victoria Street and Sheet Street in Windsor. The
building subject to this planning application was formerly used as office, but has been vacant for
some months. The building adjoins Victoria Court which faces Sheet Street and was built the
same time as the office building, however, the residential element is not subject to this planning
application. The existing building steps up to 5 storeys in height and a large proportion of this
building (the later addition to the building) which faces Victoria Street is two stories in height.

The site is a prominent one within the Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area, and is close to
Listed Buildings to the north and east, including Hadleigh House which is Grade II* Listed. To the
south of the site is the Victoria Barracks and Lancaster House, which comprises office space,
with apartments on the upper floor.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing office building, and
the construction of a 5 storey office building, with associated car parking, access and landscaping
works. The proposed building would measure approximately 18.5 metres in height to the highest
point (the fifth storey). The height to the fourth storey would be at around 15.1 metres. The height
to the third storey would be 12.1 metres. The fourth and fifth floors would be set back from the
edges of the building, with the top storey of triezbuilding being more set back than other floors.



4.2

4.3

The existing office space has a floorspace of 2,662 square metres. The proposed building would
have a floorspace of 5,117 square metres, thereby increasing the amount of office floorspace by
2,455 square metres.

The building will make use of brick and glazing on the elevations of the building on three floors.
Metal and glazing will be used on the fourth and fifth floors.

Amended plans were received during the course of the application, which were consulted on. The
changes to the scheme were:

N

Its height was reduced by lowering the roof level by 200mm and the height of the plant
enclosure screen;

A reduction in the width of the two upper levels and revised material treatment;

The elevations were reduced in scale, particularly the Victoria Street elevation, by creating
more set-backs at different levels and reflecting the surrounding building lines and the use of
different material finishes creating new articulation within the building;

The elevations were unified in terms of architectural language and materials to create a more
coherent development; and

The building line was stepped back at various points to reduce its impact on the street scene
and improve its relationship with adjacent buildings.

The applicant’s updated Design and Access Statement (DAS) and Heritage Statement describes
the scheme as:

The proposed office building represents a modest increase in the height and scale in
comparison to the existing buildings on the site. It is explained that contrasts in scale are not
unusual in urban areas and can contribute to the rich and varied character of an area.

The palette of materials proposed for the structure includes a combination of dark and light
brick with a metal and glazing cladding system to upper floors. The use of brick reflects the
established and predominant use of the material in this part of the Conservation Area.

The proposed elevation to Victoria Street is considered to be the building’s frontage, the focal
point being the north east corner with its lowered glazed block and framing in a lighter brick.
The facade employs a clear vertical emphasis at the ground to second floor, subdividing the
elevation in to an appreciable configuration of three bays which is reminiscent of the scale,
form and rhythm of surrounding terraced townhouses.

Due to the carefully considered architectural quality, scale, siting, detailing and palette of
materials the Heritage Statement considers that the proposed development preserves the
significance of the surrounding listed buildings, including the grade II* House and numerous
grade Il listed buildings on Sheet Street.

The proposal facing Bachelor’s Acre will present a hugely improved facade to the park, with
more definition than the existing building. The tower of Saxon House the dominant feature in
this view and that dominance is not challenged. The impact on this, the edge and therefore
the backdrop of the Conservation Area is positive.

The parapet line of the adjacent buildings on Victoria Street have been respected and
continued in the proposed development and the grid of plot width and fenestration rhythm
common across the Conservation Area, currently missing from the existing building is echoed
and reinforced.

In relation to the junction of Victoria Street and Sheet Street, the statements conclude that the
proposed development makes the most significant positive contribution to the Conservation
Area. The new square will be an open, accessible, well lit and passively surveilled space that
will mark and punctuate along Sheet Street which alludes to the larger open space around the
corner that is Bachelor’s Acre. 13



4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

8. In terms of the Victoria Street elevation, the set backs and use of different coloured brickwork
reduces the appearance of scale and reflects the building lines and proportions of the
adjacent building. In terms of the scale, again due to the set back design, the applicant
asserts that the upper floors will not be visible within the immediate street scene. In the
applicant’s opinion, the proposed development will result in a significant improvement in the
quality of the building at the application site which will have a positive impact on the
Conservation Area.

The existing central vehicular access to the site would be removed, and a new vehicular access
would be created next to Barrack Lane. 38 parking spaces, (including 4 wheelchair bays) would
be provided. The agent in submitting additional information suggested that the car park could be
made available for public use during the weekends for a 5 year period, however, this proposal
has not been put forward formally as part of the application.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework, Sections:

Paragraph 7- Sustainable Development

Paragraph 14- Decision making

Paragraph 17- Providing a good standard of amenity
Paragraph 18- Building a strong competitive economy
Paragraphs 128, 131 and 134- Heritage Assets

arwnNpE

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Conservation Setting of | Highways/
settlement Listed Parking
Area P .
area Building issues
Local Plan DG1, E1,
E10 CA2 LB2 T5, P4

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

e Planning Obligations and Developer Contributions
e Interpretation of Policy R2 to R6 - Public Open Space provision
e Sustainable Design and Construction

More information on these documents can be found at;
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

° RBWM Landscape Character Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
) RBWM Townscape Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
° Conservation Area appraisal - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp _conservation consultation appraisals.htm

14


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_conservation_consultation_appraisals.htm

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

[ Townscape (including impact on the character of the area, impact on Conservation Area,
and Setting of Listed Buildings)

ii Impact on neighbouring residential amenity;

iii Parking and Highways;

iv Developer contributions;

\Y Economic Impacts

Vi Ecology

vii Sustainable Design

viii Surface Water and Drainage
iX Archaeology

X Planning Balance

Principle of providing office space

The application site is within the town centre boundary. The Local Plan supports office
development in town centres. The NPPF is more recent than the Local Plan and this continues to
support the ‘town centre first’ approach to the location of offices. As such the principle of providing
office space is considered to be acceptable in accordance with planning policy.

Townscape (including character of the area, impact on Conservation Area, and Setting of
Listed Buildings)

The site is located within two defined character areas of the Windsor Town Centre (WTC)
conservation area appraisal, these being ‘Sheet Street and Park Street area’ and ‘Bachelors Acre
and Surrounds’. The site appears to have been successively developed over time with residential
uses along Victoria Street and commercial uses behind (within the south of the plot) and part of the
site a vehicle garage during the late 20th century. The primary frontages for the site were and
remain onto Victoria Street. Adjacent to the site, the Barracks site has also developed with all the
buildings demolished during the late 20th century. Along Sheet Street numerous plots have been
redeveloped during the 20th century.

The ‘Bachelors Acre and Surrounds’ character area in particular has experienced considerable
areas of redevelopment, as identified in the Conservation Area appraisal. However, the
Conservation appraisal also identifies Thames Court as an example of a large, modern commercial
building that is not in keeping with the prevailing character and appearance of the Conservation
Area. It is also described as a particularly imposing building. Larger plots sizes are identified as the
part of the character of the site area. Some of the other key features of the area are:
1. To the north along Sheet Street there is a strong rhythm formed by the terrace of traditional
buildings, of three storeys with attics and basements;
2. The buildings adjacent to the application site are generally 2-and-a half storeys;
3. There are modern buildings in the vicinity of the site that vary in scale rising up to three
storeys, sometimes over a basement, with a fourth floor in the roof;
4. Views along Victoria Street are closed by the Grade II* Hadleigh House, a late 18" Century
three-storey house with attics and a basement. This view is framed by the Grade Il listed
public house on the north side and the application site on the South side.

15



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

Loss of Existing building

The existing 1970s office block was constructed in the 1970s and was designed by architects
Elaine Denby and Gordon Badnell. The architects are not significant in the context of 20th century
architecture and Number 5 Victoria Street (part of the application site) is slightly later in date and
in the form of a two storey terrace and constructed of London stock brick with decorative concrete
lintels. Both structures are consistent with the general palette of materials found in this part of
Windsor.

The building is not considered to be of architectural merit, however, the positives of the building are
that it has a definitive entrance which addresses the junction of Victoria Street and Sheet Street.
The scale and massing of the existing building is broken up. The scale and modelling of this
building helps the transition between the fine grain of traditional terraces to the north and the more
open grain with lower scale buildings to the south. The existing building is considered to have a
neutral impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

As such, there is no objection in principle to the loss of this building.

Whether the redevelopment scheme has an acceptable impact on the character of the area, the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area, and the setting of Listed Buildings.

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 sets out that
special attention shall be paid to the desirability of conservation preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of the Conservation Area. In considering the impact on the Conservation
Area, it is important to assess the impact on views into and out of the Conservation Area.

Victoria Street

As noted, the buildings to the west of the application site on this road, are 2 and 2- and -half stories
in height. Whilst a replacement building may be acceptable at the site, the building has to respond
to its local context. It is not considered that the proposed scheme has adequately responded to its
local, historical context, as the building fails to relate to the surrounding buildings, which are broken
up in mass and have strong articulation. The proposed building would be sited in close proximity to
13-15 Victoria Street. 13-15 Victoria Street has a height of 7.3 metres to the eaves. The eaves
height is what is read as the main height of this neighbouring building, as the mansard roof slopes
away from the road and is set back. The height to the third floor of the new building would be 12.5
metres. There would be an abrupt increase in height to the new building from 13-15 Victoria Street.
The scheme does not provide a gradual transition in scale from the smaller buildings to the west on
Victoria Street, and as such the building when viewed in this street scene appears overdominant
and incongruous when viewed in the setting of these smaller scale buildings. The proposed
building appears as a large unrelieved mass of building, which is set hard up against Victoria
Street, and this makes the building appear dominant when viewed within this predominantly
historical streetscene.

The updated DAS explains that the style of architecture utilises the proportions and rhythm found
in classical architecture with a restrained and contemporary palette of detail and materials. In this
case, however, the proportions used in classical architecture has not come through in the design of
the building. The large glazed vertical openings extend up the 3 storeys, with different treatment to
the fourth and fifth floors. It is not considered that the rhythm and proportions in the glazing reflects
classical proportions. The level of glazing proposed would appear excessive and out of keeping
with surrounding buildings. The tall glazed openings would also re-inforce the scale of the building
by giving it a very strong vertical emphasis.

Bachelors Acre

The views from Bachelors Acre (which is within the Conservation Area) of the proposed building
will be noticeable. Bachelors Acre is a well used open public space, and the views of the main
elevation of the building will be clearly visible. Again, to reiterate the above point, the abrupt
increase in height from the neighbouring buildings to the west of the application site on Victoria
Street would be apparent, and this is evident in the verified views (Position 1) submitted by the



6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

agent. The building known as Saxon House, opposite the site is larger in scale than the buildings
to the west of Victoria Street. However, it is not comparable in scale to this proposed building.
Notwithstanding this, Saxon House has a different setting from the application site, and has
Bachelors Acre situated next to it which provides sufficient space for the setting of this building.

Junction of Sheet Street and Victoria Street

This is a key focal point when descending Sheet Street within the Conservation Area. It is at this
point that the relationship of the new building would be viewed against the flats of Victoria Court.
Victoria Court is 3 stories in height and has a mansard roof. The proposed office building would
adjoin these flats, and so it is considered imperative that the relationship of the new building relates
well to this building which is to remain. It is not considered that the new building has been designed
to tie in with Victoria Court. The proposed building is not considered to relate well to the height or
roof shape of the adjoining flats. The proposed fourth floor which would be finished in metal and
glazing would appear bulky and overdominant in this view; although the architect has attempted to
‘lighten’ this floor, the resultant design fails to achieve a light weight structure, and it is considered
it would be a dominating element that would look at odds with the surrounding roofscape which
comprises of predominantly pitched roofs. The juxtaposition of the new building with Victoria Court
will appear awkward. A strong and definitive entrance, which would be expected at such a focal
point within the Conservation Area, is not achieved by the proposal.

The junction of Frances Road and Kings Road and Sheet Street

This point is situated outside of the Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area, but close to the
boundary with the Inner Windsor Conservation Area. Whereas the existing building can be seen
over the Barracks when looking from this point, the building is smaller in scale, and most of what
can be seen is the mansard roof, which blends in with the roof of the barracks because of the
similar lead colour materials. When looking at the proposed building, a much greater extent of the
building will be seen as it would be larger in scale particularly because it would have a large bulky,
flat roof. The proposed design of the roof and use of materials means that it will stand out in this
view detrimentally. As such the views into the Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area will be
adversely impacted.

The context of the site is that the buildings in the immediate area tend to be on larger plots, and
this is acknowledged within the Conservation Area Statement. The existing building at Thames
Court has an appropriate building to plot ratio because it comprises of a number of distinct
elements that break up its overall mass and give the appearance of separate buildings albeit they
are one building. The proposed scheme would alter this current form, so that the proposed building
would dominate the site. This is considered to be out of keeping with other sites in the local area.

Owing to the more localised harm caused to this part of the Conservation Area, rather than wider
harm to the Conservation Area, it is considered that the proposal would result in less than
substantial harm. As such the requirement under paragraph 134 of the NPPF is for this harm to be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use
(OVU). The public benefits arising from the proposal will be considered in the planning balance and
whether these outweigh the harm caused.

Setting of the Listed Building

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) Act 1990 explains that in
granting planning permission which affects the setting of a Listed Building, regard shall be had to
the desirability of preserving the building, or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which it possesses.

Hadleigh House (Grade II* Listed) is situated on Sheet Street, however, this building has an
important view when approached from Victoria Street. The existing buildings on Victoria Street can
be seen in the context of Hadleigh House, but do not compete or interfere with views or setting of
this building. The setting of Hadleigh House is an urban town with Windsor Castle’s Long Walk to
the rear, and buildings within its setting have a close urban grain fronting onto the street. The
proposed office building would be significant in scale, and would be more prominent in views when



6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

looking down Victoria Street onto Hadleigh House than the existing building. In this town centre
location where the urban grain is tighter, a building may be visible when looking onto a Listed
Building, however, it has to be considered whether impact would be so significant that it would
adversely impact on the setting of the Listed Building. The buildings along Victoria Street frame
Hadleigh House when looking down this street, however, it is not considered that the proposed
building would detract from the view of Hadleigh House and its setting when looking down Victoria
Street.

The Corner House is a Grade Il Listed Building, situated opposite to the application site. Again, it is
acknowledged that the scale of the new building will be larger than surrounding buildings and
would result in harm to views within the Conservation Area, it is considered that the development
would preserve the setting of the Corner House.

Impact on neighbouring residential amenity

Daylight and Sunlight

Victoria Court

Victoria Court (which contains residential flats) adjoins the building subject to this application, and
would remain connected to the proposed office building.

A Daylight and Sunlight Review was submitted during the course of the application. The review is
based on the methodologies set out within the Building Research Establishment Guidelines entitled
‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight — A Guide to Good Practice (2011)”. The result of
the review show that the reduction in daylight to the rooms of Victoria Court would be acceptable
and in accordance with these guidelines.

Lancaster House

In respect of the impact on Lancaster House, the daylight and sunlight review also includes
windows that benefit from planning permission.

An assessment on the daylight and sunlight review shows that there are some isolated impacts but
the retained daylight and sunlight amenity to this property can be considered to be good. The
report concludes that given the dual aspect nature of the rooms, the daylight distribution within all
of the rooms can be considered above the recommended requirements of guidance. A floor plan
approved under reference 15/02665/FULL for Lancaster House can be seen in Appendix D.

The proposed development would not have an unacceptable impact on daylight to the rooms in
both Victoria Court and Lancaster House.

Impact on Privacy

Victoria Court

In respect of the elevation of the proposed building that would face Victoria Court, there is no
glazing proposed, and as such there would not be unacceptable overlooking to these flats. Roof
terrace areas are proposed, however, these are at fourth floor, and are set away from the windows
in Victoria Court, as such it is not considered that there would be unacceptable overlooking to
these flats.

Lancaster House

In respect of the impact on Lancaster House, the rear elevation of the proposed building comes
within 2 metres of Lancaster House. The glazing from the office building would overlook the
balcony area which serves the residential floor of Lancaster House. This area is the only outdoor
space that the residential part of Lancaster House has. Whilst this is a town centre location where
a higher degree of overlooking could be expected compared to a suburban location, in this case it
is the very close proximity of the new building to the balcony of Lancaster House, together with

18



6.26

6.27

6.28

the level of glazing proposed that would make this area severely overlooked and this is
considered to be unacceptable.

Impact on outlook

Victoria Court

As explained previously, there are windows within Victoria Court that are impacted by the existing
office building. The judgement in this case is whether the increase in the scale of the building,
compared to the existing building would cause an unacceptable impact on these windows in
terms of their outlook, but more particularly to habitable rooms such as a living room or bedroom,
which are afforded greater protection in terms of outlook.

The windows in Victoria Court are labelled on a plan within the daylight and sunlight review
document, which is included in Appendix E for convenience, as are the details of the rooms
which they serve. The layout of the rooms in Victoria Court at first floor level and their
relationship to the existing office building are shown on the plan in Appendix E. The table below
summarises the impact on these windows.

Window number

Officer Comment

W2/second, W3/second,
W1/second, WO/First,
W10/First, W9/ground,

W10/ground, W8/ground,
W8ffirst

The window already looks onto the existing office building, and
as such the increase in the scale of the building is not
considered to significantly worsen the outlook from these
windows

W6/ground and
W7/ground, W6/first and
W7 /first

The view from this bedroom is partially onto the flank elevation
of the existing office building, and partially onto the car park, with
Lancaster House beyond. The proposed office development

would increase the angle of the building by around 16 degrees
and the building would extend across the width of the car park at
this angle for a greater depth and height than the existing
building. Owing to the increase in the angle of the building,
together with the extent to which building run across the site, this
would change the outlook from the bedroom window of the flat,
so that their outlook would see mostly the flank elevation of the
office building. This outlook from a habitable room window,
which is the primary bedroom window is considered to be
unacceptable, and it is considered the new building would be
overbearing to the outlook of this window

W10/ground,  W11/First, | In urban areas such as this, it is not unusual for a new building
W5/ground, W5/first, | to be seen, the test is whether the new building would be unduly
W4/First, W4/ground, | overbearing to the outlook of the habitable room windows. In this
W3/ground, Wa3/ffirst, | case, it is not considered that the new building would have an
W2/ground, W2ffirst, | unduly overbearing impact to the outlook of these windows

W1/ground, W 1/first which would warrant refusal of this application.

Lancaster House

Turning to the impact on Lancaster House, the close proximity of the new building to the balcony
area of Lancaster House has been previously discussed. The proposed office building would be
unduly overbearing to the balcony area of Lancaster house; this balcony is a small area and is
the only outdoor space for the residential use of the building, meaning it will be more intensively
used. Again, objection is not raised to a building being seen from this area, however, owing to the
extremely close proximity of the building at the sheer mass proposed, it is considered that the
building would feel oppressive to occupiers utilising the balcony area.

19



6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

In conclusion, the proposal fails to comply with paragraph 17 of the NPPF which requires
proposals to provide a good standard of amenity for all.

Impact on apartments at 15 Victoria Street

In terms of the impact on the building at 15 Victoria Street (west of the application site). The
proposed building (where it is built up close to the boundary with Barrack Lane) would impact on
side facing windows in this building. However, the existing building at Thames Court already
impacts upon the outlook and light to these side facing windows at ground and first floor level,
and so it is not considered that the proposed development would result in an unacceptable
reduction in daylight or outlook to these windows. In respect of the second floor side facing
windows in number 15 Victoria Court (where the proposed building comes in close proximity with
the boundary with Barrack Lane), these include a secondary window to a bedroom, a principal
window to a study/bedroom and a stairwell window. In terms of the secondary bedroom window,
the impact is considered to be acceptable, as the main outlook and source of daylight to this
room will be from the window in the front elevation. In respect of the bedroom/study, this would
not be a main bedroom (there are 3 other bedrooms in this apartment), and this room would be
more likely to be used as a study (a non-habitable room) and so the impact on outlook and
daylight is considered acceptable. In terms of the stairwell window this is not a habitable space,
and so is not afforded protection in respect of light or outlook.

In respect of the other windows in the side elevation located further back within this neighbouring
building, the new building would not come in such close proximity of these windows, and there
would be a gap of over 10 metres maintained. As such the impact upon these windows is
considered to be acceptable in terms of outlook and daylight. It also has to be taken into account
that these are side facing windows and side windows do not normally have the same freedom
from visual intrusion that normally applies to windows contained in principal front or rear
elevations.

There is glazing proposed in parts of the elevation of the new building which faces 15 Victoria
Street. Whilst this may provide some overlooking to windows into the apartments of number 15
Victoria Court, it must be taken into account that this is a town centre location, where a higher
degree of overlooking may be expected, and this elevation would face side facing windows. It
should also be noted that, as the scheme is for office use it is likely to be occupied at different
times from the neighbouring residential use.

Parking and Highways

Victoria Street is a classified un-numbered local distributor road that provides an alternative

link between the B470 Sheet Street and the A332/A308. Parking on Victoria Street is

controlled by permit holder parking, short term parking restrictions and double yellow lines.
Similar parking restrictions apply on Sheet Street. Victoria Street and Sheet Street are both
subject to a 30mph speed limit.

The applicant predicts that during the morning and evening peak periods the development is
likely to introduce a net increase of 30 and 27 vehicular trips respectively. The Highway Authority
considers that the increase is likely to be more than this; but are of the view that if a travel plan
with appropriate targets in is secured that the traffic generated from the proposal is unlikely to
have a material impact upon the surrounding road network.

The site currently provides 2662 square metres of office space, served by 45 parking spaces, 4 of
which are parked in tandem. This application site is within an area of good accessibility as
defined by the Council’s Parking Strategy. The maximum parking standards for an area of good
accessibility is 1 parking space per 100 square metres of floorspace. As such, 51 parking spaces
would need to be provided in order to meet the maximum parking standard. The scheme would
provide 38 parking spaces, and so the parking shortfall would be 13 parking spaces. However,
this is an accessible location and the parking standard is maximum standard, not a minimum
standard.

20



6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

In the applicant’s Transport Assessment, 56% of staff drive (average for Windsor Town Centre),
which in this instance could potentially lead to 192 cars attracted into Windsor Town Centre. The
targets set in the applicant’s travel plan are set out in the table below.

Mode Split
Target Indicator Baseline Interim Final
Year 1 Year 2
Year 0 Year 3 Year 5
Staff
Achieve a 5%
o ) To be
decrease in single Modal split .
) o decided
occupancy vehicle monitoring
) 56% 50% 45% 40% at a later
trips for staff per surveys for .
. date with
year for the first 3 SOV use
RBWM
years.

The Highway Authority is not of the view that these targets are ambitious enough. Based on the
targets set in the travel plan, the Highway Authority is of the view that the development would
have severe impact upon traffic flows in the town centre and the viability of the public car parks,
which are under pressure.

Whilst the Highway Authority is concerned over the impact if the Travel Plan targets are not
revised, Planning Officers would not recommend refusal of the application on this basis as this is
a sustainable town centre location, where people can travel by train or walk to work. In addition,
parking standards are maximum and there are no specific local circumstances that would justify
provision of the 51 parking spaces.

When the amended plans were submitted, together with additional information, it was put forward
that the general public could make use of the car park at weekends for a 5 year period. The agent
understands that there is a strong desire for additional parking facilities within Windsor town
centre, particularly at peak times, from both the resident and business community. They explain
that it will be necessary to agree a formal management plan with the Council, but the initial
proposal is to allow a minimum of 28 spaces to be made available for public use from 7am on
Saturday to 9pm on Sunday.

The Council’s Parking Strategy at Section 5 sets out that the Council will seek to maximise the
use of car parking space through shared public and private use at suitable times of the day, or
week, or year, as appropriate. It should be noted that the description has not been changed to
include this proposal, and not been consulted on (this would need to be done, should Panel be
minded to approve the application on this basis). The public use of the car park would be a
benefit. The detail on the management of this arrangement has not been provided, however,
there would be concerns over this proposal, and how this parking arrangement could be
monitored and enforced at the weekends. In addition the Crime Prevention and Design Officer
from Thames Valley Police, advised on this scheme when the design was being evolved that
unsecure rear court parking facilities can be problematic, and if left unsecure the car park may
become vulnerable to unauthorised casual intrusion, anti social behaviour (ASB) and criminal
activity, the entrance to this car park must be made secure through the inclusion of electronic
pedestrian and vehicle gates. If the car park was made open to the public on the weekends, this
would make this car park area unsecure and could result in problems for residential occupiers of
the adjoining flats. It is highly unlikely that the applicant would want their asset affected by the
potential security issues and this may also affect the ability of the applicant to let the building.
This may explain the limited period that the car park could be used for the public, as suggested
by the applicant. Although not formally proposed, the benefit of such a proposal will be weighed
in the balancing exercise against the adverse impacts from the proposed development.

21



6.41 The location of the proposed access is considered to be acceptable. In the amended plans there
is now space within the car park area for smaller delivery vehicles to turn within the site. The
larger refuse collection vehicle stops on Victoria Street and do not need to enter the site.
Residents of Victoria Court would have a longer carry distance for their refuse, in excess of the
guidelines in the Manual for Streets, but this is only a guideline and would not be a reason for
refusal.

Use of the car park by the public at limited times

6.42 The description of the development was amended to include the use of the car park by the public
at specific times. Neighbours and contributors were consulted on the amended description, and
given a 21 day period to comment. The agent has provided the following details in respect of the
proposed public use of the car park:

The applicant has confirmed that they are happy to enter into a legal agreement in respect of the
potential future use of the proposed car parking spaces at the application site for public use.
However, it is not possible for the applicant to provide a formal commitment / obligation in respect
of the provision of spaces for public uses at this stage as the requirements of the tenant(s) for the
office floorspace are unknown. Given the objective of the development is to deliver Grade A
floorspace and attract ‘blue chip’ businesses to Windsor in accordance with the Council’s wider
economic and inward investment strategies, flexibility needs to be retained to meet their potential
requirements. However the applicant is alert to the requirement for additional parking spaces
within Windsor to help support the wider centre and the dual use of the car park is something that
the applicant is committed to delivering where possible.

The following obligations are suggested by the applicant to be included as Heads of Terms to a
legal agreement:

1. The application seeks provision for the use of the proposed car parking spaces for private
use with the potential for public use at certain times.

2. Should the applicant propose to make the car parking at the application site available for
use by general members of the public it can only do so subject to the following controls / criteria:

a. The provision of at least 28 parking spaces to be made available for use by general
members of the public;

b. The car park can only be made available for use by general members of the public
between the following hours:

1. 19:00 - 23:00 - Monday to Friday
2. 08:00 — 23:00 - Saturday and Sunday
C. The car park will not be made available for use by members of the general public until a

formal Car Park Management Plan has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

d. The Car Park Management Plan will include details of:

i.Number and location of spaces;
ii. Hours of operation;
iii. Details of charges and payment methods;
iv.Details of necessary infrastructure (e.g. barriers, signage, ‘pay and display’ machines, etc); and
v.Any other relevant management and operational considerations required in order to ensure the
facility can operate effectively and safely.

e. Planning permission / advertisement consent will be obtained for any infrastructure

required in association with the public use of the car park before it is made available for use by
general members of the public.

22



6.43

6.44

6.45

6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

Officers are of the view that insufficient information has been provided in order to understand how
the use of the car park by the public would be managed and enforced. This information is critical
in understanding if the public use of the car park is feasible, and also to ensure the car park
remains secure. Although the applicant is willing to enter into a legal agreement, they cannot
commit to this and so this does not provide certainty that this element of the scheme could be
provided. In addition, as an end user has not been identified, this may create uncertainty as to
whether the public use of the car park could be secured. Notwithstanding this, Officers maintain
the view that the offer of the use of the car park for the public is not a significant enough benefit
that would outweigh the harm caused by the proposed development.

Economic Impacts

A report produced by Regeneris Consulting assesses the economic benefits of the potential
employment generation resulting from the development of this new office building.

. This has the potential to generate economic benefits as follows:

-The potential for a gross employment level of 320-416 full time equivalent employees

-The potential for employment on the site to support additional jobs in the wider Windsor and
Maidenhead economy through indirect and induced effects.

- A boost to the local construction sector job creation with opportunities for training and
apprenticeships benefiting the local resident population.

-A contribution to the local and regional economy through increased expenditure in the town
centre and the wider region during construction and post occupation

-. Modernisation of an existing employment site thereby improving the choice and flexibility of
business space

The proposal has the potential for significant economic benefits, and this needs to be considered
in the planning balancing exercise.

Ecology

The building was subject to a detailed inspection for bats. Following detailed examination of
potential roosting sites, the buildings were recorded as having negligible potential to support
roosting bats. The applicant’s ecologist has recommended that a precautionary approach to
works at the site is adopted, including soft demolition of the buildings should the Local Planning
Authority be minded to grant planning permission. The proposed development is considered to
have an acceptable impact on ecology.

Sustainability

The council has an adopted ‘Sustainable Design and Construction’ Supplementary Planning
Document which was formally adopted in June 2009. It is a material consideration in the
assessment of planning applications and its purpose is to help improve the sustainability
performance of buildings and spaces through their construction and subsequent use.

Major developments such as this one are required to meet and provide evidence in support of the
BREEAM requirements as well as other issues such as; energy consumption, on-site renewable
energy generation, water management, waste management etc. An Energy Statement has been
submitted, which sets out that the development will aim to meet the BREEAM standards of ‘Very
Good’, and sets out the measures it could incorporated to meet this. It is considered that a
condition could be imposed to ensure the building meets this standard.

Surface water and drainage

The proposed surface water drainage strategy outlined in the Surface Water Drainage and SuDS
Assessment accompanying this application indicates that permeable paving and tank storage,
with a flow control system, will be provided to limit surface water runoff to 5 I/s for all storm events
up to and including the 1 in 100 year plus climate change event. In principle this is acceptable.

23



6.50

6.51

6.52

6.53

6.54

6.55

6.56

6.57

6.58

6.59

Archaeology

The application site lies just outside of the historic medieval core of Windsor. Sheet Street was an
important thoroughfare leading south from the medieval town and began to be developed from
the early post-medieval period onwards. While the site therefore has a modest archaeological
potential, it has been substantially developed with the construction of the current office building in
the 1970s and housing prior to this. Owing to the built development that exists on site, there are
not considered to be implications for the buried archaeological heritage.

Other Material Considerations

Paragraph 66 of the NPPF states that applicants will be expected to work closely with those
directly affected by their proposals to evolve designs that take account of the views of the
community. The agent did undertake a public exhibition prior to making the planning application,
and did take on board some views expressed. Even if members of the community feel that their
comments have not been incorporated in the scheme, this would not warrant refusal of the
application.

Members of the public question the need for so much additional office space, when there is so
much vacant office space within Windsor, and other buildings have been converted from office
space to residential. It should be noted that National or Local Planning Policy does not require the
Local Planning Authority to take into account existing vacant office space in the locality in
considering whether new office space is acceptable in the town centre.

Concern is raised over the noise and disturbance that would arise during the
demolition/construction phases of development and the impact this would have on the personal
and work life of occupiers in the adjoining flats of Victoria Court. Whilst this is appreciated, a
certain level of noise and disturbance would be expected with new development, however, this
would not constitute a valid reason to refuse planning permission. In addition, construction
workers may be able to look into the windows of flats during construction, but this would not be a
valid reason to refuse planning permission. In respect of concerns over construction traffic, if
planning permission was granted a Construction Management Plan would be required.

The potential impact that the demolition/construction of the building could have on the structural
stability of the adjoining flats is not a planning consideration. Dust and hours of working during
construction are not a planning consideration, but these would be matters that Environmental
Protection would have remit over.

Concern is raised over how residents of Victoria Court would access their parking spaces during
the construction period. However, this is a private matter that would need to be managed by the
developer during the construction process. It is not a valid reason to refuse planning permission.

Concern is raised over the development resulting in a decrease in value of surrounding
properties, however this is not a planning consideration.

Comment is made that planning policy favours a three storey building for the site. It should be
noted that planning policy does not restrict the building to being 3 storeys at the site.

Concern is raised over the new building and that it will reduce sunlight to the roof terrace of the
Corner House. The roof terrace is not a private amenity space, and is not afforded significant
protection in terms of light. Given this is a town centre location, a higher density of development
would be expected, and it would not be unreasonable for a new building to be higher than a roof
terrace to a public house.

An objector states that the development would create a security risk to the Barracks. The
Barracks have not commented on this planning application. The agent submitted the proposals to
Thames Valley Police Secure by Design before submitting the application, who commented that
the car park area should be made secure and should incorporate an access control system, but
these comments were made in order to make the development secure, not specifically in relation
to the Barracks. It is not considered that an office development would pose a security risk to the
Barracks.
24



6.60

6.61

6.62

6.63

6.64

6.65

6.66

An objector suggests that a cinema and art gallery could be included in the redevelopment,
however, this is not what planning permission is sought for and the application has to be
considered on its merits.

Developer Contributions

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (CIL Regulations) which came in force on
the 6 April 2015, allows the Council to raise funds from developers undertaking new building
projects in the borough to support and fund new infrastructure that the Council and local
communities may require. However, planning obligations may still be sought to mitigate local
impact if they are still necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms provided
that the obligations meet the tests outlined in the CIL Regulations. In this case planning
obligations would not be sought as potential highway projects would not meet the tests set out in
the CIL regulations at Regulation 122.

Planning Balance

Benefits

There will be economic benefits that could arise through increasing the amount of office space-
both direct and indirect impacts, and temporary effects from employment during the construction
period. This scheme is likely to have positive impacts but very localised ones for the economy
and temporary ones in the case of construction works.

Another temporary benefit for 5 years could arise if the car parking area was made available to
the public on the weekends, as it would assist in providing parking in a town where there is
recognised pressure for parking. If this was a benefit that was considered to weigh in favour of
the application, the description would need to be amended and the application re-advertised,
although there are concerns over the monitoring and security if the car park is made open to the
public. This element would also require a legal agreement to secure it as benefit.

The Borough’s Employment Land Review (ELR) from 2009 shows that there is an identified
supply requirement for 85,900sqm of B1 office floorspace up to 2026. The emerging ELR is also
indicating there is a requirement for a further supply of office floorspace. The proposal would
provide a net addition of 2,455sqm which will assist in meeting the quantitative demand. In
addition office demand has focused on new and good second hand space and the ELR notes that
older stock is not in as high demand. The new office building would therefore go to meeting a
demand and this is a benefit of the proposal.

Adverse Impacts

The main report sets out the adverse impacts of the scheme in detail. To summarise, these are
the less than substantial harm caused to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area,
and the adverse impacts on neighbouring residential amenity. In addition, no evidence has been
submitted to justify why this scale of building is required, and why a scheme with less floorspace
could not be provided, and so in weighing the benefits and adverse impacts of the scheme, there
is nothing which supports the justification of why this scale of building is necessary.

The benefits of the scheme have been identified previously and include the provision of high
specification office space, benefits to the local economy, and the potential to make the car park
available to the public during weekends, public benefits also include the Optimum Viable Use
(OVU). In terms of the OVU, it would appear that this relates more to proposals affecting the use
of heritage asset, for example, a change of use of a listed building. The NPPG under the heading
“What is a viable use for a heritage asset and how is it taken into account in planning decisions”
seems to also infer that the assessment is based on the use of a building and the advice refers to
heritage assets having a viable use. It further advises that where there are a range of alternative
viable uses, the OVU may not necessarily be the most profitable one. It is therefore considered
that the OVU is not relevant to this development. However, if the OVU was applied, the existing
building is considered to have a neutral impact on the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area. From this perspective it would be preferable to utilise the existing building

25



6.67

7.1

compared to the proposed building which is considered to cause harm. No evidence has been
put forward to show why the existing building could not be retained. The public benefits which
would be mainly local ones and temporary that would not benefit the public at large are not
considered to outweigh the less than substantial harm caused to the Conservation Area as
required by paragraph 134 of the NPPF. The heritage qualities of Windsor are world-renowned
and these qualities should be preserved and where possible enhanced. Therefore any public
benefits would need to be significant to outweigh the harm. The ones put forward by the applicant
would not be significant. As the National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) advises public
benefits need to be of a nature or scale to be of benefit to the public at large and should not be
just a private benefit.

Paragraph 14 of the NPPF sets out that at the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is
a presumption in favour of sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden thread
running through both plan-making and decision-taking. Paragraph 14 of the NPPF sets out
guidance for decision making. Officers are not of the view that this proposed development is a
form of sustainable development, as there is identified harm to the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area, and the public benefits are not considered to outweigh this harm. As such
the proposal is not considered to accord with Local Plan Policies DG1, CA2, P4 , which are all
considered to be consistent with the requirements of the NPPF and therefore relevant to the
determination of the proposal.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Consultation on amended description to include public use of car park

3 letters were received in relation to the public use of the car park, as a result of neighbour and
contributor notification, with a deadline of the 27" June 2016 to comment:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. Feel the offer of the car park for the public is a ‘red herring’ which 6.42-6.43
has been put forward in an attempt to gain planning permission.
2. Adverse impact on parking spaces accessed by the residents of 6.42-6.43
Victoria Court. How will this be managed?
3 Concerns over the security to flats of Victoria Court if the car park 6.42-6.43
is opened to the public and not made secure. The security of the
car park was raised by Thames Valley Police.
4 The application lacks detail on the management plan that would be | 6.42-6.43
put in place to secure access and satisfactory safe operation as a
safe public car park.
5 The limited number of parking spaces being offered to the public at | 6.42-6.43
limited times, should not be significant weight, as it will do little to
address parking problems in Windsor.
6 When the existing office was used, workers would park in residents | 6.42-6.43
spaces, and it was difficult to enforce. If the car park is opened up
to the public, how would parking being monitored and enforced?

26



Windsor and Eton Society reinforce their original objections to the scheme, adding that they are
concerned about inadequate parking being provided.

Officer response: Noted, these points were addressed in the original report.

Comments from interested parties

23 occupiers were notified directly of the application.
The application was advertised in the Maidenhead & Windsor Advertiser 13" August 2015 (for
development affecting the setting of a Conservation Area) and on the 10™ September 2015 for
as development affecting the setting of a Listed Building.
The planning officer posted a statutory notice advertising the application at the site on 6™ August

2015.

14 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Comments on originally submitted plans

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. Over development of the site. 6.3-6.18
2. Would adversely impact on views in the Conservation Area, of 6.3-6.18
Listed Buildings, and at higher levels of Windsor Castle.
3. The building is not of a high enough design to preserve of enhance | 6.3-6.18
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.
4, Conflict with paragraph 66 of the NPPF which expects 6.51
development proposals to take into account the views of the
community.
5. The proposed building with the larger amount of glazing in 6.25 and 6.28
proximity to Lancaster House result in over looking to this building
and to the residential use on the upper floors of this building.
6 Considers the proposed building to be aesthetically pleasing, but Noted.
has objections to the scheme (these matters set out in this table).
7 Questions the need for additional office space, when there is so 6.52
much office space in Windsor that is vacant.
8 Concerns over the impact on the work life of an occupier in one of | 6.53
the flats at Victoria Court as they work from home.
9 A couple who live in a flat in Victoria Court are in their mid 30s and | 6.53
do not have children, but are planning to. They do not have
sufficient funds to move if required. If the demolition and
construction is allowed, they would be unable to have a child for
the duration of the works as it would be clear that noise, dust and
debris caused by such a large proposal would curtail their family
plans.
10 The construction works would prevent an ill mother staying at the 6.53
flats in Victoria Court.
11 Concerns over traffic flow and the danger to highway safety. 6.33-6.41

27




12

Concerns over construction workers on site looking into the
windows of flat 8, Victoria Court.

6.53

13

Concerns that the demolition and construction period would
adversely impact on the personal life of occupiers in the flats of
Victoria Court.

6.53

14

Concerns over how you demolish such a large part of a building
without adversely impacting on the adjoining flats in Victoria Court.

6.54

15

Parking for Victoria Court is provided under the building; where
would residents park during construction?

6.55

16

Concerns over traffic construction during construction, and post
development.

6.53

17

The proposed office building does not relate well to the flats at
Victoria Court which are to remain.

6.3-6.18

18

The development will devalue the prices of properties In Victoria
Court.

6.56

19

The development would adversely impact on the bedroom
windows to flat 2 Victoria Court, it would cover their windows and
block out light and air.

6.27

20

Concern over the loss of daylight and privacy to flat 9 Victoria
Court.

6.27

21

This proposed development is gross overdevelopment.

6.3-6.18

22

Inadequate consultation was undertaking with neighbours before
submitting the planning application.

6.51

23

Noise, dust, and severe vibration will be the primary concerns
during both the demolition and groundwork construction phases.

6.54

25

Planning policy is said to favour a maximum of 3 storeys and
Saxon House opposite Thames has just 3 storeys so if this
application is granted it should be on the basis of it comprising 3
storeys and so being no higher (or fractionally so)

6.57

26

When Thames Court was constructed in 1983 they had a client
(Price Waterhouse now PriceWaterhouse Coopers (PwC)) a
multinational professional services firm with revenues of US$ 34
billion who had agreed, in advance, to lease the entire building.
Unless the current freeholder has a similar settled arrangement the
likelihood of their leasing this building to anywhere near capacity is
little beyond mere unsubstantiated hope and expectation.

Noted.

27

Reports from economists and their like have a long and
disreputable record of unreliability as they are barely capable of
accurately forecasting that night will follow day let alone anything
less certain.

Noted.

28

The parking would be reduced even though the building will
substantially increase in floorspace. This goes against planning
policy and common sense.

6..33-6.41

29

The proposed parking arrangements would not work for future
workers of the office, or for residents in Victoria Court.

6.33-6.41

30

If permission is granted a condition should be applied to ensure
that there will be two-way vehicle traffic in and out of the new
building with separate barriers or security gates for entrance and
egress as the present drawings are unclear on this aspect.

6..33-6.41

31

Development would adversely impact residential properties in
Victoria Court and Lancaster House, through being overdominant.

6.26-6.29

32

Whilst the existing building is of no particular merit it is far less
intrusive that the proposed larger building due to the fact that is
has a more traditional formulation with 5 Victoria Street being

6.3-6.18

28




essentially a separate unit that respects the existing buildings in
the general area.

33

The immediate area is characterised by most buildings not being
above 3 storeys in height rather than the five storey building
offered.

Noted.

34

The local planning authority (LPA) also needs to remember that it
was they who forced amendment of the original [circa 1980]
proposals by demanding that an “all-office (commercial) building”
was not acceptable to them, and provision for a residential element
(then planned to be called Victoria House) was the condition
imposed for planning consent to be granted for the construction of
what became Thames Court. Therefore, this reality needs to be
acknowledged and the best way of doing so is to give greater,
sympathetic, but not overwhelming, consideration to the residents’
legitimate interests even if some of them are, inevitably, very
personal.

Noted.

35

If the site must be redeveloped the ‘footprint’ needs to be scaled
back to the existing with no more than 3 storeys permitted and the
general design ‘softened’.

Noted.

36

This will worsen the traffic in this part of Windsor which is already a
problem.

6.33-6.41

37

Further increase in noise will adversely impact residents.

6.53

38

The proposal will stop sunshine going to the roof terrace of the
Corner House (public house), and this will prevent people using
this outdoor space.

6.58

39

The increase in size to the Barracks will pose a security threat to
the Barracks.

6.59

41

The proposal would significantly reduce light to most flats in
Victoria Court.

6.19-6.23

42

The proposed building would overshadow buildings of significant
architectural merit such as Hadleigh House and the Corner House.

6.16-6.18

43

The building is featured in ‘A Portrait of Windsor’ by Mark Stenning.

Noted.

44

Residents of Victoria Court would not be able to access their
vehicles.

6.55

45

There are not currently enough parking spaces for the existing
office.

Noted.

46

Concerns over the proposed access- it would lead to major delays
for access and egress.

6.33-6.41

47

The plans would completely alter the public space at the junction of
Victoria Street and Sheet Street. This would create a dangerous
situation for drivers at this point.

6..33-6.41

48

Would not be able to rent their flat in Victoria Court during the
construction period and this would result in financial hardship.

6.56

49

Residents would have a longer carry distance for bins with the
vehicular access being moved.

6.41

50

Strongly opposes the development, but if approval is given wants
the following to be noted:

"I Any change in the appearance of the office part of the
building should, with the permission of all Victoria Court
Leaseholders, be replicated in the residential part of the
building i.e. new wall cladding and the applicant should
finance this

[1 Leaseholders of properties in Victoria Court who rent out
their properties should be finically compensated for loss of
earnings during construction

[l The proposer should bay for new double or triple glazed
windows in Victoria Court

Noted, however,
these are all
private matters
and not relevant
to the planning
consideration.

29




[l Measures should be put in place so that occupiers of the
flats can access their cars

[1 Areas should be cleaned regularly during demolition and
construction phase

[l Financial retainer should be put in place by the proposers
for at lease 10 years following construction.

51

With existing office spaces in Windsor empty and some being
converted into residential sites (for example Elizabeth House just
meters away on Sheet Street), | do not feel there is evidence of
demand to support such an increase — developing this area does
not guarantee tenants.

6.52

52

Whilst | do not object to an office being developed in a modern and
attractive way, | am concerned that the extent of this (as outlined in
the proposals) sets this building at odds with the surrounding
areas. The aesthetics of the glass building are not in keeping with
the 80’s style of the adjoining flats and, | argue, is not appropriate
for this location — Windsor Town Centre, a Conservation area.

6.3-6.18

53

The current proposal is vastly different from the existing site and |
see no “reference” in designs to the style in which it was intended.

6.3-6.18

54

Concerned that reducing the number of

spaces and relying on the implementation of a chaotic “buddy
scheme” will only add to the parking problems, particularly as the
number of employees is likely to increase with the almost doubling
of the office space.

6.33-6.41

56

Considers the proposed building would overlook the windows of
the flats of Victoria Court

6.24

Comments on Amended Plans and additional information

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Considers the scheme will block out natural light to the bedroom of flat
2 Victoria Court.

6.19-6.23

Scheme is overdevelopment which affects important views in the
Conservation Area, the setting of Listed Buildings and at higher levels
of the Castle.

6.3-6.18

Concerns over the loss or parking spaces and the proposed
arrangement.

6.33-6.41

The proposed building with the larger amount of glazing in proximity
to Lancaster House result in over looking to this building and to the
residential use on the upper floors of this building

6.25

The daylight and sunlight assessment shows the reduction in light to
Victoria Court and Lancaster House which is unacceptable.

6.19-6.23

The development would overlook and be completely overbearing to
the residential use of Lancaster House. The south west corner of the
building only stands 1.5 off Lancaster House.

6.28

The revised proposal is still an overdevelopment of such a small site.
The latest proposal is only 47 m2 smaller than the original plans, an
insignificant change. The new site provides a 92% increase in gross
internal area — from 2662m2 to 5117m2.

6.3-6.18

Do not feel that there is evidence of demand to support such an
increase; development of the site in this way does not guarantee
tenants or the creation of new jobs.

6.52

Still concerned that the design of the building is at odds with

6.3-6.18

surrounding buildings.
30




The existing 1970s office block on the site has a neutral
impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation
Area. Whilst not of particular architectural merit, it addresses
the junction of Victoria Street and Sheet Street, a key focal
part in this part of the Conservation Area. Its scale and
modelling help the transition between the fine grain of
traditional terraces to the north and the more open grain with
lower scale buildings to the south. The proposed office
development is of a much greater scale and mass than the
existing building, paying little heed to its context. It is overly
bulky, with very little modelling to relive its mass. It would
dominate the street scene along Victoria Street and Sheet
Street. The design does not adequately address the junction
and it would erode the quality of the townscape here.

Although no assessment of the character of this part of the
Conservation Area has been submitted, it is evident that the
proposed development would cause some harm to the
character and appearance. No evidence is submitted to justify
the scale of development, not are any public benefits
expressed. Historic England recommends a better
assessment of the significance of this part of the CA is

10 Concerns that the proposed parking layout will prevent occupiers of 6.55
Victoria Court from accessing the parking spaces.
11 The suggestion by the applicant that the car park could be used by 6.43
the general public is an ill thought out proposal. Who would manage
such an arrangement, and how could the public be prevented parking
in the spaces of Victoria Court?
12 | Major concern over the structural works required. 6.53
13 | The proposal would replace one ugly building with another ugly 6.3-6.18
building
14 | Considers a cinema, a petrol station and an art gallery could be 6.60
included in the office redevelopment.
15 | Concerns remain over the impact on the personal life and work life of | g 53
occupiers of Victoria Court during the construction period.
16 | Writes on behalf of their neighbour in Victoria Court who is elderly and | Noted.
in ill health, and is very stressed by this proposal.
17 | Question remains over necessity of this office space. 6.52
18 | Impact on property values. 6.56
19 | The amended plans were a waste of time, with minimal changes. Noted.
20 | Adverse impact on outlook from the flats of Victoria Court. 6.27
21 | The employment information submitted is made up Noted.
22 | Objects to the proposal to make the car park available to the public on | g 42-6.43
the weekends- it would breach the rights of the lease and would
create security issues.
23 | There are no public advantages from this proposal, despite what the 6.66
economic assessment claims.
Statutory consultees
Where in
Consultee Comment the report
this is
considered
Historic England | Original Comments 6.3-6.18

31




submitted; the scheme revised to reduce its harmful impact
and that the opportunity is take to enhance the CA.

Comments on Amended Plan and Additional Information

The amendments have sought to overcome our previously-
stated concerns and this is to be welcomed. However, only
some of the issues have been addressed and these only
partially.

The site analysis does not assess the heritage significance
in any way, as required by para. 128 of the NPPF.

The reduction is height is minimal, a full storey would need
to be omitted to make the reduction meaningful. The same
applies to the setting back from the Victoria St frontage —
this is a marginal improvement only. These amendments
do not make an appreciable difference to the overdominant
scale of the building.

The junction of Victoria St and Sheet St remains awkward.
This is a very important part of townscape and there exists
an opportunity to enhance this area. This is a material
consideration in accordance with para. 131 of the NPPF.

The verified views are to be welcomed. However, we do
not agree with all the conclusions, which appear to be
subjective. A proper assessment of the visual impact on
heritage assets should include reference to a baseline
assessment of significance in order to substantiate
assertions that the impact is beneficial. Also, especially
with regard to viewing position 6, it should be
acknowledged that views into and out of a conservation
area are material considerations. The setting of the
conservation area is important as well.

Historic England remains of the view that the proposed
building should be reduced in height and bulk. We
recommend that the opportunity is taken to enhance the
junction of Victoria St and Sheet St so that it makes a
positive contribution to the conservation area. This
amended design still causes harm to the significance of
heritage assets. If minded to approve this application the
local authority should satisfy itself that there are public
benefits which outweigh this harm.

Highways

Revised Parking Proposal

The scheme now proposes 38 spaces with 4 cars parked in
tandem. This level of parking provision for the size of the
development is not considered acceptable.

In support of this level of parking provision the Highway
Authority expected the Travel Plan to include robust tangible
measures and targets to reduce the impact of the
development on the highway network. Based upon
occupancy levels of 12.7m? the new development could
accommodate 342 employees.

6.33-6.41

32




The 2011 Census Data, referred to in the applicant’s
Transport Assessment, 56% of staff drive (average for
Windsor Town Centre), which in this instance could
potentially lead to 192 cars attracted into Windsor Town
Centre.

Details of the Travel Plan targets are listed in the following
table.

Table 3.1: Travel Plan AIM Targets

Meode Split

Target Indicator Baseline Interim Final
Year 1 Year 2
Year 0 Year 3 Year 5

Staff
Achieve a 5%

To be
decided
56% 50% 45% 40% at a later
date with

REWM

decrease in single Modal split
occupancy vehicle monitoring
trips for staff per surveys for
year for the first 3 SOV use

years.

This clearly suggests that the current proposal is
unsustainable and would have severe impact upon traffic
flows in the town centre and the viability of the public car
park.

Therefore, based on the above the Highway Authority cannot
support the application.

Local Lead Flood
Authority

The proposed surface water drainage strategy outlined in the
Surface Water Drainage and SuDS Assessment
accompanying this application indicates that permeable
paving and tank storage, with a flow control system, will be
provided to limit surface water runoff to 5 I/s for all storm
events up to and including the 1 in 100 year plus climate
change event. In principle this is acceptable.

The submitted calculations and outline drawings also indicate
the provision of adequate storage to be practical.

The Lead Local Flood Authority would therefore have no
objection to the proposed development subject to the
conditions for a detailed design of the surface water drainage
system to be submitted and approved.

6.49

Other consultees and organisations

Consultee

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Windsor and
Eton Society

Objects. Regus House occupies a focal point in the Inner
Windsor Conservatin Area and the junctions of Victoria
Street and Sheet Street. Any building replacing the existing
one should enhance the area. The existing building does not
have any particular architectural merit, however the 5 storey
building proposed is totoally misconceived. The design is not
suiable for the centre of Windsor. The building would
dominate the nearby Listed Buildings and detract from their
settings, particualry Hadleigh House.

They are unable to see that the bulding would not
comprimise local views, especially that of the Castle.

6.3-6.18

33




Questions why this much offfice space is needed , when so
many offices in the town are being converted to residential.

The proposal will harm the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area. The application does not comply with the
NPPF.

Comments on amended scheme

Consider the changes to the plans are of little consequence.
The floorspace has been reduced to 5,117 sq m from 5,168
sq m. This compares with 2,662 sq m for the present
building. View 1 of the verified views shows the truly massive
scale of the proposed building. The changes are insufficient
for us to take a different view to the one originally expressed.
We urge for the application to be refused.

Tree Officer

There are no trees on site and no opportunity for tree
planting either under the exiting scheme or proposed. |
therefore have no objections to the proposal, as the site is
already heavily developed. However, it should be noted the
current extent of low level planting in raised borders will be
reduced in scale should the proposal be implemented. This
will give the development a harder appearance compared
with existing.

If you are minded to grant planning permission then a
landscaping condition should be applied.

Noted.

Council’s
Ecologist

During the preliminary ecological appraisal, the applicant’s
ecologist concluded that the buildings on site may have the
potential to support roosting bats. Further bat survey of these
buildings was recommended by the applicant’s ecologist
within the report but these surveys were not originally
submitted with this application. As bats and their roosts are
protected under UK and European legislation and are a
material  consideration when determining planning
applications, further survey for bats was requested by the
Local Planning Authority. These have now been provided by
the applicant.

Both buildings on site were subject to a detailed inspection,
in particular the aspects of the building that were originally
identified to be suitable to support roosting bats. Following
detailed examination of potential roosting sites, the buildings
were recorded as having negligible potential to support
roosting bats. The applicant’s ecologist has recommended
that a precautionary approach to works at the site is
adopted, including soft demolition of the buildings and
should the Local Planning Authority be minded to grant
planning permission, it is recommended that this advice is
incorporated in a suitably worded condition or informative
note.

6.46

Berkshire
Archaeology

The application site lies just outside of the historic medieval
core of Windsor. Sheet Street was an important thoroughfare
leading south from the medieval town and began to be
developed from the early post-medieval period onwards.
While the site therefore has a modest archaeological
potential, it has been substantially developed with the

6.50

34




8.

construction of the current office building in the 1970s and
housing prior to this. The application plans show the
proposed new building substantially on the footprint of the
existing building, which is to be demolished. Car parking to
the rear is to remain as is. It is also noted that the existing
component of the structure on the Sheet Street frontage is to
remain.

On this basis, Berkshire Archaeology is content, on balance,
that there are no implications for the buried archaeological
heritage from this proposal and therefore no further action is

required.
Council’'s The application fails to properly assess the significance of | g 3-6.18
Conservation | Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area and the impact of
Officer the proposal on that significance. This makes assessing the

impact of the proposal far less clear than it could be.

The demolition of the existing office blocks does not raise
objections. However, the proposed new building would
appear to cause harm to the character and appearance of
the conservation area, and hence its significance, because
the scale is at odds with its context as appreciated from
various view points, its unbroken mass along Victoria Street
which fails to successfully incorporate characteristic building
plot widths and variety across the street elevations and the
awkward junction of the proposed office with the existing
residential building along Sheet Street.

The proposal fails to take the opportunity to make a positive
contribution to local character and distinctiveness and fails to
sustain and enhance the significance of the conservation
area.

There are no overriding public benefits set out within the
application that would outweigh the harm that would be
caused by the scheme.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan

o Appendix B — Proposed Elevations
Appendix C- Proposed Floor Plans
Appendix D- Approved floor plan under 15/02665/FULL
Appendix E- Plans from Daylight and Sunlight Review

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have not been successfully resolved.

35



9.

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

The proposal owing to its combined height and mass set close to the road would be out of
keeping with the size of surrounding properties and as such the building would appear
overdominant and incongruous, resulting in adverse impact on the streetscene and character
and appearance of the area. The scale of the building will be reinforced by the large glazed
openings which are not in keeping with the local vernacular. The proposal would result in less
than substantial harm to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, and the public
benefits identified are not considered to outweigh this harm. The proposal is considered to
conflict with Paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework and with Policies DG1(3)
and Policy CA2 (1, 2 and 3) of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999
(incorporating alterations adopted June 2003).

The proposal would result in unacceptable overlooking and overbearing impact to the balcony of
Lancaster House. The proposal would also result in an unduly overbearing impact to the outlook
to bedroom windows in Victoria Court, labelled W6/ground, W7/ground, W6/first and W7/First on
the plan included within the Daylight and Sunlight Review. As such the proposal is considered to
conflict with Paragraph 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework in that it fails to secure a
good standard of amenity for existing occupants of the neighbouring residential properties.

36



Appendix A- Site location

o Graveyard\ = (. <~ SR WBRLoS0O') B 50:
Madeira Walk Westerncgtf[‘;;%”_at'ona' HO@ 12
'Play Area B 4 w PARK,STREET
/ ==+ (Gulliver,House i = x
RSACRE Lych Gatenyy A & 6. 27,
o .
| \C (l Coburgf & 6L
; -~ - L]
\ Bachelors Acre ‘o' \WMorgan House <
> N \ = —! |
RC o 16
axy @Y/ onik = 14}
Nindsor, Q f 1820 HorseBlack
\ \Hoﬁsé 24:1m=——__Saxon'House PHA I
Lsel—" _ Vier =Ygl ibe2? 4 Yard
=) = p 03 Ctorig Str =
EET.. <33 S eet 19 5
e a#35 _15 . 1
use39 to 45 VA :
° BARRACK LANE lancaster I, S
b 1
Parkside
h N/ h Regent

House
| 25t03913to24Court

Shelter. " Council Offices

Victoria Barracks

=

37



Appendix B- Proposed Elevations

i
R R S -
) | -0 Las] ® ®
o e =) e e
! ® =
i a
= @
v ~H _H -
= L - ;@ - |
| ¢ oo ®
i =
y @
e 0

Proposed North Elevation — Victoria Street

Proposed West Elevation — Facing 13-15 Vitoria Street

38




A
[
@ = — = mmmm
I \
: \ bk
@ |
@ - ~H -
fAe | |
@ 1@

Gttt LS

Proposed South Elevation- rear elevation

Proposed East Elevation- facing Sheet Street

39

N
SIGNAGE

3
7

ey
7



Appendix C- Proposed floor plans

Proposed ground floor

40



133418 133Hs

¢

¢

_ STREET

A

. VICTOR|

Proposed first floor

41



S

STREET
REET ¢

e
I

CTORIA

Vi

H -

= A

133418 13345

Proposed second floor

42



~ STRE

ET

~ VICTORIA

Proposed third floor

43



STR

\.“‘-_-—-—l"‘llr

EET

CTORIA

Vi

il o

P ®

Proposed fourth floor

44



K<

~ STREET

- VICTORIA

Proposed roof plan

45



Appendix D- Approved layout plan at Lancaster House

BALCONY

.Yt

UELNET A ..
J %.\; GHJ::? |_,.=|'—
[] \“—f Al

—

BELSDOM 1

iy

Internal layaut covered by Cerililcabe of
Laswfulness of Proposed Developmant Ma:
15/01938

N

|

[

L
) [

SECOND FLOOR FLAM

46



Appendix E- Plans from Daylight and Sunlight Review

W3/Second

(LT R e
o E'.,:,— 8 5

l ? E \_{/

WS5/First
W3/First

1]

Windows in Victoria Court

47



Layout of Victoria Court

48



WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

20 July 2016 ltem: 2

Application 15/03135/FULL

No.:

Location: Datchet Mead Cottage 145A Slough Road Datchet Slough SL3 9AE

Proposal: Construction of 9 dwellings; 2 x two beds, 2 x three beds and 5 x four beds following
demolition of existing dwelling. Associated landscaping and parking

Applicant: Howarth Homes Plc

Agent: Mr Sam Tiffin - Progress Planning

Parish/Ward: Datchet Parish

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Alistair De Joux on 01628 685729 or at
alistair.dejoux@rbwm.gov.uk

11

1.2

14

15

SUMMARY

This application for the development of nine houses on the northern edge of Datchet was
considered by Councillors at the Windsor Urban Development Control meeting of 25" May 2016,
when a decision was deferred to allow Officers to seek a legal opinion on whether affordable
housing should be provided on the site. The position is as follows:

o Planning Practice Guidance was recently amended so that for residential developments of
ten units or less, which have a combined gross floorspace of no more than 1000 sgm should
be excluded from affordable housing levies and tariff based contributions. In this case, the
development is for 9 dwellings, but the floorspace being provided exceeds 1300 sgm.

e The application land is currently in the same ownership as 145 Slough Road (the Datchet
Mead Hotel) and the two sites are contiguous. The two sites have separate permissions
which if implemented would provide for a total of 16 residential units - 4 houses at the
application site along with 12 flats at the Datchet Mead Hotel site. Taken together, they
would have been liable for provision of affordable housing under Policy H3, although the fact
that the planning applications were made on the two sites and permission granted separately
resulted in this fact being overlooked. The current application if granted would result in an
increase in the number of units being provided across the two sites from 16 to 21.

The applicant has in this case offered to provide three houses within the development (Plots 2 -
4) as shared-ownership affordable housing. This is in line both with the recent amendments to
Planning Practice Guidance, and because the two sites are contiguous the requirements of
Policy H3 are triggered. The applicant is working towards signing a section 106 agreement on
this matter, with the aim of having completed this by the date of the meeting where this report will
be considered. The affordable housing issue is discussed below in more detail at 6.7 - 6.10.

Since the meeting on 25" May the second of two emergence surveys for bats in the existing
derelict dwelling at the site has been submitted. This is currently being assessed by the
Council’s ecologist, and her comments will be provided in an update report. As noted in the
report for the earlier meeting, this needs to demonstrate that the development can be carried out
without adversely impacting bats, before planning permission can be granted.

The application is located at the northern end of the excluded settlement of Datchet, immediately
adjacent to the Green Belt. Subject to providing appropriate landscaping it would provide an
acceptable mix of dwelling sizes in a common building style which incorporates features of the
Georgian dwellings located within other parts of Datchet. While this is quite a dense
development for a village-edge location, it is noted that opportunities for new housing in Datchet
are limited. The detailed layout of the scheme has evolved since the application was submitted,
and includes provision of a native hedge on the Green Belt boundary and between the rear
gardens of the houses adjacent to this boundary, so ensuring a soft edge to the development
and an acceptable transition from the building form within the settlement area to the open
countryside adjacent to the site. The design of the houses is acceptable, and largely coincides

49




1.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

with the footprints of the houses in an extant permission for four larger dwellings. For reasons
related to landscape character which are explained in the main discussion in this report, it is
intended that key hedgerows will be protected in a section 106 planning obligation, which sets
out obligations for retention and any replacement of the hedge.

The site is in a floodable area. A safe flood escape route can be provided, and in view of this
and the planning history of the site, the Environment Agency has not objected to the proposal.
The application has provided a sequential test assessment of other sites which demonstrates
that the development is needed to help meet the Borough’s housing need, and the provision of
this including shared ownership houses meets the “exceptions test” requirement as set out in
Planning Practice Guidance.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Borough Planning Manager:

1. | To grant planning permission subject to demonstrating that there will be no
unacceptable impacts on protected wildlife that cannot be properly mitigated and
on the satisfactory completion of an undertaking to secure affordable housing and
the retention of boundary hedges necessary to retain the rural edge character of
the site, and with the conditions listed in Section 9 of this report.

2 | To refuse planning permission if it cannot be demonstrated that significant impacts
on protected wildlife can be mitigated, and / or because a satisfactory undertaking
has not been completed by 1% August 2016, for the reason that affordable housing
would not be provided and that the proposed development would not secure
landscape improvements necessary to prevent adverse impacts on the character of
the area.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o The Council's Constitution does not give the Borough Planning Manager delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site consists of about 0.53 hectares near the northern end of Datchet, which
contains a now-derelict single dwelling. The site is located to the rear of 139 -145 Slough Road.
Number 145 being the Datchet Mead Hotel, and is accessed via a private road between the Hotel
and number 143. The site is not within the Green Belt but it is located at the edge of the
settlement.

The site is largely undeveloped in that most of the land to the rear (south) of the cottage is laid to
grass, and there is no landscape planting (other than scattered trees) on or close to the site
boundaries. The site is identified in the Townscape Assessment within a Leafy Residential
Suburban area, while the immediately surrounding countryside is classified in the Landscape
Character Assessment as a Settled Farmed Floodplain.

The site and its access are located in Flood Zone 2, with the south-western corner of the site in
Flood Zone 3. However, a larger part of the site is within the area that would become Flood Zone
3 with future climate change.

Numbers 143 and 145 Slough Road both have extant planning permissions for the development
of apartment buildings, each to accommodate 12 flats.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
The proposal is to demolish the existing dwelling and build six detached and three terraced

houses, all designed in a stylistically similar Georgian or Regency style. Car parking would be
provided both within garages and externally.

50



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The existing access lane, which is located between numbers 143 Slough Road and the Datchet
Mead Hotel, has been widened in commencement of an extant planning permission dating from
2011. This lane would be extended further into the property to serve the new dwellings, close to

the

rear boundaries of 141 - 143 Slough Road (including ‘Westfield’, which is located between

numbers 141 and 143). Houses in the development would be located to the rear of five adjacent
properties in all, including 139 and 139A as well as 141 - 143.

The site has the following relevant planning history:

Ref. Description Decision and Date
10/02486/FULL Construction of 4 detached dwellings with 3 | Permitted, 17.06.2011.
attached garages and one detached Following approval of
garage, including entrance gates, following | conditions details (as in the
demolition of existing. next line of this table) the
application was commenced
by formation of the access
road, so that this permission
is considered to be extant.
12/03289/CONDIT | Details required by condition 3 (materials), 4 | Details approved,
(acoustic insulation) and 5 (programme of 15.01.2013
archaeological works) of planning
permission 10/02486 for the construction of
4 detached dwellings with 3 attached
garages and one detached garage,
including entrance gates, following
demolition of existing.
14/01778/FULL Erection of 6 dwellings following demolition | Refused, 01.08.2014
of existing

The 2010 permission is considered to have commenced because following the approval of its
pre-commencement conditions as noted above, the driveway into the property was widened and

formed in accordance with the approved plans.

Section 106 contributions required on

commencement have also been paid. The permission is therefore considered to be extant.

The 2014 application was refused for the following reasons:

1

The scale, massing and number of proposed dwellings in conjunction with the extent of
hardstanding between Plots 3, 4, 5 and 6 would have a detrimental and unsympathetic
impact on the character of the character and amenity of this edge of settlement site, resulting
in the overdevelopment of the site in a way that would be is out of keeping with the spacious
character and pattern of development in the area. The proposal therefore fails to comply
with advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and with Policies H10,
H11, DG1 and N6 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan
(Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003).

The proposal does not contribute to the mix of housing types that is needed to ensure the
continued sustainability of the social fabric of the local community. In addition, although for
the previous permission it was agreed that affordable housing did not need to be provided as
part of the proposal, in formulating a proposal for six houses at this site it is considered that
this should be revisited in order to ascertain whether a proportion of shared-ownership
houses could and should be developed at the site. Without a mix of smaller as well as larger
houses within a development of six dwelling units along with this further consideration of
affordable provision, the application is contrary to Policies H3 and H8 of the Royal Borough
of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan.

In the absence of a survey of bats and other protected wildlife species, the application has
not demonstrated that it could be carried out without detriment to protected wildlife, contrary
to advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and with Natural
England's Standing Advice.

51




5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

4  While complying or able to comply in most respects with the Council’s standards for access
roads, visibility for vehicles exiting the site and car parking provision, it is unclear whether the
Council’s refuse vehicles (which measure 11.38m x 2.49m) would be able to enter and exit
the site in a forward gear. In addition the garage for Plot 5 is of substandard length. While
these matters could be successfully addressed if the proposal was acceptable in all other
respects, as submitted the car parking and turning provisions within the site are substandard,
and contrary therefore to Policies P4 and T5 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead Local Plan.

5 The development fails to make provision for off-site infrastructure and amenity improvements
directly related to the development in accordance with the Council's adopted Supplementary
Planning Documents and Guidance on Infrastructure and Amenity Requirements and Public
Open Space. Accordingly, the proposal fails to comply with saved Policies IMP1, R3 and T6
of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan, with the Planning Obligations
and Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document and with the Interpretation
of Policies R2 to R6 - Public Open Space provision Supplementary Planning Guidance.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and Decision-taking

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:
Within Green _ngh Protected PoIIutl_on Archaeology nghwgys /
settlement risk of and noise parking issues

Belt , trees
area flooding
GB1, NAP3, ARCH3
DG&"lTlo’ GB2, F1 N6 NAP4 T5, P4
GB3

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

Interpretation of Policy F1 — Area Liable to Flood

Sustainable Design and Construction

Planning for an Ageing Population

Supplementary planning guidance: Policy H3 of the Local Plan - Affordable housing

More information on these documents can be found at;
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

° RBWM Landscape Character Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
) RBWM Townscape Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
° RBWM Strategic Flood Risk Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

52



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration include whether matters in the previous refusal have been
overcome in this proposal (the first five issues below correspond to the five reasons for refusal),
along with three additional issues:

0] whether the urbanising effect of the proposals are acceptable at this edge-of-settlement
location;

(i) whether the mix of housing types and tenure are acceptable;
(iii) impacts on protected wildlife;

(iv) highways safety and vehicle access;

(V) provision for off-site infrastructure and amenity improvements;
(vi)  whether the proposal is acceptable in terms of flood risk;

(vii)  the impact on the amenities of the neighbouring residents; and
(viii)  impact on trees.

Whether the urbanising effect of the proposals are acceptable

The first reason for refusal in the 2014 decision cited the proposed scale, massing, number of
proposed dwellings and the extent of hardstanding between Plots 3, 4, 5 and 6 as having a
detrimental and unsympathetic impact on the character and amenity of this edge of settlement
site, which would result in the overdevelopment of the site so that it would be out of keeping with
the spacious character and pattern of development in the area. While this proposal increases the
number of dwellings proposed, they are however smaller than in the 2014 application. Building
coverage in both applications is virtually identical at approximately 852 sg.m. including garages
which are free-standing in the current scheme and integral in the refused application. The
proximity of Plots 4 and 6 to the site’s boundary with the Green Belt contributed to the
unacceptability of the refused application. In this proposal, it is considered that a better balance
of built forms with landscaped areas can be achieved by providing additional hedges between the
rear gardens along with the planted areas proposed for the fronts of the houses. The larger area
of hardstanding between Plots 3, 4, 5 and 6 in the refused application would be reduced in this
scheme and the smaller buildings in this proposal would result in more gaps particularly between
Plots 1 - 6, allowing glimpses of vegetation through these gaps and so breaking up the mass of
built form within the site.

Considered against the Local Plan, Policy H10 requires new residential development to provide
high standards of design and landscaping while Policy H11 sets out that development should not
introduce a scale which would be incompatible with or cause damage to the character and
amenity of the area. Policy DG1 provides more general design guidance, applicable to both
residential and non-residential development. The interpretation of these policies is assisted by
the Council’'s Townscape Assessment (TA) and the Landscape Character Assessment (LCA).
The site and the adjacent residential properties within the settlement area are classified within a
“leafy residential suburb” townscape character area in the TA, specifically as character area 13A
(Eton and Slough Roads, Datchet), while the adjacent countryside is defined within the LCA as
“settled floodplain farmland”, specifically as landscape character area 13d.

The TA notes that development intensification is one of the forces for change within this
townscape type, and recommends principles to be taken into account in formulating
development proposals within this area, including:

o Retention of mature trees and planning for future planting that allows space for
planting to mature;

o A coordinated approach to new tree planting in terms of species and stature, with

53



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

plantings of larger trees in key visual locations;

o Use of hedging for boundaries in preference to other boundary treatments such as
walls, fences, gates and railings;

o Sensitive contemporary design responding to its immediate context; and

e Use of gravel surfacing for driveways in preference to tarmac and block paving.

With regard to the Green Belt countryside abutting the site, the Landscape Character
Assessment sets out (at paragraphs 3.13.62 and 3.4.6) that the wooded 'greenness’ of the
surrounding Datchet landscape is an important characteristic of the area, and that standardised
housing designs and construction materials, and the densification of housing plots within and on
the fringes of existing settlements can compromise their distinctive characteristics and landscape
setting.

This proposal could result in a more suburban character at the edge of the Green Belt
countryside, and in order to avoid this it is considered that the landscape and townscape
character of the proposal needs to be very carefully managed to ensure that the better
characteristics of both the “leafy residential” townscape and the landscape quality of the adjacent
countryside are not unacceptably eroded. The careful management of this site is therefore of
particular importance in providing an appropriate buffer between those developments and the
Green Belt countryside to the west. This would only be achieved if the selection of appropriate
materials used in hard surfacing and the landscaping provided would reinforce rather than
detract from the area’s character. It is noted that the plots are smaller than those existing
adjacent to the site, and a rural hedge would be provided along the Green Belt boundary. In this
application the ability to reinforce the rural-edge character of the site includes provision in
additional to a hedge on the Green Belt boundary additional hedges between the rear gardens of
the houses, together with a mechanism to ensure that it will be permanently retained. While
landscaping is generally secured by way of a condition, in this case it is considered that the
greater permanence needed to ensure that the positive qualities of this rural edge site requires a
section 106 planning obligation that sets out the responsibilities for maintenance and, where
necessary, replanting of boundary hedges between adjacent property owners. This has been
agreed with the applicant, and the site plan at Appendix B shows the extent of the hedges that
would be protected in the planning obligation. In line with advice in the Townscape Assessment,
planting of larger growing native tree species elsewhere within the development should also be
provided for, and softer gravel driveway surfaces used for as much of the driveways and vehicle
manoeuvring areas as is possible. The design of the houses themselves is stylistically rather
uniform and does not fully follow the TA advice to avoid repetitive design. However, the overall
size of the development is small enough to avoid an unacceptable replication of the same
housing design and the incorporation of a terrace of three houses and another smaller dwelling
at Plot 1 alongside the above landscape measures are considered to provide an acceptable
design solution for the site. Subject to the retention of the rural hedging as provided for by the
section 106 obligation, the first reason for refusal would be satisfactorily overcome.

The mix of housing types and tenure

The applicant has explained that the mix of housing proposed here has been advanced as there
is currently not a strong market for the larger houses approved in the extant permission within
this part of the Borough. A particular benefit of this proposal is the mix of housing that would be
provided, which would include both smaller and mid-sized dwellings. The proposed mix to be
provided is 2 x two-bedroom, 2 x three-bedroom and 5 x four-bedroom houses.

The second reason for refusal in application ref. 14/01778/FULL (copied at 4.5 above) suggested
the potential for providing shared-ownership houses. While this was not required in the extant
permission for four dwellings granted in 2011, the issue was raised again during the assessment
of this application and the first Panel report for the 25" May 2016 Panel meeting set out that a
proportion of the dwellings proposed should be provided as shared ownership housing. The
Panel resolved to request a legal opinion on whether the local planning authority should seek
affordable housing on the site, and this has now been provided by the Council’s solicitors. The
advice given notes that Planning Practice Guidance was recently amended so that residential
developments of ten units or less, which have a combined gross floorspace of no more than 1000

54



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

sg.m, should be excluded from affordable housing levies and tariff based contributions. In this
case, the development is for 9 dwellings, but the floorspace being provided exceeds 1300 sg.m.

The advice sought also requested ownership details for both the application land and that in two
neighbouring sites, 143 and 145 Slough Road (the Datchet Mead Hotel), both of which were
subject to recent applications which have however now been withdrawn (16/00979/VAR and
16/00980/VAR). Title searches have shown that number 143 is under separate ownership, but
that the Datchet Mead Hotel is currently in the same ownership as the application site. (There
has until recently also been an interest in a company by the owners of 143 and 145, but this is of
no effect in this application.) The two sites in the same ownership, numbers 145 and 145A, are
contiguous and share the same access road, and have separate permissions which if
implemented would provide for a total of 16 residential units - 4 houses at the application site
along with 12 flats at the Datchet Mead Hotel site. Taken together, these would have been liable
for provision of affordable housing under Policy H3, although the fact that the planning
applications were made and permission granted separately for the two sites, and perhaps also
because the two applications were made more than two and a half years apart, resulted in this
requirement being overlooked. The current application if granted would result in an increase in
the number of units being provided across the two sites from 16 to 21. It is considered that the
two sites should be considered together for affordable housing purposes, but because the extant
permission for the Datchet Mead Hotel site can be implemented without any requirement for
affordable housing (it was assessed as being under the 15 unit threshold in Policy H3), it is only
the current application that can be considered for affordable housing requirements at this stage.

The applicant has in this case offered to provide three houses comprising Plots 2 - 4 in this
application as shared-ownership affordable housing, and for the above reasons this provision is
fully justified in policy terms. The applicant is working towards signing a section 106 agreement
on this matter, and it is understood that they are aiming to have completed this by the date of the
meeting where this report will be considered. Progress will be reported in an update.

Impacts on protected wildlife

Previous work to identify wildlife habitat at the site included an emergence bat survey that
identified a soprano pipistrelle bat roost in the existing now-derelict house at the site. An updated
preliminary bat survey was undertaken for this application in December 2015 but given that bats
would normally be in hibernation at that time of the year, the applicant’s consultant recommended
a further emergence survey to be undertaken. The agent has advised that two emergence
surveys are intended to be carried during the spring months and both of these have now been
carried out. The first (1% May) survey has shown that there is some activity at the site, including
confirmation of likely occupation of the derelict dwelling by at least one soprano pipistrelle bat as
previously identified. The second emergence survey has also now been undertaken, and the
results are currently being assessed by the Council’s ecologist. Her comments will be provided
in an update report. As noted in the report for the Panel meeting of 25" May, this issue needs to
be resolved by ensuring that the development can be carried out without adversely impacting
bats, before planning permission can be granted. However, it appears highly likely that the
proposals will be able to comply with Natural England’s guidance and that the third reason for
refusal in the 2014 decision would then be overcome. If however the additional survey work does
not overcome the previous objection, the application would need to be refused for that reason.

Preliminary survey results of the remainder of the property suggest that there are no other wildlife
issues that could not be provided for by a condition as recommended in Section 9 below. This
will be covered in an update report.

The remainder of this report remains unaltered from the report to the 25" May meeting,
apart from renumbering of the paragraphs below:

Highways safety and vehicle access

The Highways consultation response for this application originally objected on grounds that the
internal roadway was not wide enough to meet the Council’s standards and that it had not been
demonstrated that a refuse vehicle could turn within the site. The internal road dimensions have
been amended in the updated layout plan being considered, although the issue of refuse vehicle

55



6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

turning space is still being clarified and there is sufficient space within the turning area show on
the submitted plan to enlarge it slightly if necessary. If any further amendment is required it will
be reported in an update. Subject to the conditions sought in the Highways consultation
response being included in any permission, there are no objections to the proposals on highways
or access grounds, and the fourth reason for refusal in the 2014 planning decision has therefore
been overcome.

Off-site infrastructure and amenity improvements

The fifth reason for refusal in the 2014 planning decision related to the provision of infrastructure
and amenities made necessary by the development, through the Council’s then-existing section
106 framework. The provisions of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010
have however prevented seeking pooled Section 106 financial contributions and the fourth
reason for refusal has therefore fallen away.

Flood risk

At the time that the 2010 permission was being considered, the site was classified by the
Environment Agency within Flood Zone 2 (Medium Risk) which places it at a risk of flooding that
is between 1 in 100 and 1 in 1000 annual probability of flooding in any given year. However, for
this application the EA has advised that the site is within the 1% Annual Exceedance
Probability (AEP) (1 in 100 year) plus 20% allowance for climate change flood extent with a
higher risk of flooding than the previous modelling indicated.

In line with national planning guidance, a sequential test assessment and Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) have been submitted with the application. The sequential test assessment
provided for this application shows that the proposals are need to help meet the Borough’s
housing needs. The FRA demonstrates that the development is capable of complying with the
Local Plan Policy F1 requirement that applications in flood-prone areas may only be approved if
they do not (i) put additional people at risk of flooding, (ii) reduce the capacity of the flood plain to
store water and / or (iii) impede the flow of flood water. The FRA shows that a safe flood escape
route can be provided that would allow future residents to escape the site during a severe flood
event, fully satisfying point (i) in the policy. In regard to points (i) and (iii), the provision of
compensatory flood storage areas within the development would ensure that flood plain capacity
is not reduced, and as the site would be at the edge of the flooded area where flood water
velocity would be slow, flood flows would also not be impeded. Condition 10 is required to secure
the compensatory flood storage areas proposed within the FRA, and the Environment Agency
has raised no objection to the proposal in its consultation response subject to the condition being
included. The condition also provides for finished floor levels to be set at the minimum needed
to protect the properties against climate change and for the levels in the flood escape route from
the site (the access roadway) also to be provided.

Where applications in floodable areas demonstrate that the above criteria have or can be met,
residential development proposals must also pass the “exceptions test’, which requires the
application to demonstrate sustainability benefits to the local community. It is noted that the
section 106 infrastructure provisions already secured in the extant permission have been paid.
This includes a contribution towards the Parish Council’s river wall repair and tree replacement
projects, and to a range of other infrastructure provision. The FRA clearly sets out that the
footprint of the proposed scheme is the same as the extant permission which has been
implemented, it is considered that the “exceptions test” requirements would be met for the
application.

The amenities of the neighbouring residents

The dwellings at adjacent properties fronting onto Slough Road all have very long gardens of
about 45 metres or so in depth, and as such the proposal would not result in any significant harm
to the amenities of those properties. Plot 2 - 6 would face towards the rear of the properties on
Slough Road but given that they would be set 14 metres away from their rear boundaries,
window-to-window separation distances of at least 55 metres would be achieved. This is
sufficient to prevent any adverse impact on privacy within the neighbouring dwellings.

56



6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

7.

Trees

There are a number of trees and hedges around the perimeter of the site and which are not
subject to a Tree Preservation Order, but which nevertheless contribute to the character of the
site. A tree survey and constraints plan was submitted during the course of the application and
concerns expressed by the Council’s Tree Officer have been addressed in amended plans. Tree
protection would be provided by condition 2 as recommended below.

Other material considerations

The Environmental Protection Officer has requested a condition on any planning permission in
relation to possible site contamination, and this is recommended as condition 7 below. It is also
usually the case that a condition to require the submission and approval of sound insulation and
ventilation details be included in this location, in order to protect future occupants from
unreasonable levels of aircraft noise, as recommended in condition 8.

While preliminary archaeological investigations were undertaken in response to a condition in the
extant permission, the approved Project Specification included a requirement for second phase
work to be carried out. Given the high potential for significant archaeology in this area and that
the second phase work has not been carried out, condition 5 sets out the standard requirement
for a scheme of archaeological investigation to be submitted and approved prior to the
commencement of any further excavations in connection with the development.

Housing Land Supply

Paragraphs 7 and 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that there will
be a presumption in favour of Sustainable Development. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that
applications for new homes should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and that relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of
deliverable housing sites. The Borough Council cannot demonstrate a 5 year housing land

supply.

It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough’s housing stock
and it is the view of the Local Planning Authority that that the socio-economic benefits of the
additional dwelling(s) would also weigh in favour of the development.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

24 occupiers were notified directly of the application, and the planning officer posted a statutory
notice advertising the application at the site on 5 November 2015.

One letter was received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | Risk of flooding to other properties from loss of flood plain storage 6.15-6.17
2. | The Council has given permission for two apartment blocks adjacentto | 3.4
the site.
3. | Is there any provision for increasing education and local medical 6.12
infrastructure
4. | Concerns about traffic safety from vehicles exiting the development 6.11

57



Statutory consultees

Consultee

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Parish
Council:

No objection subject to their being sufficient parking
facilities and highway concerns on the access to and
from the site being considered.

6.11

Environment
Agency:

No objection to the proposal as submitted. However, the
proposed development will only meet the requirements of
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), if the
following measures are implemented and secured by
way of a PLANNING CONDITION on any planning
permission. Without this condition the proposed
development poses an unacceptable risk to people and
the environment and we would object to the application.
Condition The development permitted by this planning
permission shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) reference
150690/FRA/NJ/01, dated September 2015 and
prepared by LANMOR Consulting and the following
mitigation measures detailed within the FRA:

- Provision of compensatory flood storage as detailed
in the FRA and referenced in the drawing number
150690/FRA/04 titled Proposed Flood Volumes and
included in Appendix C of the FRA

- Finished floor levels will be set no lower than 19.94
metres above Ordnance Datum (AOD)

6.15-6.17

Other consultees and organisations

Consultee

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Highways:

The site just falls into a 30mph zone. Outside the site there
is a 6.4m wide carriageway together with a 2.7m wide
footway adjacent to the site. With regards to the visibility
splays the access can provide 60m to the right (first line of
approach) and 70m to the left with some partial obstruction
with the decorative wall, which is owned by the Datchet
Mead Hotel.

Amended plans now being considered show a roadway of
adequate widths, including a 2.0m wide footpath within the
main part of the site. Refuse lorries and other large
vehicles of similar size would be able to turn within the site
and exit in a forward gear.

The level of parking provided for each unit complies with
the Local Authorities standards and all of the parking
spaces scale to our current standards.

Additional cycle storage should be provided within the rear

6.11

garden for each dwelling. _Acceptable refuse stores and
20




9.

collection points are shown on the submitted plan.

Environment | No objections subject to land contamination studies being 6.20
Protection: undertaken.

Trees: Initial objections have been addressed through the | 6.21
submissions of amended drawings, which include
repositioning of Plots 1 to allow for the retention of one B
category tree that would have been removed, and of Plot 9
to take the dwelling out of the root protection area of one
tree along the boundary.

Ecology: An initial Phase 1 wildlife survey revealed likely occupation | 6.9 - 6.10
of the derelict house by bats and the possibility of badgers
using other parts of the overgrown site. Permission should
not be granted until emergence surveys to ascertain the
presence of bats have been completed and it has been
ascertained whether or not suitable mitigation can be
provided. Conditions are recommended to ensure that
badgers and other mitigated wildlife are not adversely
impacted by the proposals.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A - Site location plan

o Appendix B - layout drawings, elevations and floor plans

o Appendix C - layout drawing for the refused application, ref. 14/01778/FULL
e Appendix D - layout drawing for the extant permission, ref. 10/02486/FULL

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully resolved.

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

In this condition ‘retained tree' means an existing tree which is to be retained in accordance with
the approved Tree Protection Plan and accompanying tree survey details; and paragraphs (i)
and (ii) below shall have effect until the expiration of two years from the date of the occupation of
the building for its permitted use.

i) No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be
topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the
written approval of the local planning authority. Any topping or lopping approved shall be carried
out in accordance with British Standard 3998 (Tree Work).

ii) If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at
the same place and that tree shall be of such size and species, and shall be planted at such
time, as may be specified in writing by the local planning authority.

iii) The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree shall be undertaken in
accordance with the approved plans and particulars before any equipment, machinery or
materials are brought on to the site for the purposes of the development, and shall be maintained
until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing

59



shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground
levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the
written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1 and N6.

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

No demolition shall commence in association with the development until a biodiversity mitigation
strategy, and details of habitat provision / improvements, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The approved mitigation measures shall then be
implemented in their entirety within the timescales approved within the strategy.

Reason: In order to comply with advice in the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

No development shall take place within the area of archaeological interest until the applicant has
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written
scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the continued preservation in situ or by record of any finds made in this area
of archaeological interest. Relevant Policies - Local Plan ARCH2 and ARCH4.

No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used on the external
surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy DG1

Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that required
to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not commence until
clauses (i) to (iv) of this condition have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is
found after development has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected
by the unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in
writing until clause (iv) has been complied with in relation to that contamination.

(i) Site Characterisation:

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning
application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of
any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the
scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation
and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the
findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include:

1. A survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination.
2. An assessment of the potential risks to:
- human health
- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, adjoining land,
- groundwaters and surface waters,
- ecological systems,
- archaeological sites and ancient monuments.
3. An appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of preferred option(s).

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's “Model

60



procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'.

(i) Submission of Remediation Scheme:

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for intended use by
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and
historical environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

(i) Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme:

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the
commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must
be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification
report (validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must
be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

(iv) Reporting Unexpected Contamination:

In the event that contamination is found at anytime when carrying out the approved development
that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the
requirements of clause (i), and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be
prepared in accordance with the requirements of clause (ii), which is the subject of the approval
in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that any contamination within the site is identified and remediated. Relevant
Policies - Local Plan NAP3 and NAP4.

No development shall take place until details of the measures to be taken to acoustically insulate
all habitable rooms of the development against aircraft noise, together with details of measures
to provide ventilation to habitable rooms, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved measures shall be carried out and completed before the
development is first occupied for residential purposes and retained.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable living environment for future occupiers. Relevant Policies
Local Plan NAP2, H10.

No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall
be carried out as approved within the first planting season following the substantial completion of
the development and retained in accordance with the approved details. The details shall include:
(i) a plan showing retained trees;
(i) materials to be used in hard surfaces, in accordance with advice in the RBWM Townscape
Assessment for this Townscape Character Area;
(iii) soft landscaping to include appropriate plantings of heavier grade specimens including
species that are typical of this Townscape Character Area;
(iv) species including plants that are of value as wildlife food sources, numbers, grades and
planting methods for all plantings (and in addition including minimum volumes of soil to be
provided in tree pits to ensure that the species and varieties selected will reach their full potential
on this site);
(v) boundary treatment including hedges and any fences, walls and gates; and
(vi) routing of underground services.
If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree or shrub shown on the
approved landscaping plan, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub planted in replacement for it,
is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes seriously damaged or defective, another
tree or shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the
immediate vicinity, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its prior written consent to any
variation.

61



10

11

12

13

14

15

Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

The flood mitigation measures provided for in the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA)
reference 150690/FRA/NJ/O1 rev. B, dated September 2015 and prepared by LANMOR
Consulting and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA shall be fully
implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the timing / phasing
arrangements embodied within the FRA unless otherwise agreed in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved measures include:

- Provision of compensatory flood storage as detailed in the FRA and referenced in the
drawing number 150690/FRA/04A Proposed Flood Volumes and included in Appendix C of the
FRA.

- Finished floor levels to be set no lower than 19.94m Above Ordnance Datum (AOD).

All void openings and spaces shall be kept free and clear of any obstructions for the lifetime of
the development; void spaces may not be used for any other purpose including storage, other
than for the temporary storage of flood water.

The internal access road shall be raised to a minimum of 19.5m AOD to provide a safe escape.
Reason: To ensure that the development prevents increasing flood risk on-site or elsewhere by
ensuring that a satisfactory compensatory storage of flood water is provided, and that it will be
appropriately flood resistant and resilient. Relevant Policies Local Plan F1 and paragraph 103 of
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

No development shall commence until details of all finished slab and roof levels in relation to
ground level (against OD Newlyn) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy - Local Plan DG1.

No development shall take place until details of sustainability measures have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall demonstrate how the
development would be efficient in the use of energy, water and materials in accordance with the
Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary
Planning Document. The development shall be carried out and subsequently retained and
maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that measures to make the development sustainable and efficient in the use
of energy, water and materials are included in the development and to comply with the Royal
Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary Planning
Document.

No other part of the development shall commence until the access has been constructed in
accordance with the approved drawing. The access shall thereafter be retained.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5, DG1

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking and turning space has been
provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the approved drawing. The hard surface
vehicle access and parking area shall be made of porous materials and retained as such, or
provision shall be made and retained to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable
or porous area or surface within the curtilage of the property. The space approved shall then be
kept available for parking and turning in association with the development.

Reasons: (i) To reduce surface water run-off in compliance with Requirement 5 of the Royal
Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary Planning
Document. (ii) To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in
order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of
traffic and to highway safety, and to facilitate vehicles entering and leaving the highway in
forward gear. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4 and DG1.

No construction shall commence until details of the external appearance and materials to be
used in the construction of the refuse bin storage area and recycling facilities have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These facilities shall be

62



16

17

18

19

20

21

provided before the first occupation of the dwellings that they serve and then kept available for
use in association with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate facilities that allow it to be
serviced in a manner which would not adversely affect the free flow of traffic and highway safety
and to ensure the sustainability of the development, and which are commensurate with the
intended quality of the development. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5 and DG1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle parking facilities
have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These facilities shall thereafter be kept available for the
parking of cycles in association with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7, DG1

Irrespective of the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 1995 (or subsequent madifications thereof), no doors may be added to the fronts of
carports without the written permission of the Local Planning Authority, and the car port and
garage accommodation on the site shall be kept available for the parking of vehicles associated
with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the site retains an appropriate balance between built form and open
areas, and that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to reduce
the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and to
highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1 and P4.

No further window(s) shall be inserted at first floor level or in the roof in the side elevation of Plot
7 facing 139 and 139A Slough Road without the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring residents.

Other than any demolition materials that are re-used in the construction of the approved
dwellings, all materials resulting from the demolition of the existing dwelling shall be removed
from the site within one month of the practical completion of the development or first occupation
of any of the approved dwellings whichever is the sooner.

Reason: To ensure that no debris is left on the site that could result in lower flood storage
capacity and to ensure a satisfactory form of development. Relevant Policies - Local Plan F1,
DG1 and H11.

Irrespective of the provisions of Classes A, B and E of Part 1 and Class A Part 2 in Schedule 2 of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or
any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no enlargement,
improvement or any other alteration (including the erection of any ancillary building within the
curtilage) of or to any dwelling house and no erection, construction, maintenance, improvement
or alteration of a gate, fence, wall or other means of enclosure other than in accordance with the
approved plans or with details approved in accordance with conditions of this permission shall be
carried out without planning permission having first been obtained from the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: The site is in flood plan and located adjacent to the Green Belt boundary, and strict
control over the form of any additional development which may be proposed in required.
Relevant Policies - Local Plan F1, DG1 and H11.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

63



Datchet Mead
Cottage

U

w P SR
‘n %%ﬁ%&
o % 4 TN

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

DRAWN

00 Sep ‘1S Issued for approval

CLIENT
Howarth Homes

DRAWING TITLE

Site Location Plan

PROJECT No DWG TYPE DWG No REV SCALE
PROJECT 202 PL 010 00 1:1250 @ A4
145A Slough Road DATE DRAWN CHECKED STATUS
Datchet 28/09/2015 DB BW For approval
Caste Hill House, 12 Castle Hili, Do not scale drawings. Use only the dlmensions given, The Coatractor to

Windsor, Berkshire, SL4 1PD
€ +44 (0) 1753 839460 f; +44 {(0) 1753 831113
www.WaMarchitecture.com

64

check site dimenslons and report any varlations or omisslons to Witlcox R N
nd Mellwes. The drawing is Copyright of Willcox and Meliwes and must ‘{{ I B I\ zﬁi}
not be reproduced or used without express permission. £




o ] e e wme s DuiLURid Aseauswalddng

PN } 9bpon saouabipu] man

.
- 9

West Field

Ackprig 3
Buiipoy SAvuapy: wy

65



W Ydld

g
R

sy G v

BRI A

C1ERER €54 HH Fre 3 DVOHHLLAT Db vver 3

s
S iney

£Y ® 001:1

3135

00

Mg
GRADIHD

30€

on DM

SI0Z/60/91

uva

z0t

peoy 4bnois vspt
BYAey

L>ac0dd

SBWOH YHeMOH
ANIND

W

H

wot ws wo

LT

NOLLITHISHY VO AZN

GdAL MO o LIaroud
suONRAR( T N
FILL ORIMVES

o (Bt

L

5

(e 53m) NOLLYATTE WY

s R

R, 7
. &W& .
o e

o o .
..
Lo m\m\\%% .

o

{Bue) 3se3) NOLIVAZTE LNOYS

M-

T T

.
N

N

L

66




M VY

pUIeq

o s
tenoidde Jof ST0Z/60/L0
snavis QIO Nmvaa awva peoy YBNoIS YT
£7 @ 00T' T 00 002 Id 0T 13t0U8d
Faield ATy ON DT 3dAL 2MC ON 1330044
SuBjd 100}4 PESOUOLd - T JuA SOUUOH YIIReMOH 31 sreuda oy peme 41,95 06
L oNimvEa nana NMVET NOILLAI¥DS3IA 3LVA A3Y

RN Y

ruas

NV1d 4004

7 WO0¥a3g

ONIANYT

NY1d 34004 1Sdld

T

(sm0sep)
1 WOOYQ38

NY1d 40074 ANNOYO

WOOY ONINIG
INSHOLIN




Bupueyd Jo) ponas) 1S Q0

oy B

o Va R LINSMEST I s | e e s O

o SUsia 351 K100 95N SOMED HEY? 30U 00 i Ssen 7

leaolddy M8 ea  510Z/60/91 peoy YBnos ySpT

SnivLS QINDIHD NIMYET 3iva ®yeg

£V ® 001°1 00 Z0€ 14 [4sr4n: FEEr
Ealeid AY ON 2MT FdAL OMa ON 103C0Yd .
SUOIIRARIT PR £ ‘T 3N | SPUWICH YLIEMOH w

ANIITD

UL ONIMVEG

Nmvaa

NOLSdINDSIA 3LVG Add

(BulaRy LBNOS) NOLIYAZTE 3415

e

PR

e

(Bue; I59M) NOLLIYATT. ¥y

e
-
.

N
= - RN

i
S

.
.

-
Y s S
X N .
e
/,74

o

.




9 sssua 100
0 buAcos

%0 10 paIPOKDS AQ 100 |
OID MYy SIRGI D

wo
£11188 €541 (0} v+ 13 O

IR AR A

A VA T D L s T X
01 J0MCAUCD T4t UDAIG SUCIEUDRAD DUs AIUO ISN “SOUMEID DIEIS 10U O ‘e s
jenoiddy Mme 80 S102/60/9T peoy ubnois vspb1
SOLVLS GANDIND NMYEG 31va dBY2Ieg
€Y @ 0011 00 £0g d 0T 103608
NS A3Y ON 9Ma 3dAL OMa ON 1D33(0¥d |

SuOIRARIT § HUN |
I oNIMvIG

SSWOH YUMo
ANITD

burued 0y 207 S7.895

NMVG

NOLLIN3S3A 3LVE

ARy

-

SR

S
SRS

HK

a

Sl e
Sonia

-

- (Bupes15IM) NOLLYAZIE Hv3Y

i

i \\\W\\& it

%M%MM mxv =

N

-




o - wormmpRAL e
@« Vand T g samials DU €06 £521 (0) vt %5 0996E8 £521 (0) ber 3
AV -4 XOIHIM O3 SUOISSIWO. & BT $TS “DUINSHIIG "OSPUIM
QY IOIRAOD WYL U R “IHH SR5ED TT "ISNOH IHH ORSRY
jeacidde Jol Mg 80 5102/60/62 Byseq
snuns LENCENCY Nmvaa 3wva peoy ybno|s ysy1
€Y ® 001:T 00 7z 1d [4174 103c0ud
VIS A3Y¥ ON 9MaQ 3dAL DMa ON 132(0¥e
SuR|4 J00l4 pesOdodd - § UM SBWOH YUBMOH 5 (ensicde 103 porsst 51,008 06
TILLL ONIMVEO ANITD
Nmvag NOILAINJS3Q VA A

& 1

NV1d 4004 NY1d 40074 LSAIH NV1d 40014 ANNOYD
I
i

N A

WOO¥a3g

// WOOY

\ ONINIG
g

=T

ONIGNY /za,wu_,_ba

|

B o] i SRy
o |

vt
4
| (1521}

T WOO0¥a3g

>.E>_<u_\2m_._utv0
IQC:
o E

WOOYA3g

70



VAN

SO>I LI M

CI1EB €521 (0) vy - €527 10} pb 33
NSHISG ISP

lenosddy me ad  S10Z/60/91

peoy UBnois VST

s

snivis QINDTHD NMYYQ 31va Jaymeq
€Y © 00T: T 00 1243 d 4024 1030084
3vos Ay ON OMT 3dAl OIMT ON L33(0¥d N
SuoIIRARES § WUN SIWOH YMeMOH we Suner o ponist ST o
FULL ONIRWVAG ANITD rna [

#

.
G

(BurRy o) NOTLYATTZ 3QIS

{Bui) \BNos) NOTIVATT

-+ (BUe) IDM). NOTLVATIA WV -

g

S

..

i

R
S

-

71

S

N

.
.

L
L

T
R
L

-

S




£IT1E8 £527 (D) ¢

. wofsssi08 552104 O POUS 10 GRONDOLCR 0 10
e ( m s e e
oD oat ol

jenoidde 1og me S102/60/6Z

SMLYLS CIXDIRD 34va

€Y ® 00131 00 €0z d z0¢

VIS AN ON 9Ma 3dAL oma ON 123(0ud

Suejq J60]4 pasodold - 9 Jiun

FuLs sntmva

1BYdleq
peoy ybnols vsyT

123c08d

SOWOH YHEMOH
Nar

[encidde 10y pansE] §T,095 00

NMYHG

NOILJI¥ISIA 31VQ AZH

NV1d 4003

N Z

NV1d 400714 1Syl

VEAN

Z WOOuA38

¥ WOONQ38

S
7

N

(sor5e1) //,| u

T WOOY¥a38

\,///

ONIGNYT N
5

i \

.\\ -

=& L

\ \

€ WOOUQa3!

v —
% _ e

7

NV1d 400714 ONNOYUD

Qﬁ?&m\ N3 IU.EV_

e

12



“uoIssad 5K IN0YIM PISR J0 PANPRUAIL BA J0U |
VI Ry SN o P AT
o or Sl 5 e At oy 0 50050 248 PN

o e Sek vonl o S WS Shoe s SO 00 0

|eaosddy Mg aa  $102/60/9%1

CIRUCE €521 {0) o 5h OIVSER €521 (D) b+ 3
Q41 15 "Auskaag "ISPLIN
YU IBSED 21 “ISUOH (14 HISPD

peoy ybnois vs1

snuvis asA2IHD Nmvaa awva hETR Ty

£y ® 001°T 00 s0g d 207 | 13coud
3wos A3y onoma 34aL 9Ma ON 1D3C0¥s | R . -
SUOIRADIZ 68 8 ‘L 3N SIWOH YHeMOH w Snsacid sog penssy 51958 00

F1LLL ONIMVYG | IN3DD
: NMWHT NOILII¥DSRQ JAVa ARM

e
s

- S ! L N
S > : i : //%
- - . . w/%%/%%f

R AR L 5 B -

NN

SEY

S




HVAIY

0D SUL "UDMD SUDISUILULD DU AUD TS) "SEUIMSID AE3S 10U 6

022D MM
251 (0) vt 23

_m>,o._,anm 104

€Y ® 00T: 1

2125

SNLVLS

00

A2n

ma 840 S102/60/62
QNN nmvig ave
v0Z d 4114
oN oMa 3dALOMa oN 1D3c0Ud

sue|q 004 pasodoid - £ HUN
FTLLL DNIMVHED

peoy YBMoIS YSp1

159(0%d

SBWOH YemoH
ANIID

fenasade sy Bonssi S1.995 00

Nmvag

NOLLJI¥ISIA 3LVA AZY

NY1d 4004 NV1d 40014 1Sy NV1d Y0014 ANNOYUD

74

u , " oninIg
M - /AGNLS
i TIvH
. ¥ WOO¥a38 \ JONVEINI
ZWOO¥Q38 .. /,/ o
/ : -
. B ONIGNV
- g 7 5
woowHwa ,.
L -
o [— , ,
> \ ; W/
- owﬁmzw/, S .
| oNISS3¥a TWOO¥G38 1 ¢ oouaas .
. = ¥ = - |
T\ I W
| L
\\m N u %
| JUNSNI | = .
1 Sy




$E VDY v v TR
. e “IliH ORSED TT ISNOH JItH IR
teaoidde Jog me 80 §102/60/6T 12ud3eq
snuvas apioIHD Nmvia 31va peoy ybnojs vsp1
£Y ® 0011 Qo 50T d 202 133008
FVIS A3d ON OMa FdAL oma ON LJI(0¥d
sue|d 400l4 pasododd ~ 8 Juf SOWOH Y3EMOH P Jonudde 0; po05SE SEL0S 00
31111 ONIMYYC ENIXTDY
NMYSa NOILL4INDSIA ILVQ AJY

NV1d 4004 NV1d 40014 1SyId NY1d 0014 ANNOYUD
*

/" onmug
~7 jaanis

TIvH
i 3ONVYING

. ¥ WOOuG38
//

ONIANYT

Cmﬁm_)v//ﬁ | A ,

T WOO¥Q38 £ WOO¥Q3g

WOOHY

. . wm

75



e “uoissiundd SSHITXR INCUIM PISN 10 PINPOILRS 3 J0U WO ARISILICLLOM AN
ww% / m m MW 150 puE 53K D EETIEH €527 (0) bF+ 4 09568
N N XDl 0 SUBHSSILO 10 adt $I§ ‘34
93 408931U0D |, LING WP auy Ao 250 *sBuMelp dfeds Jou og M DRSO 2T
jenc.idde Jog md 8a  §T07/60/62 PBYIRQ
i snuvis LERCENY Nmvia avae peoy Ubnols ysut
; €Y @ 0011 oo 90¢ d F4ir4 1oac08d
ERlpid A3d ON DM FdAL DMA ©ON 123(0¥d
suejd 400}4 pasodold - 6 N SBUWOH YlJemoH ) \enidde oy pansel 57,05 00
ALIL ONIMYHQ ANITD
RMViQ NOILJINDSIC ILVC AR

NV1d 4004 NVY1d Y0074 LSyId NY1d ¥OOT4 ANNOYUD

AR
7
o

L

» \ ONINIG w

/Aanis

-—

i

. ¥ WOO¥G38 FONVULNG

i .

v
| T WOON038 - // .
. / — .
X £ v

&

= B ONIGNV A
m m WOO¥HLYS \\ - [

=
i \ &
cﬂmm;w/l__ﬁu i .

ONISSIAA PWOOYAAE  —H ¢ woouaas .

=

Y

R

.

]
\

AN
=

WOOoY

I

3LINSN3

L

Q
&
E
L
L

)

N -

76



a

-

e

3

PPEND 1%

A ﬁ

©

/

J13HOLYQ 'S3DV.LLOD QVEW L3HOLYA Ysbi

S3LVYD

JONVHINT d350d40H

SALVO o
SONVUING ASNVULNG
VIO NYIIS30d

13HOLVG 'S3DVLIOD OVAW ISHOLVA VGrt

iy

18 © BdgAL
42 - Z3dAL
17z - L3AdAL

OB M R WAL TS0 T SR Ty

NOLVYJOWNODOY 40 F1NA3H0S

SYAHY QI Yl ONY SHIVALO04 INOIS OV
QvOR SSIVOV IFAVHD GILOVAWOD TIVENE3d
SATMING] J1YARd QL SENOIAYY #0018 JIgvIAEd

F0N34 YIGNLL H 8L G308Y08 35010

H38NIL QALNIYY SHOOQ ONY SMOANIM
HHOMAGIE L3OV VS $ HSINIG UZONTH - §1VM
HSINIS 300 31Y18 TWHNLYN - 4004

STIVIHILYIN

NV'1d 318 d350d0dd

173 N0B g S ANYCE
s & =

ON §3

puspoys | umesp 10

GL/90/v Y0021 7102 e

saquny oreas siep

uelg Ig pasodosy

aqn Sumeip

13ualeq
peoy ybnojg
sabejjo) pesi 1aydleq vy

1ojose

abpay Ampuroq i
30UB} i U s ') MU

Py

NS/98¥20/01 43l
UIBYOS PejUasUoo
iiiiii Asnoinaid jo su)

pusbeT




SCALE 1:250
SCALE 1:100

AEPENDIX D,

© e
Z|
£ ] - 2]
2 = Q o
g = o e . ¥
g . \
° 2 o S 4
Bg. %1 Q \ 0
THEREE g \ ) o
@ > (6§41 £5 2
w a E <8 [
w 2o O}z 5
8 Gz Ql i
& ) | Py
w £ 3 g3
< a5 Sl
o 2 Eé w3
T 242p°% | oI
il E¥a3BZ | At
m 202800 | @y
B s3888g Bl 5EEs
=l 255282 E:

;
E fs

= - el

Ts R

-4 £ ¢

55 3

£ bt ¢

w 3 HE

22 gz

4 =
23

)

53
3
3

fnew 2.4 m high rendered wall with plors with painted
! gates to ian and vehiculor ac

2 8 8
s H & z
8 ' &
g 8
5 20y S
8 re o] 2
sf g3 2]
=7 =§
EZ 88
2
35
&3z

DATCHET MEAD COTTAGE DEVELOPMENT
DATCHET MEAD COTTAGE DEVELOPMENT

SITE PLAN

O] 5 @ -

£ £ < "

= S FRY w e

I % : 8 ﬁDz:

-

o g 8 e

) w wl © « I

< = =

O £ 5.2 @ma

z =z S LR -

< w it =

H Z cd | @ n>-

'R zZ e 28] ¢ =
) 5% 1381 g z i
2z 53w @ S N a 3"
S sHEEE |11 5 E

5§ N tisod s a o o

=3




WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

20 July 2016 ltem: 3

Application 15/03465/FULL

No.:

Location: Street Record Shirley Avenue Windsor SL4 5LH

Proposal: Erection of residential development of 93 dwellings including 2 x 2 bed, 4 x 3 bed
houses, 25 x 1 bed, 57 x 2 bed and 5 x 3 bed flats, refuse and cycle stores, with new
road and pavements/cycleways with parking (surface and underground) and amenity
space, hard and soft landscaping, ancillary works following demolition of all existing
commercial buildings.

Applicant: Medina Property Limited

Agent: Mr M Carter- Carter Planning Ltd

Parish/Ward: Clewer North Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Alistair De Joux on 01628 685729 or at
alistair.dejoux@rbwm.gov.uk

11

1.2

13

1.4

15

1.6

SUMMARY

The site is within a protected employment site in the RBWM Local Plan and there is therefore an
objection in principle to the development of this site for wholly residential purposes.

The proposals as put forward would result in detrimental impacts on residential occupiers to the
south, in East Crescent, at 52 Vale Road, and on an approved but as yet unimplemented
residential proposal at Vale House, to the north of the site.

The layout of the proposed development and quality of the design of individual buildings is not of
sufficient quality to justify a development of the density proposed.

The proposals would result in a loss of a community facility.

The proposal will result in a lower number of vehicle trips to and from the site, so this is a direct
benefit of the proposals. However, this does not overcome the other objections. Some
adjustments to cycle and bin stores would be required in order to provide a fully acceptable
layout.

The site is in a floodable area. However, a Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted which
satisfactorily addresses the flood issues in the development, and the ‘sequential test’ assessment
has been addressed. The development is also able to meet the ‘exceptions test’ requirement of
in the National Planning Practice Guidance.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 10 of this report):

1. | Shirley Avenue is an identified employment area allocated primarily for industrial and
small scale distribution and storage uses. It has not been demonstrated that the loss of
this site to the alternative use of housing would not harm industrial land supply within the
Borough and the local economy.

2 | The height and scale of buildings within the proposed development together with the
location of windows overlooking adjacent properties result in significant and demonstrable
detrimental impacts on the residential amenities of occupiers to the south of the site, in
East Crescent and at 52 Vale Road, and in additional on Plots 13 and 14 within an
approved but as yet unimplemented residential proposal at Vale House, to the north of the
site.

3 | The layout of the proposed development and the quality of the design of individual
buildings is not of sufficient quality to justify a development of the density proposed, and
would fail to take the opportunity available for high quality design in the proposed

79




3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

redevelopment. This would result in significant and demonstrable harm to the character of
the area which would not be outweighed by the provision of additional housing stock to
the Borough. Additional work is also required to ensure that details such as workable
cycle and bin store layouts are provided, and that they are appropriately located within the
development.

4 | The proposals would result in a loss of a community facility.

5 | By reason of the reliance on obscure glazing of habitable room windows to avoid direct
overlooking of neighbouring properties from some of the habitable rooms within the
development, the proposals would not provide a sufficient standard of amenities for all
future occupiers of the development. In addition the provision of some single aspect flats
on the north side of Building C would result in those flats receiving no sunlight.

6 | Failure to secure provision for off-site infrastructure and amenity improvements directly
related to the development

7 | Failure to secure affordable housing

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

¢ At the request of Councillor Collins, for the reason that the development is different to what
was made available at a public exhibition prior to the submission of the application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site forms the south-eastern part of the Shirley Avenue - Vale Road Industrial
Area, which is a protected employment site in the RBWM Local Plan. It consists of six buildings
which are located to either side of Shirley Avenue. The eastern boundary is shared with the
Clewer Memorial Recreation Ground and the southern boundary with residential properties at 52
Vale Road and 36 - 60 East Crescent (even number range). To the north of the site and also
within the designated employment area, there is a medical centre on the Vale Road frontage,
with industrial buildings on the balance of the land that is included in the two sites noted above in
the recent Housing Assessment and Employment Land documents. On the opposite side of Vale
Road there are residential flats, which are three stories high adjacent to the street frontage (four
storeys to the rear of this development), and the Sandown Park Care Home which is largely
three-storeys in height but rises to four storeys towards the corner of Hanover Way, directly
opposite the junction of Shirley Avenue with Vale Road.

The buildings at the application site are in a mix of commercial uses. One building within the
group, Technor House, has a D2 community use as noted in Section 3 below.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The proposal is to demolish the existing buildings at the site and construct five blocks of flats and
two short terraces each consisting of three houses. The buildings would be arranged along both
sides of Shirley Avenue, extending from close to the Vale Road frontage towards the site’s
eastern boundary with Clewer Memorial Recreation Ground.

The buildings are identified as Buildings A through to F, as follows:

On the south side of Shirley Avenue and the public footpath to the Memorial Recreation Ground:

- Building A would be three-storey located in approximately the same position as the existing
Howden’s joinery building, providing twelve flats (6 x 1-bedroom and 6 x 2-bedroom). This
would be located to the north of the closest existing residential neighbour, 52 Vale Road.

- Two short terraces each of three houses would provide a total of 2 x 2-bedroom and 4 x 3-
bedroom dwellings, and are identified as ‘B’ on the layout plan. These are located in the
approximate position of the existing Technor House, and to the north and rear of properties
at 46 — 58 East Crescent (even numbers only). The terraces would be set perpendicular to
Shirley Avenue in a mirrored layout pair that provides vehicular access between the two

80



terraces, with the smaller houses to be two-storeys high adjacent to the boundary with
properties in East Crescent, rising to three stories for the remaining houses.

- Building C would be located at the south-eastern corner of the site, towards the Clewer
Memorial Ground boundary and to the north of 36, 38 and 40 East Crescent. The public
footpath from the eastern end of Shirley Avenue to the Memorial Ground would be located to
the north of this building, which would rise from three stories for the more southern part of the
building, adjacent to the East Crescent residential properties, rising to five storeys adjacent
to the footpath. It would accommodate 11 x 1-bedroom and 8 x 2-bedroom flats.

4.4 On the north side of Shirley Avenue and the public footpath to the Memorial Recreation Ground:

- Building D would accommodate 15 x 2-bedroom and 5 x 3-bedroom flats over five storeys of
accommodation, located directly north of Building C and to the north of the public footpath, in
approximately the same location as the existing premises of Windsor Vehicle Leasing. The
closest residential neighbours, if built, would be two detached houses in the approved but as
yet unimplemented development at Vale House, 100 Vale Road (at present, this area is
occupied by a paved yard with the existing employment premises).

- On the western side of Building D, there are two rights of way serving properties to the north,
and these would be retained with the space between them to be provided as an amenity
space to be available for the use of all occupiers in the development.

- Building E would be further westwards on this side of Shirley Avenue on part of the existing
Medina Dairy site. accommodating 20 x 2-bedroom across five storeys.

- Building F would be located adjacent to the Vale Road frontage of the site, also on part of the
existing Medina Dairy site. This building would accommodate 15 x 2-bedroom and 5 x 3-
bedroom flats over four levels of accommodation.

4.5 Buildings A and F are intended to be shared ownership housing, providing 14 x 1-bedroom and14
X 2-bedroom in this tenure.

4.6 The properties within the application site have the following relevant planning history:

Technor House:

Description Decision and Date
Reference Description Decision and Date
05/00759/COU | Change of Use of premises to Islamic education and Refused but
community facility with a prayer room subsequently granted
on appeal

08/00908/VAR | Use as an Islamic education and community facility | Permitted, 14.07.2008
with a prayer room with variation of Condition 3 of
appeal permission 05/00759 so that generated noise
shall not exceed the background noise level by more
than 5dB

Depot on corner with Vale Road:

04/84801/COU | change of use from warehouse and offices to | Refused, 10.03.2004
children’s play area (D2)

04/85471/COU | change of use from warehouse and offices to | Refused, 17.08.2004
children’s play area (D2). Resubmission of 04/84801

04/01234/COU | change of use of premises from B8 (warehouse and | Refused, 30.11.2004
office) to D2 (Children’s adventure play centre).

Howdens Joinery Ltd, Unit 1:

14/00652/DEM | pemolition of the Joinery showroom workshop and | Prior approval not
stores, two storey to Vale Road with rear single storey | required, 13.03.2014
storage area off Shirley Avenue

81




5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework Sections 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and Decision-taking

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Loss of High Noise Highways
. Protected . :

employment risk of Trees pollution | /Parking

land flooding issues

Local Plan ES5

Fl N6 NAP3 T5, P4

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

e Planning Obligations and Developer Contributions
e Interpretation of Policy F1 — Area Liable to Flood
e Sustainable Design and Construction

e Planning for an Ageing Population

More information on these documents can be found at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

RBWM Landscape Character Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
RBWM Townscape Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm
RBWM Strategic Flood Risk Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

Vi

Vii

viii

The principle of redevelopment of the site for residential use;
Relationships to neighbouring residents and occupiers;

Scale, site layout, building design and landscaping;

Site density;

Flood risk issues;

The mix of housing types and tenure, including affordable housing;
Loss of community use;

The amenity of future residents of the building; and

The adequacy of car parking and the impact on highway safety in the area.

82



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

The principle of redevelopment of the site for residential use

The application site is within the Shirley Avenue - Vale Road Industrial Area, which is a protected
employment site as identified by RBWM Local plan E2. Local Plan Policy E5 seeks to resist
changes of use within these areas to use classes other than B1(c), B2 and B8. The employment
area as identified in the Local Plan maps is bisected by Vale Road, and all of the land within the
western part of the site has been redeveloped for residential use and a care home, Sandown
Park, or in the case of one site is the subject of planning permissions for residential
redevelopment (the Drain Centre, Teradyne Building, Hanover Way, ref. 14/03416/FULL and
15/01079/LEG). In contrast, the whole of the employment land on eastern side of Vale Road
remains in employment uses, although the Vale House site on the northern end of this area has
planning permission for redevelopment with fourteen houses (RBWM ref. 14/02975/FULL and
subsequent permissions). The application site shares a 52m long section of its northern
boundary with that site.

Consultation was undertaken in the Borough Local Plan Preferred Options consultation in 2014
on the possible removal of the employment designation for the whole of the protected
employment area, and for the possible designation of the protected land on the eastern side of
Vale Road for housing or mixed uses. (references Employment Site Assessments December
2013, site REM9, and Housing Sites Assessments, January 2014). The Preferred Options
consultation presented a mixed picture on the principle of releasing the Vale Road employment
land for housing or mixed uses, with representations both for and against the allocation of the
land on the eastern side of Vale Road for either housing or for mixed uses including a significant
residential component.

More recently, the Draft Borough Local Plan has been released for discussion (June 2016). This
includes Shirley Avenue as an allocated housing site.

The NPPF paragraph 216 advises that weight may be given to the relevant policies in emerging
plans according to:

e The stage of preparation (the more advanced, the greater the weight that may be
given).

e The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objection, the greater the weight that may be given).

o The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the NPPF
(the closer the emerging policies to the NPPF, the greater the weight they may be
given).

At this stage it is not considered that any weight can be given to the draft Borough Local Plan. It
is accepted that draft policy BLP13 sets out allocated housing sites with Shirley Avenue
identified as site HA19 but the application stands to be determined now. As such, it is
considered that there is an objection in principle to the development of this site for wholly
residential purposes.

Relationships to neighbouring residents and occupiers

The proposal would result in unacceptable relationships for adjacent residential properties from
several of the buildings due to their scale and proximity to common boundaries and overlooking,
as follows:

Building A, a three storey building, would be located some 5m from the northern boundary with
52 Vale Road, and 10m from the rear boundary of 60 East Crescent. In the amended plans
under consideration, some of the habitable room windows have been deleted from the southern
elevation, but the height of the building itself at 10.8m would be over dominant in relation to this
neighbouring property. Evergreen screening along the northern side of the rear garden would
assist in mitigating this dominance for as long as it remains in place, (although it could however
be subject to an application for its removal under the High Hedges Act from future occupiers at
Building A so its continued existence cannot be guaranteed). Windows and balconies (including
Juliet balconies) in the eastern elevatiﬁapf the building would however overlook occupiers in



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

their gardens in East Crescent, number 60 being the worst affected. Minimum separation
between habitable room windows would be 40m (again, for number 60), and being at an acute
angle this would be sufficient to protect against unacceptable loss of privacy within dwellings at
East Crescent. Overlooking of residents using their rear gardens would however be more
pronounced.

Buildings B1 and B2, the group of six houses, have been designed to step down towards the
East Crescent boundaries, and are considered to protect the amenities of these properties (refer
to 6.18 below for comments on the design as viewed from these neighbouring dwellings).

At Building C, a part-three, part-four and part-five three storey building, the lowest element would
be 8.5m to the eaves of a monopitch roof which rises to 10m high, with the south-facing wall
located some 3.5m from the northern (rear) boundaries of 36, 38 and 40 East Crescent. The
highest five-storey element would be 17.4m high and approximately 16m from these boundaries,
while a shorter four-storey element would be up to 13.5m high and would be set 8.5m to 10.5m
off the rear boundary at number 40. Windows in the closest element would serve a kitchen /
living room (obscure glazed) and a bedroom on each of the ground, first and second floors, and
in the four-storey element kitchen / living rooms at first, second and third floor levels. At fifth floor
level, the East Crescent properties would be subject to overlooking in glimpses from the roof
terrace, although this could be overcome through adjustments in the adjacent roof height and / or
screening. However, neither this nor the obscure glazing of a kitchen / living rooms in the three
storey element would be sufficient to overcome the overdominance and overlooking from this
building. In addition, west-elevation balconies on first, second and third floors would result in
views to the rear of other East Crescent properties.

Building D would also be a part-three, part-four and part-five storey building. While the overall
footprint of this building is larger than that at Building C, the heights of the elements are similar to
those noted above for Building C, with the lowest element on the north side of the building and a
monopitch roof reducing in height towards this boundary. As noted at 6.2 above, this property
has an extant permission for 14 houses; Plots 13 and 14 at this site would be directly to the north
of Building D with the minimum separation of approximately 7m from the three-storey element’s
to the flank wall at Plot 14, and bedroom windows at ground, first, second and third floor levels
overlooking the area of rear garden closest to the house at a minimum horizontal distance of 6m.
Balconies on the north-east corners of the building at first, second and third floor levels would
also overlook the rear garden at Plots 14; Plot 13 would also be overlooked from all of these
vantage points from a minimum distance of 15m. While the Vale Road development has not
been implemented, the location of a large building in this location would severely compromise the
future amenities of Plots 13 and 14.

Building E (five stories) would also have a range of north-facing windows and balconies facing
the Vale House site, although the presence of industrial buildings between the two sites and the
distance, which is over 30m from the flank wall of the closest approved property, Plots 6 and 11,
mitigate these impacts to some extent. Nevertheless there will be some actual and perceived
over looking, particularly of the rear gardens at those properties.

Building F would also have a range of windows on the north side facing the Vale Road
development. However, the presence of industrial buildings between the two sites and the
increased separation distance would mitigate these impacts.

Buildings A and F (both three storeys) would face the Sandown Park Care Home, with separation
distances of over 25m. In the context of this active street frontage, it is considered that this is
sufficient to mitigate impacts of views between habitable room windows. It is also considered
that there are no amenity considerations arising for the occupiers of non-residential buildings
immediately to the north of the site.

In summary, the proposals would result in poor relationships with neighbouring properties, and
the very significant and demonstrable impacts on existing and approved properties is such that
this application is recommended for refusal.

Scale, site layout, building designh and landscaping

84



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

The redevelopment of the site presents an opportunity for ‘place making’ of a high quality. It is
imperative therefore that the various elements of the development should be fitted together in a
way that presents a coherent whole. The application has aimed to achieve that through a
consistent pallet of materials. However, the various elements of the development - houses, a
shared amenity space, and flats of varying scales together with their ancillary bin and cycle
stores - have been fitted together in a disparate fashion. The above consideration of impacts
on neighbours also makes it clear that the scale of some of the buildings is unacceptable. The
layout is considered unacceptable for the following reasons:

On the Vale Road frontage, Buildings A and F are aligned to the front building line of the
industrial buildings to the north, which now accommodate a fitness centre immediately adjacent
to the site, a doctors surgery and Vale House to the north of that. While the doctor’s surgery
incorporates high quality design features it is single storey as is the fitness centre, which in its
appearance clearly shows its origins as a single storey building. Vale House, while two-storeys,
is as already noted subject to permission for housing, and this would establish a tighter
relationship to the Vale Road frontage with three new houses. The existing buildings to the north
do not therefore constitute the best future arrangement of buildings at Shirley Avenue, and it is
considered that any buildings in the locations of Building A and F should face Vale Road square-
on, to establish a new street frontage for the development.

For Shirley Avenue itself, the closest building to the junction would be Building F. Its entrance
faces Shirley Avenue, but from a point directly in front of it the entrance itself would not be visible,
as this is the location chosen for the bin and cycle store for this building. In contrast, Building A
does address the Shirley Avenue frontage more successfully in this respect; however the space
between both of these entrance buildings would be dominated by car parking and the next
building on both sides of the road, Building B1 on the southern side and Building E on the north.
Block E addresses its street frontage whereas for both B1 and B2 the perpendicular orientation
results in rear gardens being located alongside the street frontage. Boundary treatment as
proposed is suburban in character, contrasting with the more urban character of the larger
buildings; close boarded fences with brick pillars are proposed. This could be modified to a more
acceptable materials, such as iron fences and hedges, but overall the mix of buildings and
suburban gardens provided in the western part of this layout is not considered to provide a clearly
identifiable townscape that takes the opportunity available here to provide a new residential
neighbourhood of high quality. Proceeding east, the shared amenity space is located between
two rights of way to commercial land to the north. This appears to be almost a ‘left over space,
which has been selected as such because it is regarded as a less-developable part of the site.
The spaces between Buildings B2 and C and to the west of Building D are again dominated by
car parking, and the access to Clewer Memorial Recreation Ground visually dominated by
Building C.

A wider footpath would be provided on the south side of Shirley Avenue, at 3m wide. This has
been suggested as a shared cycle-pedestrian path; however, it is considered that the number of
traffic movements on Shirley Avenue would not be so great as to require a separated cycle way,
and the width of the path would be best dedicated to pedestrian use only (with the exception of
cycles for younger children).

While a common pallet of exterior building materials is shown on the computer generated images
for the application, at least one elevation in every principle building in the development is
unacceptable devoid of design features and interest. This is particularly the case on the north
and south elevations which face neighbouring properties, which are either limited in the
opportunities to provide habitable room windows due to overlooking that would otherwise occur,
or simply flat elevations (e.g. north elevation of Building E) and, in some cases, both (south
elevations of all the buildings facing properties in East Crescent. Other less acceptable features,
including the open car parking areas under Building C, which are supported by relatively slim
pillars that add little visual weight to these parts of the buildings, and the prominent garage doors
which face into and dominate the space between Buildings B1 and B2. In addition, the balconies
are largely provided as ‘add-on’ features, and not well integrated into the structures of the
buildings. While the use of different materials in the exterior cladding would assist in unifying the
buildings within the development, it is also considered that this is used here as a means of
covering what would largely be buildings with little inherent design interest.

85



6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

Limited street tree planting is proposed on Shirley Avenue itself, although some of the locations
chosen for trees adjacent to building, car parking areas and to the bin / cycle store for Building F
suggest that growing conditions would be difficult. There is an opportunity to provide a pleasant
landscaped area in the area designated as common amenity space on the north side of Shirley
Avenue. However it is not considered that this would outweigh the shortcomings of the scheme.

In summary, the site layout and design of the buildings and landscaping is also not of a quality
that would justify the approval of this number of dwellings. The proposals have been subject to
considerable discussion with the applicant both prior to the application being made and during
the course of the application, when amended drawings were submitted.

Site density

With a site area of 1 hectare, the density of the development would be 93 units / hectare (ha).
This is lower than provided for nearby, for example in the recent approval on the Teradyne
Building in Hanover Way (ref.14/03416/FULL) a density of 130 units / ha would be provided (43
flats on 0.33 ha). It is noted that the current application was developed while the Local Plan’s
Preferred Options consultation was underway, when 110 units were proposed for the whole of
the land on the eastern side of Vale Road. In the draft Borough Local Plan, draft policy BLP13
includes Shirley Avenue as an allocated housing site (HA19), with an indicative dwelling number
of 80. While a higher number of dwellings would not be discouraged, it would need to
demonstrate both acceptable relationships to neighbouring properties and a high quality layout
and building design which have not been demonstrated in this application. For that reason, the
application must also be refused on grounds that the density proposed is not justified by the
proposals as put forward.

Flood risk issues

The site is subject to a high risk of flooding, with flooding likely to occur at least once every 100
years (Flood Zone 3). Residential development is defined as a “more vulnerable” use within
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), and such development is considered appropriate in flood risk
terms within Flood Zone 3 subject to satisfying other flood related criteria.

In line with national planning guidance, a sequential test assessment and Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA) have been submitted with the application. While the Environment Agency
has objected to the scheme, this is on the basis that the sequential test requirement had not
been met. However, this has in fact been satisfied, and the planning case officer has written to
the Environment Agency to advice them of this.

The FRA demonstrates that the development is capable of complying with the Local Plan Policy
F1 requirement that applications in flood-prone areas may only be approved if they do not (i) put
additional people at risk of flooding, (ii) reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store water and /
or (iii) impede the flow of flood water. The FRA shows that a safe flood escape route can be
provided that would allow future residents to escape the site during a severe flood event, fully
satisfying point (i) in the policy. In regard to points (i) and (iii), the development would
substantially reduce the amount of impermeable paving at the site. Additional flood storage
areas could also be provided within the development by reducing ground levels within the park
(subject to being able to provide acceptable transitions for both able and disabled access).

Where applications in floodable areas demonstrate that the above criteria have or can be met,
residential development proposals must also pass the “exceptions test”, which requires the
application to demonstrate sustainability benefits to the local community. In this case, the
development is able to provide access to flood escape routes for properties to the north, both at
the Vale House site and for residents at Rutherford Close and any other properties that need it to
the north (the section 106 agreement for Vale House, ref. 14/02975/FULL, also provides for
access to flood escape routes across the site from Rutherford Close and also includes access
for cycle use and pedestrian use from that site. This should also be provided here, in any
acceptable application, in order to fully address the exceptions test requirement.

The mix of housing types and tenure, including affordable housing

86



6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

Policy H3 and the associated SPG require that residential development sites of 0.5 ha or more in
area, and / or those that would result in a net increase of 15 units or more, should provide a
proportion of affordable housing on site. Buildings A and F are proposed as shared-ownership
affordable housing, and would provide a total of 28 units - 14 x 1 bdr. and 14 x 2 bdr. This
equates to providing 30% of the unit numbers within the development. This would need to be
secured in a competed section 106 agreement in any acceptable application.

Policy H8 supports proposals that contribute towards improving the range of housing
accommodation in the Borough, including dwellings for small households. The mix proposed is
considered to be acceptable. Policy H9 provides for a proportion of housing units in large
schemes to be wheel-chair accessible, and this would need to be secured in any acceptable
scheme.

Loss of community use

Technor House has an existing community use, as noted in the planning history above. Local
Plan policy CF1 provides that the Council will not allow the loss of community facilities to occur
unless it can be demonstrated that the facility is no longer needed, or the facility is provided
elsewhere. The applicant has advised that discussions are continuing on the provision of this
facility elsewhere. However, no firm details have been provided of how this would be achieve,
and the application must therefore be refused on grounds of not demonstrating that the proposal
would not result in the loss of a necessary community facility.

The amenity of future residents of the building

The applicant has confirmed that the space provided in all dwellings complies with the
requirements of the National Space Standards. Whilst not adopted by the Council, this provides
a useful rule of thumb for assessing the standards of amenity available for future residents. Most
of the flats would be dual aspect, which is a positive aspect of the proposals as submitted.
However, there are three single aspect flats in Building C that are north facing, which would not
be capable of receiving direct sunlight other than in the early morning and evening in the
summer months. It is considered that for the amenity of future residents flats with a north
elevation only would not be acceptable.

In the amended plans, some of the windows that would have overlooked neighbouring properties
have been deleted, and other windows serving habitable rooms are shown as obscure glazed.
This would not provide an acceptable standard of amenity for future residents, and the
incorporation of this feature is unfortunately symptomatic of the effort to provide more flats in
unsuitable locations than the site appears able to provide.

The adequacy of car parking and the impact on highway safety in the area.

The Highways Officer has commented that car parking, cycle storage, bin storage and vehicle
manoeuvring provision are all acceptable. However, this is subject to some maodifications to the
direction of door-opening for the stores, and to demonstrating acceptable internal layouts within
the bin store. A further request has also been made to superimpose the limits of the public
highway on the proposed site plan. This is due to a concern being raised that extent of the
adopted highway, including the combined width of both the footway and carriageway, exceeds
the combined width of the proposed footway and carriageway in the proposed layout drawings.
This is not acceptable, and in the absence of this plan it appears that the layout may rely on
closing some of the public highway. This issue is therefore added to the recommended reason
for refusal on the basis of unacceptable design and layout.

The proposals would result in less traffic movements than the existing business uses at the site.

Other Material Considerations

The Environmental Protection officer has requested conditions to be included in any planning
permission, to include details of acoustié_?neasures / insulation against aircraft noise along with



6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

7.1

other measures noted in Section 8 below. If permission is granted, details of acoustic insulation
from noise from adjacent industrial / commercial occupiers should also be provided.

Further information submitted in respect to site ecology is currently being assessed by the
Council’s ecologist, and will be provided either in an update report or verbally at the meeting
where this application will be submitted.

No comments have been received regarding trees, although in discussion with the Council’s Tree
Officer some concerns were raised in respect to impacts on trees within the adjacent Clewer
Recreation Ground. It is also noted that there are two reasonably good quality (B category)
hornbeam trees within the site, and given the time that it would take for replacement trees to
reach their current stature it is considered that these should be incorporated into any acceptable
future application.

Inadequate infrastructure for disposal of sewerage has been raised by Old Windsor Parish
Council as an issue. This requirement is a statutory obligation of the statutory undertaker, and is
not material to the determination of the application. Supply of gas, electricity and water is also a
matter for the relevant statutory undertakers.

Housing Land Supply

Paragraphs 7 and 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that there will be
a presumption in favour of Sustainable Development. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that
applications for new homes should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and that relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of
deliverable housing sites. The Borough Council cannot demonstrate a 5 year housing land

supply.

It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough’s housing stock.
However, it is the view of the Local Planning Authority that that the socio-economic benefits of
the additional dwellings would be significantly and demonstrably outweighed by the adverse
impacts arising from the scheme proposed, contrary to the adopted local plan policies, all of
which are essentially consistent with the NPPF, and to the development plan as a whole.

ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

This development would place additional pressure on local services and infrastructure. The
Council requires local services and infrastructure to be improved alongside development and to
be funded by the developer in accordance with its Supplementary Planning Documents setting
out the relevant costs (see paragraph 5.3). In this case these improvements can be secured
through an undertaking under S106 of the 1990 Planning Act completed before planning
permission is granted. Details of the funding and projects are shown below.

Education Dedworth Middle School - 2017 School Expansion Project £211,154.38

Appropriate, related public open space projects including
but not limited :

1. Path from end of Shirley Avenue to Clwere £23,000.00
Memorial Recreataion Ground childrens’
playground; and

2. Commuted sum for maintenacne of ameity space
within the developmetn (subject to confirmation). £4500.00

Public Open
Space

Total Contributions £238,654.38

88



CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

The application was advertised in the Maidenhead & Windsor Advertiser 19" 2015 and the
planning officer posted a statutory notice advertising the application at the site on 26" November
2015.

39 occupiers were notified directly of the application, including reconsultation on 18™ May 20186,
following the submission of amended drawings.

19 neighbours and interested parties have written to object to the application, summarised as:

Where in the

Comment report this is
considered

The first five comments below were in a joint letter from 11 properties at
East Crescent, and additionally in other individual letters, including from
the West Windsor Residents Association and Windsor and Eton Society:
1. | Building C has not been reduced in height, this still appears be 16.6 6.7 - 6.15
metres from ground level to the roof and a total of 17.4 metres to the
very top - this includes the photo voltaic panels. This will be a truly
overbearing presence, out-of-scale in terms of its appearance compared
with existing development in the vicinity.
2| It is mentioned that Building C replaces a large, existing building. 6.7 - 6.15
However, in actuality all that is currently visible is the tip of the roof, it is
low and very unobtrusive. Building C is still only 4 metres from rear
garden boundaries at East Crescent. The building would dominate the
skyline.
3. | The proposal is out of keeping with the area and an over development 6.7 - 6.15
of the site. Approving this current design will set a precedent as there is
nothing comparable right at the end of anyone’s garden in the vicinity.
The Sandown Care Home on the corner of Vale Road and Hanover
Way is the tallest nearby building and even that is not five storeys high.
It does not back on to any resident’'s garden, or invades anyone’s
privacy. The proposed building (including balconies) would overlook
rear gardens and houses at East Crescent, removing the level of privacy
to which residents believe they are entitled.

4. | Increased traffic with the possibility of an extra 93 vehicles coming and 6.32
going in such a small area.
Impacts on bats 6.34
Loss of employment land is contrary to Local Plan policies E1, E2 and 6.2 -6.6
E5
Threat to local businesses at the site 6.2 - 6.6

8. | Inadequate infrastructure for disposal of sewerage and provision of gas, 6.36
electricity and water

9. | Requirement for additional school places Section 7

Statutory consultees

Where in the

Consultee Comment report this is
considered

Environment Object on grounds that the sequential test assessment has This has been
Agency: not been met. overcome; refer
6.22 - 6.27

89



Other consultees and organisations

Consultee

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Highways:

133 car parking would be provided, which satisfies the

Highway Authority’s requirements for the number and mix
of units proposed.

The Borough cycle parking standard is currently set at 1
space per unit, which in this instances attracts a demand for
93 spaces. There are several cycle storage facilities
positioned across the site, providing a total of 95 spaces.
Whilst the number of cycle spaces complies with the
Borough’s standard the applicant is required to submit
detailed plans of the cycle parking arrangement to ensure
these are accessible and fit for purpose. This can be
secured by a suitably worded planning condition.

The site layout allows refuse and service vehicles to enter
and leave the site in a forward manner. This should be
further reinforced by the applicant offering-up for adoption
the areas required for the service vehicles to undertake
these manoeuvres. This can be secured by a combined
Section 38/278 Agreement.

The application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment
(TA). Briefly, the purpose of the TA is to report on any
transport issues relating to the development and identify
measures to be taken to overcome the anticipated transport
impacts of the scheme.

In terms of traffic generation the Highway Authority’s figures
differs slightly from those submitted by the applicant. Based
upon the applicant’s assessment the site has the potential
to generate circa 720 trips per days, with the proposed
residential generating 435 vehicular movements.

Our assessment suggests 742 and 486 vehicular trips for
the existing and residential units respectively. Nevertheless,
the Highway Authority agrees that the overall the proposal
would lead to a reduction in vehicular trips into the
surrounding area.

6.31-6.32

Old Windsor
Parish Council

Inadequate infrastructure for disposal of sewerage

6.36

Environmental
Protection:

Requested conditions to be included in any planning
permission, to require details to be submitted and approved
of acoustic measures / insulation against aircraft noise,
investigation and remediation of any contamination from
past land uses, and dust / smoke control during
construction.

6.36

Ecology:

An extended Phase 1 habitat survey was submitted, which
identified that seven buildings on site had low or very low
potential to support bats and further survey was
recommended. None of the trees were found to have the
potential to support roosting bats. A detailed inspection
survey of the buildings was then undertaken in August and
September 2015. The inspection revealed a small number
of bat droppings on a door within building 4 beneath a gap
between the external wall and asbestos sheeting. The
applicant’s ecologist stated “This would suggest a bat may
have been using this gap for roosting”. In addition, some

6.34

90



access points suitable to support bats were recorded within
several of the buildings on site. Further emergence surveys
were undertaken in order to establish whether the roost
recorded during the daytime inspection was currently in use
and whether the buildings support additional bat roosts.
During the further survey no bats were recorded roosting
within any of the buildings and the applicants ecologist
concluded that there is very low potential for roosting bats
during the maternity and hibernation season and therefore
a European Protected Species Licence is not required.
However, during the emergence survey there was limited
access to the area of the building where the bat droppings
were recorded and therefore a roost within that section of
the building may have been missed.

Paragraph 99 of the ODPM Circular 06/2005 states “It is
essential that the presence or otherwise of protected
species and the extent that they may be affected by the
proposed development, is established before the planning
permission is granted, otherwise all relevant material
considerations may not have been addressed in making the
decision”.

The emergence surveys did not cover the area of the
building where bat droppings were discovered and
therefore the status of the roost could not be confirmed. In
addition, no further information on which species were
recorded roosting have been provided. Further survey work
is therefore required.

If planning permission is granted, suitably worded
conditions should be included in regard to potential impacts
on reptiles in two small areas of vegetation that would be
cleared as part of the proposals, and for birds. Biodiversity
Enhancements are also recommended in any acceptable
application.

Berkshire Berkshire Archaeology’s Historic Environment Record notes Noted.
Archaeology: | very few known archaeological monuments or finds spots
within 500m of Shirley Avenue. This site has also been
substantially developed and there is currently little, if any,
areas of the site that have not been impacted by the
construction of buildings, roads and hard standings. On the
basis of the above, Berkshire Archaeology is content that
the archaeological potential of this site is limited and
therefore no mitigation of the archaeological impacts are
sought in relation to this proposal. No further action is
therefore required as regards the buried archaeological
heritage.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan and layout drawing
o Appendix B - elevation drawings and floor plans
e Appendix C - site layout at Vale House (14/02975/FULL)

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought

91



10.

solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have not been successfully resolved.
REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

Shirley Avenue is a designated employment area, as identified in Local Plan policy E5 and the
Proposal Map, allocated primarily for industrial and small scale distribution and storage uses. It
has not been demonstrated that the loss of this site to the alternative use of housing would not
harm industrial land supply within the Borough and the local economy. The proposal is contrary
to Policies E2 and E5 of The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999
(Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003).

The height and scale of buildings within the proposed development together with the location of
windows overlooking adjacent properties result in significant and demonstrable detrimental
impacts on the residential amenities of occupiers to the south of the site, in East Crescent and at
52 Vale Road, and in additional on Plots 13 and 14 within an approved but as yet
unimplemented residential proposal at Vale House, to the north of the site. Ass such, the
proposal is contrary to saved Policies H10, H11 and DG1 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003 and to advice in the
National Planning Policy Framework.

The layout of the proposed development and the quality of the design of individual buildings is
not of sufficient quality to justify a development of the density proposed, and would fail to take
the opportunity available for high quality design in the proposed redevelopment. This would
result in significant and demonstrable harm to the character of the area which would not be
outweighed by the provision of additional housing stock to the Borough. Additional work is also
required to ensure that details such as workable cycle and bin store layouts are provided, and
that they are appropriately located within the development. As such, the proposal would be
contrary to saved Policies H10, H11, DG1 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Local Plan and to advice in the National Planning Policy Framework.

The proposals would result in a loss of a community facility at Technor House. The application
has not demonstrated that the facility will be provided elsewhere, and the proposal is therefore
contrary to Local Plan policy CF1 and to advice in the NPPF.

By reason of the reliance on obscure glazing of habitable room windows to avoid direct
overlooking of neighbouring properties from some of the habitable rooms within the
development, the proposals would not provide a sufficient standard of amenities for all future
occupiers of the development. In addition the provision of some single aspect flats on the north
side of Building C would result in those flats receiving no sunlight. The proposal is contrary to
advice in the NPPF.

In the absense of an undertaking to secure associated off-site infrastructure and amenity
improvements directly related to the development in accordance with policy IMP1 of the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (Incorporating Alterations Adopted June 2003).

The proposal fails to provide a mechanism for securing affordable housing in accordance with
the Policy H3 The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (Incorporating
Alterations adopted June 2003) and adopted Supplementary Planning Document 'Planning
Obligations and Developer Contributions' 2005 (as amended)

92



T s e ev@os

foSSAH'S MmO GLOZT

Siodlidony
QRMILUYHD

ANAHNIAS
NOLONIDa3

hhhhhhhhhhhhhh
38 01 SNOISSINO GNY SHO¥43 SININNO0T 1OVHINOD

ccccccccccc

mmmmmmmmmmmmmm

i

Aependrx A

PR

€V @ 0Sz):L 9|eds

wolr i ¥ ; ; ¥ : : i : i P i =
2€2Z0001 Joquinu 82usdlT "paAIssal sybl IV "10g WuBNAdoD umol) (9) Aeaing @oueupIO

T s

— T e
ST s //I/H’l/”.\ \

i =S

t

|

T

93



3 0ZLL ¥2LG GLOZIsnbny JOSPUIAA - SNUBAY ASIIYS - S8)IS BUIPBA
INAH » INIdS NV1d 3LIS a3S040yd

e e - . e e . - e

B - - . e : e
L : -~ . . , . .
. ) ; ; & . : . . .

.

S
.
.

a
- ,«z,%%;,w

o

e - e
- ;,»\,Ww%uw o e

S

-

e il
. —
e

%mxnmw\ .

. o

o

S

o nﬂ\nw
.

S

e

uts Puonsng B
- WiZ pesodols

S

-
.

W8 2521 IS
o

s , -
. . . e
e . ‘ e




g 00¢€l ¥21G 9102 |Hdy JOSPUIAA - @NUBAY ABJIYS - SIS BUIPSIA
SNOILVAZTE - V ©ONIAT1ing

ERR R 1 3

INAH « ANIdS
NOLONIDAI

NOILYA313 HLYON - V ONIGTING

NOLLVYA313 LSVY3 - VONIOTING

NOILVAZT3 LSIM - ¥V ONIGTING

v 0014 3W0S

s s 02 113

wj wg wg uy wg wp

95




ANAH + ANIdS

NOLONIOA3

g002L - vL1S 9102 [Udy

3

AdoD ueld jooy

oG /
wodjeq
B . ¥
086'1€ ;
STENvd
DIVLI0AOLOHY
W,0.0w_ 1vid
NV1d 340074 1Syld
ssel9
pansto panssag P
Shoim @
Z wpoipag
waie
Buiwg Buiny
Mmp
lleH
yieg
| Woo;
- ¢ Jounsuz
2 M
el .
dosa 8 o |
leH wee [
un
A ges
M : S
o Bl ; o
Wz
(. gl 19 B -
vaz W 9z
Bulig Bua n Buitng Buian
e ! ?..MT fugoteq.

JOSPUINA - 8NUBAY ASlIUS - S8)IS BUIPS|N
SNV1d 400714 -V ONIATINgd

NV1d 40074 ANOJ3S

sselg
paiasq0

sselg  usans
ponaa0  koemig

W L's
Zwooipag wgle
(| it O

QL ©
ooipag leg | diooipdg —_

\«, ul» .Iu”m.m ,ﬂ

[ buiigBamn
!

gL

L]
Y] — WYL
,«P wooipag

eH

D) B =

M

W b9z _
Builig Buin

96

NY1d 40074 ANNOAO

g 26 \
Z wooipag Z Wooipag
il wgr
(] uiuig BuiAr \_|4 Buiug BuiA 3 3
M M :

IR 3\
e eH .
e e u
W gEl 1eg uied | wqoipag
ayns-u3f . & [auns-u3) "
M 2 = O RY| v s ¥R O = ﬁ“;
+  wzer
oz Toig
lleH
wze o A ELL
ut reg uiooipag
© M
i
o By el o _
r= Y
/ \
/ (] 8] 8 —J \
7 8L \
/ neis \
/ U 9T W p9T \
Buiq Buiar el [ Buiuiq Buiar
K niQ Buiar sﬁu. a Buinn \

1 \
/ \
re____ s}
1 t
1 I
1 1
] 1

WO 001 1 3W0S

 — s N s s 130 0B

g} wg wg wy wz w)



D 10EL PLLG  9L0Z Iudy

INAH « ANIdS

NOLONIOG3

NOLLYAZ13 LSV3 - 18 ONIQINg

JOSPUIAA - 8NUBAY ABJIIYS - SBYIS BUIPSN
SNOILVAZIE - 19 ONIATINg

B 0041 3W0S

1 it NN S5sS  %

97



sio Zlcl v/1S  GLOZ JequsAON JOSPUIAA - SNUBAY ASlIYS - S8)IS eUIpS
S SNV1d 40014 - L8 ONIATING

NOLONIDA3

0oL L oL:L 0oLl 0011
NV1d 400d - 18 ONIQTIng NY1d 30074 ANOD3S - L8 ONIT NG NV1d 0074 1S¥ld - 18 ONIdTIng NV1d ¥00174 ANNOYO - 18 ONIATING
G
400y G3HOUd g
400y azmoLs tooidles
— WSyl
L — Z wooipag ez
b | wooipag L
i
Stwon J00y e

Sw gy

O= O ol |
-

| =R =

vl e X A MSLE
s P _ _ M _ 1 3 Bui/Buian E
400y v s
o 00y
=weppumun B FEls | ; (e8]
o))
s00 wooiyfeg
W
004 azous i Y
s | uooipag £ Wodipag ) sz
=] woolpag B
m— o Buiuig/buiny
Mz N leH
ins ug v Pl
=) T [ | £ o] Apnis g
SHY = E—— = =]
a 1] et
N pilll ‘
_J Rl
s
s00u wooiyfeg
400Y G3HOLUG s
so00u -
pioh w1 ZE s008 wgyL .
5 | Woolpag e £ woolpag WT s
N woopag o Awgie
| am— Fpat Buuig/Buian

25 N AN » ieH
nsaz | toms
o VBT foied ==

400y G3HOL

WO 001} 3WOS

B — s MO s M s A 1050111

wop wg wg wy wg, wy




¥4

INAH « ANIdS

NOLONIOAGI

v ZLEL PLLS  9L0Z ludy

NOILVA313 LS3M - 28 ONIQTINg

JOSPUIAA - @NUBAY ABJIIYS - SB)IS BUIPSN
SNOILVYATTE - 2d ONIATINg

NOLLYA3T3 HLYON -Z8 ONIQTiNg

NOLLYA313 LSV3 -

NOLLYA3T3 HLNOS - 28 ONIaTIN8

r

EE:

T

W® 00l 1308

s N 55 N 8 20 20210

wpl wg ug wy wz wg

99



5

INAH « ANIdS

NOLONIDAI

g012l - ¥.1S SL0zisnbny

NV1d 400y
%w 4004 G3HOUS ew
- + S1HON 400¥
O=.0 0O
sm.z._v

g 1
| 8 swonsoon W
=== e
i
g:N+
| s008 Hm 4008 G3HOLIG qm
Tns

g o

400¥ G3HOLIY

NV1d 30074 ANODJ3S

400 a3HOU4

JOSPUINA - @nuaAy As|IYS - S8)IS euIpa|\
SNV'1d 900714 - 2d ONIATINg

NV1d 3400714 1Sdid NY1d 3400714 ANNOYHS

LN 0 (V1]

wdbijeg
WG
Z wooipag
MGLZ
woolpa; ALl
} iwoclpeg e i wee P——
e Buuig/Buian
W B9 .

% % £ wodipag|

I

e IS

100

yeg f—
weie
LGl
£ wooipag
WweLg

Z wooipag
g
Apmis

g | wsie @
1Q/BuIAT]
WG|
n € wooipag
W GLT

Z wooipag w

gy

Apnis

WO 001} 3W0S




g €0¢lL ¥L1LS 910z udy JOSPUIAA - SNUBAY ASIYS - SIS BUIPS|N
SNOILVYATTE 1S3aM 8 LSV - O ONIAINg

a
ANAH « ANIdS

NOLONIOA3

NOILVYA313 LS3IM - D ONIGTINS

NOLLYA313 LSY3 - D ONIGTING

0001 1
ue|d Aoy O Bulpjing

wol w o w ™

101




g 2Z0¢L 215 910z udy JOSPUIAA - BNUBAY AS|IYS - SB)IS BUIPS|A

INAH « INIdS SNOILVATTE HLNOS ® H1HON - 2 ONIaliNng
NOLONIOGS

NOLLYA3T3 HLYON - D ONIgTINg

i

NOLLYA3 13 HLNOS - O ONIgTING

W® 0011 308

s b g 5375 W s N £ 180303131
wol wg wg wy wg wy

102




JOSPUINA - NUBAY ABJIIUS - SBUS BUIPBIN
2o | 188ys - SNVY1d J00714 - O ONIA1Ng

g0zzlL - ¥.1G 9102 ludy

NY1d 30074 Q¥iHL NV1d Y0074 GNOD3S

oo

ponosao
e _ .
\ N .
wEEe
A _ 8 2 e
\
\
\
, 5
/ \ - e foanid
) wwive
Buug Buiay
||||| sl
I
|
1
1
1
1
|
'
I
M S
Juns-u el 10pUI0D
o ey 019
| fuooipag 2 “
@ o T
O}
- ieH st ﬂ.mm_
oY
rﬂ e
Z woolpag \ m_ lieH yleg W
™ nes lleH .
2z 78
- i Buig Buian
G - - w7y e
- T - w7z wyze (v .
~ wooipag & ° Buitig BuA
wsye 2
ol - |
s fim N | i " Wiz
B — wopipag
i ] -
pis i

103

NY1d 30074 Lsyld NY1d 30074 ONNO¥D

sseio

W G
Builig BuiA

W €08
Builig BuIny

C—0]
L™ ]

wyze
Buuig Buiay

W28
Builig Buny

w9z K
Bug mc;: Buuig Buia

-

1

i

I

I

1

i

i

i

T

i

! i
wg)z 3 : oo H \

;

i

1

i

i

L

W ® 0011 W08

I — s s I s 00303 0

wp wg wg wy wg wy




g12zL - 215 9102 judy JOSPUIAA - SNUBAY ABIYS - SBIIS BUIPSIN
¢ 0 Z198ys - SNVY1d J400714 - 3 ONId1INg

NOLONIDA3

NY1d 400y NV1d 40074 HLdNO4

2 g

4008 03HOLS

0z

400¥ G3MOUd

)
0%

104

wosoee

. S13Nvd
Y1 TOAOLOHd

woe \
> we T+ B Buuig Bui
"y “.nmm_mN wopLeE 1 0 \

4008 1v13

w00 @.mT wosaod
I

|-

¥ 001} 3W0S




a voel v21S 9102 judy JOSPUIA\ - ONUBAY AS[IYS - SSIIS BUIPSIN
L o SNOILVYAT 13 HLNOS ® HLYON - d ONIATING

INAH = RIdS

NOLONIOG3

NOLLYA313 HLYON - @ ONIgINg

NOLLYA313 HLNOS - d ONIaTING

WD 0011 3W0S

T 5 53 M Y353 B3 1 24313
wol ug wg wy W wg

105



D0€ZL - ¥L1LS 9102 [udy

INAH « ANIdS

NOLONIOA3

NYd Y0074 ANOO3S

o
08T
Bulig/Bun
O = 0
oo R B
y TOTEL foolp
Z iooipag
= | dosipsa .
M uEmM.mN sf=
gL =4 o A §T)
£ woopea ) ten | woqipeg Z diooipeg H—
", ins-u:
.Emmo ] 3 5 —— P "smmmw
g ' m feg 5 “h uug/BuIAn
2 ] o ins-u3 e
2 ¥ f° C = ) e N>
" ek ) + 2 Deem =
Y WOTL
WL P X P
| Liooipeg £} J wongsz a0
. ) .
ns- eg| B 2
5 . Yieg 851 156 wes
— ! NI
“afns-u3 aynsiug [
oSt e} . — YT
Buig/Buiar leH - wug/BuIAr
annlll gpis ST By Pav:
W98 2 27
8 D | zwooips, ' 8 ﬁ wooipag i
s | HE ol
syt O -
S
ey
H NV1d 40014 1Syld
e
W 08T ﬂl
Buiig/BuIAn
- 5 [
@ wos BudiaBon +
e 4 N .
m | dooipag |© V0P8 ez e
¢ dooipag = wloz s
2 eH | | woopag Z woolpag
i _:w.:@m S - wesz
g of - Bui;Suin
Z uiooisg 2 o3
H - .
\ _ ) o
= N " Y 005z 5 ea
- WPl WeH o 1)
| woop 25 WeH a8
ns- | o g 2 B .
5 | . ORI wieg -
= ‘olns3 [ oims-43: 2 [
W08 v
Buug/Buin fleH
e
o 2 - M
Wag W 2T
Z {aooipsg el {iooipag =
: 1 Wooipag
S - 1
i

asior Koenid

ears kot

JOSPUINA - BNUBAY AS|IIYS - S8)IS BUIPSIN
CJ0 | 189ys - SNV1d 00714 - d ONIATINg

- NV1d ¥004 ONNO¥O _I.Ei
P - ]
- I
| o
Buig/buian N
+ P
(| <] L L woog1z o3rawsio
== wooipag 2 0] AN
¢ wooipag w08z
[mEE] subgbun B\ ee 00 M ____
e P S R 1| I B S
: w
M9
R ¢ wooipag
3 ° lleH
H
3 wes
t Zuioolpog ) &
N feg
= ¥ o .
- S AWESL
m . [ N w07} "l % o1 xieds o
A 19 Tuoeiz [o——
| wooipag Jopiod anon o) unop dures |
NS ieg B B 2 2 .
. . <o F4e8 (V) @ @ o Yieg -
s srkuz [ sindug S
wos wzy
Buiia/BuiA eH e :.p.iommr.w "
W 2T
] Wooipag
T o) m
wag w27l =]
D Z Woolp: | wooipag
2=y sy

iy &

NY1d MdVd ¥70 ONNOHO ¥3IMOT

106

® ®
w\:n:.éax,/u SN
saseds £1
YV ¥YO GNNOYO ¥IMGT [o—
vt oy e does
I
I
I
]
]
|
1
1
1
]
]
WD 004} 3W0S

wl

wg wy

p — s s O 5 1102 110301
wg



g 1€zl - ¥.1G 9102 ludy JOSPUIAA - @NUBAY ABJIUS - S8)IS BUIP3|
G3xal¥van ¢ 10 Z198Us - SNY1d 400714 - d ONId1INg

INAH « ANIdS

NOLONIOJI

NV1d 300714 HL¥NO4

W 08T
Buig/buia

-1 NV1d 4008 Nv1d 30074 GHIHL

_ o7 wopa

- fuodjea |

107

4 08T
Bulig/BuAT

—J
- L
§ w082

Buitig/Bui

STANVY -
OIYLTOAOLOHd

-+

woses

4608 1v1d

S0 painnsao

W 08T
Bung/Buian D

/mofaq
/Auodjeq|
A——

4004 Q3HOLId

0z

400y Q3HOLId

WY 0011 3OS

 — s I s s 10313151

) ug ug [ ug wg



g 90€l ¥.1LS 910z |udy JOSPUIAA - @NUBAY ABJIIYS - SBYIS eUIPSN
SNOILVYATT3 HLNOS ® HLION - 3 ©ONIdINg

¥4 X N o+ O
INAH « ANIdS
NOLONIOJ3

NOLLYA313 HLYON - 3 ONIGTING

NOLLYA313 HLNOS - 3 ONIQTING

‘uejd Aay 3 B

W ® 0011 3OS

s I G N 535 M 3535 180318131
[y wg wg wp [T4 wg

108




v

GNAH « ANIdS

NOLONI®A3

a L0cl v.1G

00011 4
ueld Aay 3 Buipjing

=

910z Iudy

J0SPUIAA - BNUBAY ASJIYS - S8)IS BUIPS|A
SNOILVYATTE 1S3IM ® LSV - 3 ONIATINg

ONIQUNG ONILSKG

NOLLYA313 LSv3 - 3 ONITINg

4018 NiB T

v
o

ONIOINE ONLLSHA

0Z0t

asiE

W® 0011 305

31

T
wop ug g [ wz wp

109



Vv L¥2ZL - #21S  GLOZ isnbny

NY1d 400y

wogysE

JOSPUIAA - @NUBAY ABJIYS - SIS BUIPSIA
ZJ0 Z188ys - SNY1d SHOOT4 - 3 ONIATINg

NYd ¥OO14 HLYNOS

ve
e
Budia/Bann

|
zujooipag | | Wi
Bty
| woospag
@ ~

awgge

P
Builig/Buan
;_mm

r@e

| i
i w i
e ™4 U/
Iy B €
i e — syns-uf W W +
§
> | fPues B = ey
- o ) ¥
! =y 6T
g . 10pUIoD
—__.,0

o

| _, s @
an E, \Xa =vcm \ wese
— feH

Bung/Buian
.
woo —ﬁ, _Eow%mm
]

NV1d 800174 QYIHL

110

E,m m

Butg/Bua

o0

L | woyz
Builig/Buir

7Tl

L woopag f[ N\ -

ﬂ uage

| Bulig/Buny

WO 0T

T
wy ug wy



INAH « ANIdS

NCLONIOOS

g 80¢l

216 9102 ludy

NOLLYA3N3 1SY3 - 4 ONICTING

JOSPUIAA - @NUBAY AS|IIUS - SSYUS euIpay
SNOILVYAZT3 - 4 ONIATING

NOLLYA3T3 HLNOS - 4 ONIGTING

NOLLYA3 T3 HLYON - 4 ONITTING

0001 - 4

WO 0014 3W0S

D — v M 22 O o0 13030 213

wol wg ug wy wg wy

111



2062l - ¥.LS 9l0Z ludy 0SPUIN - BNUBAY ASHIYS - SSIIS Bulpa|y
SNV'1d 400714 - 4 ONIATINg

NOLONIOAI

NY1d 30074 400y NV1d ¥0074 QdIHL

A LTE A L ZE
Bulig/unn g Builig/Buin

JEUSS p {S1Mvd -

T . OyII0ADLOHY BN
\ mofaq R \
\Aueoeq \
\ \
W 9T (W p'9T
\ i \ - Buiuig/Buiar Buuig/Buin
\ 2o \ : EJ
\ S — \
\ 4008 1714 \
\ e oea \
\ : \
_ 5 : : i B Y
=== | |
NV1d 30074 ANOJ3S NY1d 30074 LSyid NV1d 0014 ONNO¥D
R o
o 3 8 100 ) \ g 8
\
iR \
m z m._.prommm Fuwo oip oop: \ y? 4 dio /
_ ooipag Z woolpag wze WooIpa; Wwoolpa; e
weze ez — w o wize — \ [ Buig/Buiar Zuooipsg J§ T Wookeg Bulig/BuiAr] O
Buiig/Buin < Buuig/Buinn Buing/Buin A B Buiugy/Buiany 5 \
\
EEEE o o ELLL] . / o [0 . = NNy
..U , lleH S | M wgGL eH wae ™
! ea G fl Dues : | dooipy o0ipsg
s [ ansz oups-uz T = | ainslia § —_ sunsiug qufs-uz
W R d ) W g s ) wg i
L wooipeg (% | @ " 2{7 | wooipsg .Eﬁuwwm e 0 _Eﬁ_wum 4 ! 5

SETL lieH - E WETT = lleH ieH B HeH
| wooipag e ﬂ U fer wooipag v Eoevum @ M TTL wse p D

WELL

wooipag — ST
e g | Woopag ul | Wooipag

h ves °Q p4es wes D e

] ] 2| i = wn ; ! g = C
ol o NI = EEunn| V) gk B Crrr = .

AEEL \.: Auooied: T WTET
[ s BB —J & \ o —J = ws B g | (I \ (. B g ] \
W59z MW E9Z i ! » Wy 9T W'z \
Kucma Builig/BuiAn Butig/Buin T \ ButigBaN- .“nn“na > Bt Ban Y\ Buiig/Buin Buig/Buia \
) \ L « 3 \ fans
5 | | A \
; o \
werT r s "” it \ wewT \
i \
Gty \
= — e B - seas - Em o WENESSSSSUES coes - Camees . BN o
1 I
8 o4 ] i
i 1
1 1
W ® 0014 3OS

S ;15555 O 55 O 155553 8¢ 15 0 M 0 £
wol wg wg wy wg, wo



g 60€L ¥.LS 9102 |udy

TERE S 2

INAH » ANIdS

NCLONIDG3

00L: L 0oL L
uoNEA3|3 UINOS - 24 31018 3j2AD UONEAS|T 1S3 - 24 91018 29K

3oNINg

g dox s opko pus ug

00k- 0oL 1

UoEAS|T YMON - Z4 310)S 2|oAD  UONeAs|3 1seT - Zd 3101S 30k

s

0oLt
uoljeAs|3 Ise3 - |4 310} 9j9hD g uig

001 L
uoljeAs|3 jse3 - 3 a10}g uig

001§
UOJeA3|3 YUON - L 310IS 3JPAD B

asnigTing

00L: L 00L: 1
uoneAs|3 Jse3 - g 21018 3j9AD B ulg

UOHeA3]3 YUON - O 210}S 3]akD B uig

0oLl
uoneAs|3 Jse3 - O 310jg 3j0AD

+ qoNiging

0oL L
UOREAS|3 YUON - O 310}S 3JOAD

UoNeAs|T Jseq -/ 310)S DJ9AD @ Ul

|
| |
i

0oLl
UOHEAS|T YMON - Y 10}S 3J0AD B uig

uoneAs|T 1SS - v 210)S 3J9AD B U

JOSPUIAA - 8NUBAY AS|IIUS - SBYS BUIPS\
SNOILVA3ITE - 340LS ITOAD ANV Nid

0oLl 0oLt 00kt
uoeAs|3 YUoN - 3 210jS uig uoneAs|T 1S3 - J 2J0lS Uig  UOIHEA3|] UInos - 3 2J0jg uig

0011 00411
1S9AA - L4 3101 3PAD g uIg UOHEAS|3 YINos - |4 310}S 3j9A0 g uig

0oLt 0011
UoNeA3|T 1S3 - O 310} 3|9AD B U UoReA3|3 YINOS - d 2101S 3joAD B UIg

0oLl o011 L
uoneAs|3 1S3 - O 1018 81AD uoleAs|3 yinos - 9 31018 3[04

0oL L 0041
UoNeAR|T UINOS - i 10}S 3J9AD B Uig

—

W 00k 3 WS

_ m _mu?::_:::
wpl [ ug wy wz wg

113



9107 56910191 ¢y
415 5103 AnamAN D00y 1AUUSL DIDL WA I

Q0eds JOYSIA T + bE 2! |eloL
AemaAup + abeleb ¢ 9 sasnoy paq
AemaALp 7 % sasnoy paqg ¢
»M.NB M.% m \W- W No AeMaALIp/pajedojje 7 b s9snoy paq 7
3un Jad Bupyied S}iun Jo *oN
yonl p1, gy &
0T & 6TV COEY @ 0DSIT 5 PRM.. Qv.b% 2lb \%N “\_e .w %u\/%\mm Q UoIRPOWILLIOITY JO SINP3YIS
ueld #O0IE / /
‘ (pajedipul auoz uo3dajoad J004)
paysijowap 3q 03 buy 9341 juedyiubis
SOSPULAA
DENCY DIBA
’ JUI04 UoIP3Y|0) sulg ealy JuswAojdwg 313U [edIPSN S99.] MaN SS300Y

[

uones gns bunsix3

SIUSWIOY %%siw ealy papoom aoeds uado

9 nd popuoy.

@
|

SININON Y

W« W 00T 05




WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

20 July 2016 ltem: 4

Application 16/01031/FULL

No.:

Location: Windsor Girls School Imperial Road Windsor SL4 3RT

Proposal: Single storey infill extension, two storey front extension, demolition and relocation of
bin store and cycle shelter, amendments to fenestration, cladding of reception block,
reconfiguration of parking and associated landscaping

Applicant: Miss Derczynska

Agent: Mr Simon McNabb - McBains Cooper

Parish/Ward: Clewer East Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at
adam.jackson@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

13

1.4

3.1

SUMMARY

There are no objections to the principle of the proposed works. The design and scale of the
proposed extensions are considered to be in keeping with the existing building and the impact on
the street scene would be acceptable.

There are no highway objections to the proposal subject to the inclusion of the conditions listed in
section 9 of this report. (conditions 6,7 and 8).

There are no concerns over the impact to important on or off site trees subject to the inclusion of
the suggested conditions listed in section 9 of this report.(conditions 3,4 and 5).

The information submitted does not sufficiently set out how surface water will be managed and
there is no evidence to back up the statement in the application form that the development does
not increase flood risk to the surrounding area. The applicant is planning to submit additional
information and as such it is recommended that the panel defer and delegate the application to
allow for officers to resolves these issues.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Borough Planning Manager:

1. | To grant planning permission on the submission of a satisfactory flood risk assessment
and the provision of the information requested by the lead local flood authority with the
conditions listed in section 9 of this report and suitably worded conditions to ensure the
development is undertaken in accordance with flooding and drainage information.

2. | To refuse planning permission if the information requested by the lead local flood authority

is not provided by the 1* August and found to be acceptable.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Borough Planning Manager delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The site is located on the corner of Imperial Road and Longbourn. The school consists of a
cluster of buildings dating back to the 1970’s and is surrounded by green space and deciduous
trees. The site is located to close to two tree preservation areas (one to the south and one to the
north) and there are a number of mature trees along the Imperial Road frontage. These trees are
considered to form an important part of the character of the area.

115




4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

6.1

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Ref. Description

Decision and Date

02/82901/FULL | Erection of single storey and two storey side
extensions and single storey front and rear
extensions.

Permitted 06.02.2003

04/85500/FULL | Erection of a 2 storey infill extension

Permitted 07.03.2005

12/00152/FULL | Construction of a sports hall with attached single
storey facilities building and plant equipment

Permitted 30.03.2012

The proposal is for a number of extensions and alterations to the Windsor Girls school, including;
the demolition of the existing single storey dining/catering block and the erection of a 2 storey
teaching block in its place and a new single storey front extension between the assembly hall and
plant building. Works are also proposed to the visitor/staff entrance block, including re-cladding
the front in timber and the addition of a new aluminium entrance sign. The car parking on site will
be increased to 83 spaces by increasing both the existing hardstanding and grasscrete parking
areas. This requires the removal of 2 B category and 3 C category trees. It is also proposed to
landscape the approach to the pupil entrance; however, no further details have been submitted at

this time.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework Sections; 4. Promoting sustainable transport, 7. Requiring
good design and 10. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change.

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within settlement area

Highways and
Parking

Trees

DG1

P4, T5, T7

N6

Supplementary planning documents

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

° Sustainable Design and Construction view at:

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

i Character and appearance

i Highway safety

iii Trees/landscaping; and

v Flooding/drainage



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Character and appearance

The school buildings have no particularly strong architectural merit, however, do have a clear
style. The proposed extensions are predominantly to the front of the site and therefore not only
impact on the character of the host building but also on the street scene. It is considered that the
design and materials proposed respect the existing character of the building and as such would
not harm the character of the street scene.

Highway safety

Imperial Road forms part of the B3173, a primary distributor road within the Borough which is
considered to be a strategically important route as it is a main link from the M4 to Legoland/Ascot
and beyond. On average it carries around 17,000 vehicles per day rising to in excess of 18,000 at
certain times of the year. Vehicular access to Windsor Girls School is off Longbourn which has a
priority junction with Imperial Road. Both roads have 30mph speed restriction. There are two
accesses to Windsor Girls School which operate an in/out arrangement. Pedestrian access is
also available by the out access. This arrangement will be unchanged.

The total number of staff is 99 comprising 42 full time and 57 part time staff. The school currently
provides 66 parking spaces and the increase to the 83 spaces being proposed. There are no
current parking issues at the site as there is the potential to park within the access roads,
however, the additional parking spaces are welcomed and will allow the school to manage
parking on site more efficiently. A loading/delivery area is also to be provided away from the
proposed parking area.

It is stated within the school travel plan that only 1% of pupil’'s cycle which equates to 7.2-8
spaces rounded. There also needs to be adequate cycle provision for staff and out of hour’s
activities. Therefore the existing level of 20 spaces is considered acceptable. However this
needs to be monitored among pupils and staff, it is recommended that this is secured in an
updated travel plan (see condition 8 in section 9 of this report). Numbers of students walking to
school is of a reasonably high level.

The increased parking will produce additional vehicle movements at the site; however, it is likely
that these vehicles would have been travelling within the local highway network and as such is
unlikely to cause highway safety issues.

There are no objections on highway grounds subject to the conditions 6, 7 and 8 suggested in
section 9 of this report.

Trees/landscaping

The submitted arboricultural report and tree protection plan are considered sufficient. 2 B
category trees and 3 C category trees are being removed from the front of the school to make
room for the extended parking area and 2 U category trees are also to be removed from around
the site boundary. It is not considered that the loss of these trees will negatively impact on the
character of the area due to the high number of trees already on site. In addition landscaping is
proposed around the pupil entrance at the front of the school, however, details of this have not
yet been submitted. Subject to conditions 3,4 and 5 suggested in section 9 below the impact on
important trees is considered to be acceptable.

Flooding/drainage

At the time of writing this report there are outstanding drainage issues. The application submitted
does not contain details of how the surface water will be managed and there is no evidence to
back up the statement that the development does not increase flood risk to the surrounding area.
Comments are also yet to be received by the Environment Agency. Additional information has
therefore been requested on a number of issues and this information is currently being awaited. It
is recommended that the application be deferred and the decision delegated to allow the for the
Borough Planning Manager to either approve or refuse the application depending on whether
satisfactory drainage information is submitted.

117



CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

97 occupiers were notified directly of the application.
The planning officer posted notice advertising the application at the site on 8" April 2016.
No comments were received.

Other Consultees

Consultee Comment Officer response
Highway Officer | There are no highway objections subject to the inclusion | The suggested
of conditions relating to; a construction management plan, | conditions have
vehicle parking and turning space and cycle storage. been included.
See conditions
6,7 and 8 in
section 9 below.
Arboricultural Recommends approval subject to conditions relating to; | The suggested
Officer Tree Protection, Tree Retention/Replacement and a | ¢onditions have
Landscaping Scheme. been included.
See conditions
3,4and 5in
section 9 below.
Lead Local The application submitted does not contain any details of | gee section
Flood Authority how the surface water will be managed and there is no | g 10 of this
evidence to back up the statement in the application forms | report.
that the development does not increase flood risk to the
surrounding area. Until further information is submitted, |
recommend that the application is not approved on
surface water drainage areas.
Environment Comments awaited. See section
Agency 6.10 of this
report.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan
e Appendix B — Existing and proposed floor plans

o Appendix C — Existing and proposed elevations

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully resolved.
CONDITIONS IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

No development shall take place until specifications of the materials to be used on the external
surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local

118



Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy DG1

The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree and any other protection specified
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars (arboricultural report
by Martin Dobson Associated dated 1 June 2016 including the tree protection plan forming
Appendix MD4) before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site, and
thereafter maintained until the completion of all construction work and all equipment, machinery
and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or
placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those
areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the written consent of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, NG6.

No tree or hedgerow shown to be retained in the approved plans (arboricultural report by Martin
Dobson Associated dated 1 June 2016 including the tree protection plan forming Appendix MD4)
shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be lopped or topped other
than in accordance with these approved plans and particulars and without the written approval of
the Local Planning Authority, until five years from the date of occupation of the building for its
permitted use. Any topping or lopping approved shall be carried out in accordance with British
Standard 3998 Tree work. If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies,
another tree shall be planted in the immediate vicinity and that tree shall be of the size and
species, and shall be planted at such time, as specified by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1,
N6.

No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works
(principally new tree planting), have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved within the first planting
season following the substantial completion of the development and retained thereafter in
accordance with the approved details. If within a period of five years from the date of planting of
any tree or shrub shown on the approved landscaping plan, that tree or shrub, or any tree or
shrub planted in replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes
seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub of the same species and size as
thatoriginally planted shall be planted in the immediate vicinity, unless the Local Planning
Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking and turning space has been
provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with the approved drawing. The space
approved shall be kept available for parking and turning in association with the development.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety, and to facilitate vehicles entering and leaving the highway in forward gear.
Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

20 covered, safe and secure cycle parking spaces shall be retained as a minimum. These
spaces should be reflected within an updated travel plan which shall be submitted to and

119



approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 6 months of the date of this
permission. The plan shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and this
level of cycle provision needs to be reassessed each year as part of the School Travel Plan
requirements to ensure its adequacy.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate cycle parking facilities in
order to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7,
DG1.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

120



Appendix A — Site location plan

0, . > 2 7"'5 o
: aa s 1 t
|7 m\mmww, ~ (@ o [F.L T 10713
‘ H]C}a&'ﬁz /] &8 133 \a S i “-Lambton House
| iw /| .Hatcheglg-J if r;;,.t ol . ¢ \ Q}; }?unsford Lodge
I . 1 B pe a4 Hilos,
U1 — A B @S ol e
|| Brookside [ t&(é%‘ {, nom1 ;
= - " [ A\ - i ; {
Rowan \\\ione\agugn- \ pemm":y L°°ge A
s S Rt ()
i Yo 2o Meryton House
T Tz 3. ¢ -

LONGBOURN,

o A MAYFIELD DRIVE
‘S

/éﬁjﬁ“&

1’10’4,

) o |
L | Yo | HERMITAGE
Ashmn Park Farn:s? L’ANE Westaway

ﬂ
Ik:,'.\wm Stump Vnies Mead [
El Sub Sta The —— ‘
L} Vicarage |
(\ Kynnersiey |
Beech House Timstone | ™YY

| Mancroft
| The Hmeh ,—""’\\ - ﬂ ‘

% 9 Fives Oaks | E Gotoslde

: adl;s ——
o 9 | e fiegal :.: 7

Site location

121 T
Windsor &

© Crown copyright and database right 2016. Ordnance Survey 100018817 Scale @ A4 1:2,500 W



Proposed site plan

G L

va Tﬁ__. [ — T::
o

S bl e e ]

NLO41IHOYY

oZE0=0Hs
A ELE
Tauswn

MR

e m=w e 3
R
o oo e
o wEwm [
oo e ety

03NOWER 38 0L 3L
FIHLM3N
£3FULONILETE

[oReRw

C3HSNOW3a38 0L
SHHOM 03S00ud
SHHOM NI LON

3N AHVONNOS 3 LIS

oo

JHOLS

F12ADI8 ANV 35N43H (B1VO0BH
HOOTE ONIHIVAL AFHOLS T HLIM
20V ONY 0SHSITOW20 38 OL 40018
SNINIJ ONY NZZLNYD AJHOLS T1oNIS
‘SIOWS ONDAEYD INIT ALHM ONY
ONIONYLSOEYH 30V 13 ONV IAONGH
"03LY20 T3 38 01 JHOLS T104219 ONY
35N434 03HSNONS0 38 QL TTYM aNY
SHOLS A8 ASHOLS IJONIS ONLLSDE

S3HII JHN10HISY IOVENSIH
SANHHS ANV 53341 0350d0Hd

DN MOTIH3ND SLVOOWOIOY OL
O30NT X3 VIEY SNDIHYA 313HISSVHD

A

:
&

XYoo @

T

005l Y

peoy [uaduy

NY7d 3211 d350d0ud b

v




Appendix B — Existing and proposed floor plans

sawm
..... =
_:ni!..:.«_ El _ s _ Bcaas
WV SnLEnE
5007 ONNCNS
T s
L
SHIHINESE HOONIN 'IVOL TerHESNE
SOOHSE ETHIS HOENM
s
e ovaHETve
E.@ TN HOSONN 20 HENDEOR TYADE
sam
B T T —
T ARG L33 TR T
L7 NLINENOD 234000 ENIVEOR
d3d00D m@_}.
PP e 22
e T
e
g bramicqiry i
- nran asom i e
o5 -
—_
o ~
= o -
> -
— s s
o] -
+
(%]

Eusetn

ool
3

NY7d 340074 ANNO™D ONILSIX3

123



= 250 [ ¥ -vo-w-wx-oam- saw fvsiees

v B o

-

wns | escaas

F4N1LO31IHOEY

N4 0Z80=0us
HOOTE ORNOHD
Tau o

Proposed ground floor

L8618
SHIHEZVESE 'HOSONIM 'CWOX TVIHESHE
IOOHIE STHID HOBINM

- Sanaaw

PR TSSO DRI IO
8 MESI RO LISHIS VORI TR
047 ENLLVVENDD ME4000 ENVEDN

=

d3d00D SNIVAOIN

AN

e e

i T

i i

w0 e ——

] [t

vom ey Bama e s i s s B
= sy

siscmNLoN [T

SN AEYANNOE 3LIS - -

Sigon a1

soud paanbas kanns Buppng In4 ‘SIS0 A
papiaud uogeuuoyl uo paseq Bumesg 310N

NI AT _VN,.

[

g sy

[e———

20LL
N¥1d 40074 ANNOYSD d3$0d0dd

o S Cup
Jmrcie sfium Bugmes

o

=, |l
et n
o fa
R — i
- (q\]
-
- T T
— o _as _ o
-
witing
-
- -
e
Lo
L3
=
gy A
Ll | |
..zax«.rl_.



Existing first floor

+ 2 -3 [mim- v -sa 10 a0 omm- som fvsiees

e |
FAINLOILIHOYY

L
THIHEHERE "HOSONIN 'TwOE TYEESE
IJOOHIE ZTHID MOSONM

]
ey OVIHRSOVIN
TRRREG o sosawn 2o wonouos maos
—

o —"

VNGO LTSS T TR
T ENLLTYENOD BSH003 ENIYEDN

N

434002 SNIVEDIN

N

Lwencny s

L
3

wrr

5iisf
HH
i
1l

v«

-

""""

sma o

g

g

s sousy

=

=

N —

ook -

0

NYd 30074 Ls¥ld ONILSIX3

=0



Proposed first floor

T L A

ca-sa _ﬁ_s‘ v oo ow-aan- cam T.E . [ oLl Y

—— A ] . NY1d 40074 1SHI4 d350d0dd -

F4N1L331IHOYY

Y4 0380208
B00Ts L2HI
e e

— _:«E.ai -

LmErE
TUIHEEZE BORCNIN VO TWIHISN
I0OHIE ETHIS HOTONM

o

avaHNI OV

BERRRE 25 o ocanm soonouma maos

sam

OO WIS NGO T
V) NETINOCHDT LTSI TV T 01

0L SHILTIENOD E3000 ERIVEIN

TN

H3d0OD SNIVHOW

Aringess g
[ et

. T ©
[T N
b
I — . g e =]

won
-y
o apm s g - -

Thd 0] o -
SO a1 . w-—e o
Joud pasmbas Aswns Buppng In< ‘SIS0 AG

paomaid UogeuLo U paseq Bumes] 310N

o Buges
1R o

swomNLoN [T

SN AMYONNOE 3US - - o oo s ]
L -

|
4.

sy

g

s

rear mmss

- . vescamerp oy 1y
o1 e i i oy




Appendix C — Existing and proposed elevations

Existing north and east elevations

0oL- 1

NOILYA3IT3 1SVY3

.......

ok NEZINONGT LTS DO T 1

0oL: L

NOILVYAZT3 HLEON

00k

NOILVYAZT3 HLHON




Proposed north elevation

ENOWLYASTE 03502082
Tau o

]
THIHEHESE BOTONIM OWOE TYEESR

.......

001-b

NOILYA3T3 HLHON

A RS

o
e S | et
R

128

001 -1

NOILYAZT3 HLHON



Proposed east and south elevations

ENOUVATTE 03008

1mErE
SHIHENEES OTONIN ‘OWOH TVINSSE
TOOHIE STHIS HOTONM

wow

avsHNE TV

EIRRREZS ow woscmm soventusa s
poen

o NETINOONGT LTS VO T

H3d00D SNIVEOIN

A%

B T
gy e s 3

.......

0oL

NOILYAZT3 1SY3

129



WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

20 July 2016 ltem: 5
Application 16/01033/FULL

No.:

Location: The Windsor Boys School Maidenhead Road Windsor SL4 5EH

Proposal: Sheltered enclosure to 6th Form fire escape, extension to main visitor entrance and

single storey infill extension to dining hall. Single storey extension to changing rooms
and alterations to first floor fenestration of proposed staff room. New security fence
with gate at staff entrance with associated minor landscaping works.

Applicant: Miss Derczynska

Agent: Mr Simon McNabb

Parish/Ward:  Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at
adam.jackson@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

11 The proposal is for a number of extensions to the Windsor Boys school, including; extensions to
the sixth form and visitor entrances, a single storey extension to the changing rooms and a new
security fence and gate at the staff entrance.

1.2 There are no objections to the principle of these works. The design and scale of the proposed
extensions are considered to be in keeping with the existing building and the impact on the street
scene would be acceptable.

1.3 There are no highway objections to the proposal subject to the inclusion of the conditions listed in
section 9 of this report. (conditions 5,6,7 and 8).

1.4 There are no concerns over the impact to important on or off site trees subject to the inclusion of
the conditions listed in section 9 of this report.

1.5 The information submitted does not sufficiently set out how surface water will be managed and
there is no evidence to back up the statement in the application form that the development does
not increase flood risk to the surrounding area. The applicant has been asked to submit additional
information and as such it is recommended that the panel defer and delegate the application to
allow for the Borough Planning Manager to resolve these issues.

1.6 The site is located within flood zone 3; however, at the time of writing this report no flood risk
assessment has been submitted. The applicant intends to submit a flood risk assessment (FRA)
and as such it is recommended that the application is deferred and delegated to allow for the
Borough Planning Manager to either approve or refuse the application following the receipt of the
FRA or to refuse the application should an FRA not be forthcoming by 1% August 2016.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Borough Planning Manager:

1. | To grant planning permission on the submission of a satisfactory flood risk assessment
and the provision of the information requested by the lead local flood authority with the
conditions listed in section 9 of this report and suitably worded conditions to ensure the
development is undertaken in accordance with flooding and drainage information.

2. | To refuse planning permission if a satisfactory flood risk assessment is not submitted
and/or if the information requested by the lead local flood authority is not provided by the
1% August 20186.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Borough Planning Manager delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the

130




3.1

4.1

Panel.
DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The site is located on the corner of Maidenhead Road and Vansittart Road. The Maidenhead
Road is in very close proximity to the Windsor relief road (A355/A332) which links to junction 6 of
the M4 motorway providing links to London and Reading. The School site is a mixture of green
playing fields, an artificial sports pitch and car parking. The School is situated within the Thames
Flood Plain. The School has pedestrian access either from the Maidenhead Road or Vansittart
Road. The main vehicular access to the site is on Vansittart Road which leads to the School’s
reception and Car Parking. Vehicular access is also provided off Maidenhead Road. It is
proposed that this access is re established for staff and visitors only.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Ref. Description Decision and Date

93/01683/FULL | Construction of a synthetic grass sports pitch Permitted 07.03.1994
surrounded by a 3 metre high fence and eight 16
metre high floodlighting columns.

03/83233/FULL | Erection of an extension to provide new sixth form | Permitted 27.02.2003
accommodation and performing arts block.

04/85266/FULL | Erection of two storey external lift enclosure. Permitted 23.06.2004
10/00148/FULL | Single storey extension within an existing Permitted 22.03.2010
courtyard.

The proposal

The development involves development across the site to improve the current accommodation
which is listed below.

A. 6" Form Entrance

It is proposed that the existing fire escape stair from the 6th Form Centre is refurbished and semi
enclosed to create an entrance, giving the 6th Form a public presence from Maidenhead Road. A
slatted timber box with slim line roof would surround the staircase allowing natural light and
ventilation into the student entrance as well as concealing the existing ductwork. The proposed
enclosure is approximately 4.9 metres tall and 2.7 metres wide and includes Aluminium signage
to the roof.

B. Staff/Visitor Entrance

The scheme proposes to relocate the schools administration, Head Master and reception to the
old building facing Maidenhead Road. A contemporary single storey annex is proposed to the
school entrance facing Maidenhead Road. This simple contemporary box is clad in slatted timber
and glazing with a thin profiled metal roof which cantilevers out from the box, creating a canopy
above the entrance. The entrance is approximately 13.8 metres wide (not including the roof
overhang) and 3.6 metres tall. Aluminium signage is proposed and the roof would match the sixth
form block.

C. Hall extension
The existing hall (located within the middle of the school) will be extended to provide
approximately an additional 125sgm of dining space, primarily for 6th form pupils. The extension

will consist of a contemporary, single storey, glass box with lightweight roof. The extension is an
infill extension and would not be visible from public vantage points.

131




51

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

D. Changing room extension

The proposed single storey extension of the changing facility (located to the west of block 2 in the
middle of the school) will provide approximately an additional 66sgm. The single storey extension
will be faced with similar brickwork as the adjoining building, with a number of recessed
windows, replicating the surrounding fenestration. The proposed extension is approximately 3.7
metres tall.

E. Other works

The proposal also involves the introduction of a new 1.8 metre tall metal security fence and gate
at the staff and sixth form entrances as well as minor associated landscaping works.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework Sections; 4. Promoting sustainable transport, 7. Requiring
good design and 10. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change.

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Highways and
settlement area Parking Trees Flooding
DG1 P4, T5 N6 F1

Supplementary planning documents
Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

° Sustainable Design and Construction - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:

i Character and appearance;

ii Highway safety

iii Trees/landscaping; and

iv Flooding/drainage

Character and appearance

The school buildings are not listed, nor is the site located within a conservation area. The
buildings are of a high design standard (particularly on the Maidenhead Road side) and
contribute positively to the surrounding area. The proposed extensions to the main and sixth form
entrances are to be finished predominantly in contemporary materials such as timber, glass, and
metal. The designs of these extensions along the Maidenhead Road elevation are also more

132


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

contemporary. The choice of design and materials allows for a clear distinction between the old
and new and whilst the extensions contrast with the historic fabric of the school, the high quality
of the design ensures they do not detract. The extension to the existing hall would also to be
finished predominantly with glazing, it is not considered that this would detract form the existing
buildings. This element would also not be visible form public vantage points and would not
therefore impact on the street scene. The changing room alterations read more as an extension
to the school rather than a new addition like the sixth form and main entrance and as such it is
proposed to be finished in matching brickwork. This is considered to be an acceptable approach
for this element. There are no objections to the designs and materials proposed, however, it is
recommended that samples of the materials are secured prior to commencement to ensure that
they are of a high standard. See suggested condition number 2 in section 9 below.

Highway Safety

The short section of Maidenhead Road changing to Arthur Road at the junction with Vansittart
Road is a classified unnumbered highway. It is considered to be strategically an important route
as it forms a main link from the A332 (M4) link into central Windsor. Maidenhead Road is heavily
trafficked with traffic counts of over 10,000 vehicles per day (December 2012). It is quite likely
that spring/summer and autumn numbers will be higher given the levels of tourism in Windsor.
The existing points of access onto Maidenhead Road are to be maintained with the two accesses
available for visitor parking between the hours of 9am and 2:45pm. The 1* eastern access is to
become an entry only access and the 2™ western access is to become an exit only access. No
entry and exit signs are proposed to be installed as appropriate. It was understood that as the
revised frontage is to be used as the primary 6" form’s access a separate pedestrian gate was to
be included. This does not appear to have been done therefore it will need to be covered by
condition. See suggested condition Number 6 in section 9 below.

The existing vehicular and cycle parking areas are to remain and 9 new spaces (1 disabled) are
proposed by the Maidenhead Road entrance. There are no objections on parking grounds. It is
also considered unlikely that the proposals would have a material effect on vehicle trips to/from
the school.

The school travel plans is being assessed by the Boroughs Road Safety Officer & School Travel
Plans Co-ordinator. A new travel plan should be secured by condition which incorporates the
proposed alterations to the Maidenhead Road accesses. See condition number 7 in section 9
below.

Trees/landscaping

The submitted arboricultural report and tree protection plan are considered sufficient. Subject to
conditions 3 and 4 suggested in section 9 below the impact on important trees is considered to be
acceptable.

Flooding/Drainage

The proposed development passes the sequential test as there is no other secondary school
location in Windsor (for boys) for this development to go. However, at the time of writing this
report there are outstanding drainage issues. The application submitted does not contain details
of how the surface water will be managed and there is no evidence to back up the statement that
the development does not increase flood risk to the surrounding area. No flood risk assessment
has also been submitted and comments are yet to be received from the Environment Agency.
Additional information has therefore been requested on a number of issues. It is recommended
that the panel defers and delegates the decision on the application to allow the Borough
Planning Manager to either approve or refuse the application depending on whether satisfactory
flooding and drainage information is submitted.

133



CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

98 occupiers were notified directly of the application.
The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 21° April 2016. No
comments were received.

Statutory Consultees

signage for accesses onto Maidenhead Road, pedestrian
access from Maidenhead Road, parking provision, an
updated travel plan and a construction management plan.

Consultee Comment Officer response
Highways There will be no highways objections to the proposals as | The suggested
Officer presented subject to the inclusion conditions relating to | conditions have

been included.
See conditions
5to 8 in section
9 below.

Arboricultural

Recommends approval subject to conditions relating to tree

The suggested

Officer protection and tree retention/replacement. conditions have
been included.
See conditions
3and4in
section 9 below.
Lead Local The application submitted does not contain any details of | gee section 6.7
Flood how the surface water will be managed and there is no | of this report.
Authority evidence to back up the statement in the application form

that the development does not increase flood risk to the
surrounding area. Until further information is submitted, |
recommend that the application is not approved on surface
water drainage areas.

Comments awaited

Environment See section 6.7

Agency

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan
e Appendix B — Existing and proposed floor plans

o Appendix C — Existing and proposed elevations

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully resolved.
CONDITIONS IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

No development shall take place until a specification of the materials to be used on the external
surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local

134



Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy DG1

The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree and any other protection specified
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved plans and particulars (arboricultural report
by Martin Dobson Associated dated 31 March 2016 including the tree protection plan forming
Appendix MD4) before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site, and
thereafter maintained until the completion of all construction work and all equipment, machinery
and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or
placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those
areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the written consent of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

No tree or hedgerow shown to be retained in the approved plans (arboricultural report by Martin
Dobson Associated dated 31 March 2016 including the tree protection plan forming Appendix
MD4) shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be lopped or topped
other than in accordance with these approved plans and particulars and without the written
approval of the Local Planning Authority, until five years from the date of occupation of the
building for its permitted use. Any topping or lopping approved shall be carried out in accordance
with British Standard 3998 Tree work. If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or
dies, another tree shall be planted in the immediate vicinity and that tree shall be of the size and
species, and shall be planted at such time, as specified by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1,
N6.

Prior to their erection details of the signage for both accesses onto Maidenhead Road shall be
submitted and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The signage shall be
implemented and maintained in accordance with these details.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan, T5

A pedestrian entrance is required along the Maidenhead Road frontage to ensure that the 6th
form students can enter and exit the site when the vehicular access gates are locked. Details of
how this pedestrian access will be provided should be submitted to and approved in writing prior
to the commencement of works or demolition on site.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan, T5

An updated school travel plan which incorporates the restricted access times for the Maidenhead
Road accesses shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
within 6 months of the date of this permission. The plan shall be implemented in accordance with
the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the free flow of traffic and conditions of highway and pedestrian safety
in the area. Relevant Policies Local Plan T5

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

135



1

Informatives

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act 1986, Part Il, Clause 9, which
enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the footway or grass
verge arising during building operations.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to section 59 of the Highways Act 1980 which enables the
highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

The applicant is advised that any proposed new signage may require advertisement consent.

136



Appendix A — Site location plan

[~

LA -~

Im
) “'f"é‘ARRVA,VENUE
— —

Playing Field

SN 16103 \ Am= m
\ ' / 3 ™ \ 20 el 57 \
n Y g ' \ \
’ . < \
A = 3TESS 0 cmnhncwnmw{:“ y
N ncouit | 1 | 81
. - i
21038 forendon Cou W
m“\ zgw | | 1 2tk
Iyan Count Ve T pe -~
;y\ i\ AL ) ism _a ’ _ -

Site location

© Crown copyright and database right 2016. Ordnance &103}?0018817 Scale @ A4 1:2,500



Proposed site plan

0051
N¥1d 31IS 0350d0dd

)

,_f_..\.Lu

—

EEH

Ydd00D SNIVEHOIW

N

Lo WD T
Jr=ss=ten i

138



[ \m/
1 2078 N¥1d 30074 ANNOYD ONILSIX3 -/

Appendix B — Existing and proposed floor plans

Existing ground floor — Block 1

I
Ii
— % HI_..E:,
S ™1 — H h M?\
T = ] -
o ﬁ ~ e
| ... ﬁ a u_\mmH I
L= — s
] c A dJ =
- ] I N <
- I
%ﬂl | il
- I %_ﬂ. p ] M
- - \.\
— g ]




Proposed ground floor - Block 1

0oL :L _\ﬂz
1 0078 NV1d 20074 ANNOY9 d3sododd -

Ot | s | o | mmes

FH4NL1OF1IHOEV

NVl 0330208 aval
| %0078 Y

OO ONNCHS.
Fmu s — L s Lo
A

B

h

i

A\
]

g

i

AR

Aamnen pens

HOSCHIM HONOHOS TRADH SHL

sam

v TN o om WO L
) NN L1315 YR TGS -~

07 ENLINENGD BEH00D BNV %‘Eﬂw!{:-lz

/]

)

HId00D SNIVAOIW

A
L]
LAd

eumares gy,
g 4 7 s

-
i
i
E

g Sy Supepn mmy

onoarea oL

O
T

Ay o ez,




Existing first floor — Block 1

_ 0oL L \—.J
I ¥20T8 NVd ¥0074 1S} ONILSIXT ~=/

|L__[m_A#

v Do )

JYNLOILIHOY

HOOH LEL
]

KE TR
FuIEIHEDE EOSCNIN OVOY OWIHKIDVT
“DOHIE SADE BOSONIM FHL

Loous

OVEHNE ONY
HOSONIM HENOE0E TVADE SHL
20

000D TSNS 00 SR 0D AT
Y NN LIHLS TV TG
T SHLLTIENDD E34000 SNVEN

~

HIdOO0D SNIVEOW

141




Proposed first floor — Block 1

- CwIHNIaVIH ONY
L =030NIN HSNOBOS TYADH SHL
F som

ALY WUV 00N IOWTIE
i WES NP LTSHLS T T G
047 SNLLIYENDD E34000 ENIWE0N

~

Y3dO0D SNIVEIW

ey

ey umac
R
wna g _ =~
'
L
N
ey Ny
ooy ufyee .
]
A
£ =
£

ookl _\w/

1 ¥2078 N¥Y1d 40074 1S} d350d0dd “—

__M__ @

142



iy 3 ™y - + 30w 0oL -4
[ )
a

72078 NY1d ¥0074 ANNOYD DNILSIXI

IYNL03LIHOY

P DreLEE

[P SVIENIANI ONY
IR 8 sosoNIM HanGHGe TAOH 3HL

soro

o

o U 10 P AR W
A e i) P s 3LCM

Existing ground floor — Block 2

LA

]




00L:L /7Y

ZY5018 Nv1d 400 aNNOYS a350d0dd \*/

00 EEH00D ENIVEDN

‘\J/

ATd00D SNIVIOW

Proposed ground floor — Block 2

EEEFH

ey

i
s ok
|

At

:
3
§
[T TITITTITIITITTITITTIT 1T

o B e

144



Existing first floor — Block 2

r4 -se [sman- v -u-re - za-oem-caw fssees

e N— _..: T | swaw

34N1O031IHOYY

W SReLEnE
z %0078
HOOE L)
T

b
FIHTNEEE EOTONIM 'TWOE TYEHNEOW
JOOHDE BADE HOSCHNIM FHL

e

CWEHNIAVI O
HOTONIM HONDE0S TYADE SHL

-
2o
P ——
e WS o LTS S 0
7 NLTIENOS 134000 ENIVEDN
43d00D é?
T
- et
" rasausiz ¢
wn 0 200 T e BT

R o SBRLISH e W) LT

e m.__.w

——

T\

00L:L \Q
2M2078 NY1d 50014 1S ONILSIX3 -

]

——

AN}

ﬁ_\n -
[
ﬁ .
-

|

T

145



Proposed first floor — Block 2

e 3 s 0 LD o L R 0 3L

i e e e

3210 e e A v 3 h - o 0oL T
ek e ot e ——

B i £ Y2078 NV1d #0074 1S} 0350d0dd '

7 v D00,

JYNLOILIHOYY

e o R T P

soomit
~ - _ _ 7
. } bt cmy 1
sueuss sosouM B
“Sonos aros w0

J

|\

-

£ Eurt

el
-
Y]

H
|| Bk
i ||

§
i
i
i

- g
l—.\. 1

N




Existing ground and first floor — Block 3

- o1 3om 0L : \MJ 0oLl \w/
SR E e €X2079 NY1d 40074 1S} ONLLSIX3 - £X00789 NV1d Y0014 ANNOYD ONILSIXT -

39N103

LIHOYY

S¥00TS 121 ¥ aNNONS

mEE e
FWIHIEDT HOIONIN TVOX OVEHNICWT
JOOHDE A0S HOSONIM IHL

s

CYERNZONI ONY
HOTONIM HONOS0E TWADH SHL

g
a7 SN 24003 SvEan
400D SNIVEII
= m= E———— ¥ L ) L J o O
Lo || oo
J oty

147

s




Proposed ground and first floor — Block 3

JHIHINLES HOSONIM VDL OVEl
I00HIE SADE 05

- CvERNZaI ONY
L wosoumeenowos TaoEEHL
sam

L TR OB L O ST
) MESIRGNGT LIS TVOMR T
L7 DHLTTENGD B34000 ENVED

00 L7 oL )Y
,Z@m/.:. 1O €M2078 N¥1d HOOT4 1S} 03S0d0oyd -/ £ 12078 N¥1d 40014 ANNOYD a3s0doyd -/
dad J ol o

T i B B
[ SEewau E 1
e R o R e
L = W -
. ) e
W whEm
o =~ 00
=] 4
o AN .
— .
LA
1




Existing ground floor — Block 4

oo

SuINEEE EOSONIM 'TYOE
SDOHOE .2A0S B

- ovINaTl
0 vosowm HEn0B0E VA

ORI TITNS | OOMGRLLOR BeITE
o IO LIS T T
U7 ENLINYENDD ME4000 ENVEDR

N

y3d00D .@7

s sear e T
gt ettt

nnnnnnn

LIl TN
¥ 32078 N¥1d 40074 ANNOHD ONILSIX3 )

3
(PR —
|
iy
—
——

149




Proposed ground floor — Block 4

3YNLOILIHOY

14 03202082
+ %2018

50074 ONNCES
Tau

IOOHTE SAOS BOBONIM THL
oo

SYIENIAVI ONY
BOSONIN HINOE0E TWATH IHL
saw

e mon

[ [ RN
b

¥ Y2078 N¥1d 40074 ANNOHO A3SOd0oNd -

z [ —

| i ]
cugun
il g werong

o

"

e ra]
FEpT ==

ey

=g

g e

T

L]

150

™
!
S



Appendix C — Existing and proposed elevations

Existing elevations — Block 1

I Y2079 'NOILYAIT3 LS3IM ONILSIX3

| ¥2079 NOILYAITI HLNOS DNILSIX3 F M2078 NOILYAITA LSY3 ONILSIX3

I M2079 "NOILYAITI HLYON ONILSIX3

151



Proposed elevations— Block 1

— 0oLl P

I ¥2078 NOILVYAIT3 1S3M J350d0ud

| %008
SHOUVATTE 032020
e e

mEE e
SIS HOLONIM 'TWOE OVEHAECT
SOOHIE BAOE BOBCNIN SHL

avaisieve g OVIHNIAWIN DN
R ) voomemrocms oo

[ e oy

e v oo s N
e avwn mRsuBL DT Co

e waw ORI WICE AT R . L st 1 Busoum s s
e bW WM L3 L O T e i pr i U 5 L

00k -1 z

I MO079 NOILYAIT2 1SVv3 A3S0d0dd

0oLl L

I 12078 NOILVAIT3 HLYON J3s0d0ud

o oy s e e s 1 e .
¥ R 3 PR LIS S PR ] LD




Existing elevations — Block 2

001 -4

veidool L

JUNLOILIHOYY

TM2078 NOILVYAZT3 1LSV3 ONILSIX3 £

ey

ik NETANGNE LTS SO T 0

wane
s o ==t
00L-L

212078 NOILVA3T3 LS3M ONILSIX3 z

_ 00131 @
€40078 NOILYAZTE HLHON ONILSIX3




Proposed elevations — Block 2

T BNLLIENGS 3000 SHIWEIN

TN

HddOOD SNIVEOIN

tHH
%
g
i

0oL L mHv
242079 NOILYAZT3 LSv3 03S0d0ud

0oL : H ” u
€M007178 NOILYAZT3 HLYON d3$0d0ud




WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

20 July 2016 ltem: 6
Application 16/01097/FULL

No.:

Location: 109 High Street Eton Windsor SL4 6AN

Proposal: Single storey rear and two storey side extensions with amendments to

fenestration, following the removal of the existing non-original extensions.
Part change of use to class C3 (residential)

Applicant: Mr Shymansky

Agent

Mr Alex Chapman - Lewandowski Architects Ltd

Parish/Ward: Eton Town Council

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Alistair De Joux on 01628 685729 or at
alistair.dejoux@rbwm.gov.uk

Application No: 16/01098/LBC
Location: 109 High Street Eton Windsor SL4 6AN
Proposal: Single storey rear and two storey side extensions with amendments to

fenestration, following the removal of the existing non-original extensions.
Part change of use to class C3 (residential)

Applicant: Mr Shymansky

Agent:

Mr Alex Chapman - Lewandowski Architects Ltd

Parish/Ward: Eton Town Council

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Rachel Fletcher on 01628 685687 or at
rachel.fletcher@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

1.3

SUMMARY

This report considers both the full planning and listed building consent applications for this
proposal, which is to extend this dwelling at the sides and rear, and provide three flats on the first
and second floors of the building in place of two flats. The site is in a Conservation Area and
the building itself is Grade 2 listed. The design and layout of the scheme is considered
acceptable in this sensitive context.

The site is in a floodable area, and while a Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted and the
Environment Agency has not objected, further information is awaited from the applicant in regard
to development in this floodable area and risk to future occupants. This is a sequential test
assessment of other available sites at a lower risk of flooding and demonstration that a safe flood
escape route can be provided for future the residents. Further information on these points is to
be provided in an update report.

In considering the listed building application, the Council has had special regard to the desirability
of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest
which it possesses, as required under Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Furthermore, the application has been considered on the basis of
the Development Plan, including Local Plan Policy LB2 Local Plan Policies DG1, CAl, CA2, LB2
and the NPPF.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Borough Planning Manager:

1. | To grant planning permission on (i) the satisfactory submission of a sequential test
assessment of other available sites at a lower risk of flooding and of a safe flood
escape route for future residents; and (ii) completion of an undertaking to secure
future residents’ car parking restrictions as set out in Section 6 and with the
conditions listed in Section 10 of this report.

155




2.

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

2 | To refuse planning permission if a satisfactory sequential test assessment of other
available sites at a lower risk of flooding and / or a safe flood escape route for
future residents has not been received by 1 August 2016, and / or a completed
undertaking to secure the residents car parking restriction have not been provided
by 31 August 2016, for the reason that the proposal does not satisfy National
Planning Guidance on development in floodable areas, and / or puts future
residents at an unacceptable risk from flooding, and or that the development would
result in an unacceptable increase in on-street car parking demand.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Alexander, because of the degree of public comment and interest
in the application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application property is a listed building on the western side of the High Street close to its
junction with Eton Court. The site forms part of the Eton Conservation Area. The building itself
consists of a number of elements dating over several centuries of construction and occupation.
Some of these are of significant architectural and historic interest visible both internally and
externally, although there also appear to be at least two unauthorised PVC framed replacement
windows in the rear and side elevations.

The ground floor of the building is currently occupied by a photographic studio business and
contains reception areas, studios, offices and store rooms. Access to this is from the High
Street. The first floor contains offices, a store room used by the photographic studio business
and part of an apartment which also occupies part of the second floor. The second floor is in
residential use. Both business and residential uses share car parking to the rear.

The site is within Flood Zones 2 and 3.
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The proposal is to extend the existing building to the side and rear following the demolition of
the existing single storey side and rear extensions, which are not considered to be of any
historic significance. The extensions would be built on the same footprint as the existing, with
the most prominent part of the proposal being the two storey side extensions to replace the
existing single storey, while those at the rear would be single storey in height. Internal works
are also proposed, re-ordering the existing internal rooms mainly at first and second floor levels
but with some minor alterations on the ground floor.

The proposals will also result in some of the commercial space at first floor level becoming
residential accommodation, and with the extensions one additional 2 bed flat would be
provided, resulting in one 1-bedroom flat and two 2-bedroom flats / maisonettes over the first
and second floors. (The existing accommodation consists of one 1-bedroom flat and one 2-
bedroom flats/maisonettes.)

The majority of the ground floor would remain in business use, with a small portion of the new
extension to be utilised as an entrance foyer for the residential accommodation above; first and
second floor levels would be occupied solely by residential accommodation, as follows:

o Maisonette 1 will occupy parts of the first floor including parts of both the existing building and
the proposed extension, and provide two bedrooms and an open plan living room and
kitchen. This apartment also has a terrace which would be located above the proposed
single storey rear extension. Two sash windows on the rear elevation would be replaced with
double glazed timber sash windows of matching appearance.

e Maisonette 2 would also be spread across parts of both the existing building and new
extension, with a new opening proposed in the end gable wall of the original building to
provide access between the living room and kitchen. The bathroom will be accessed via an
existing window opening which is pl’0p0f65d6'[0 be enlarged to become a doorway and the



4.4

51

5.2

5.3

existing staircase would be retained to provide access to two double bedrooms at second
floor level. A new roof light is proposed above this staircase to provide natural light,
ventilation and additional headroom.
o Maisonette 3 would be located solely within the existing building and use the existing main
staircase to provide access from the living room, kitchen and bathroom at first floor to a
second floor bedroom. The existing roof light over the main staircase will be repaired where
necessary and retained.

The property has the following planning history:

Ref. Description Decision and Date
97/76026/LBC | Installation of street lighting flood lamp with | Permitted 02.02.1998
associated cable and control box to front elevation
15/03655/FULL | Single storey rear, part two storey, part three Withdrawn 16.12.2015
storey side extensions.
15/03657/LBC | Consent for single storey rear, part two storey, part | Withdrawn 16.12.2015
three storey side extensions, Internal and external
refurbishments and associated works following
demolition of non-original extensions to existing
buildings.
16/01098/LBC | Consent for single storey rear and two storey side | Listed building

extensions with internal and external
refurbishments and associated works following
demolition of non-original extensions to existing
buildings.

application being
considered alongside this
full planning application.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework, Section 2, 4, 6, 7 10, 11 and 12.

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

o , Highways, Area
UL .H'gh Conservation Listed car parking specific
settlement risk of S -
: Area Building and cycle policies
area flooding
storage
DGiﬁTlo’ F1 CA2 LB2, LB3 T5, P4, T7 ETN1

Supplementary planning documents

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

o Interpretation of Policy F1 - Areas liable to flooding
e Sustainable Design and Construction
e Planning for An Ageing Population

More information on these documents can be found at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications

5.4 Other strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

° RBWM Parking Strategy
° RBWM Strategic Flood Risk Assessment
° RBWM Townscape Assessment

157



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

View the above guidance at:

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

° Conservation Area appraisal - view at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp conservation consultation appraisals.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:

[ whether the proposal would harm the special historic or architectural interest, including
the setting of, listed buildings, and if there is harm whether there are public benefits that
would outweigh that harm;

ii whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the
Eton Conservation Area;

iii other design issues;

iv.  whether the proposal would, either by itself or cumulatively with other similar proposals,
impede the flow of flood water, reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store flood water,
or increase the number of people or properties at risk from flooding;

\ the impact on the amenities of the neighbouring residents; and
vi  the adequacy of parking on the site and the impact on highway safety in the area.
Impact on the historic character and fabric of Listed Buildings

The Council has had special regard to the desirability of preserving the listed building and their
setting, and any features of special architectural or historic interest which they possesses, as
required under Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990. Furthermore, the application has been considered on the basis of the Development Plan,
including Local Plan Policy LB2 and the NPPF. Paragraph 131 of the NPPF says that when
determining applications local authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining
and enhancing heritage assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their
conservation and the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local
character and distinctiveness.

A significant part of the south-facing flank wall of the original building would be covered up.
Whilst the current visibility of the gable elevation is interesting and an attractive feature,
covering up the majority of the gable elevation would not reduce the historical significance of
the building. As the heritage statement sets out, within the last century this elevation was
largely obscured from view because buildings continued along the western side of High Street.

It is considered that the blend of contemporary and traditional architectural features as a design
approach for the side extension is appropriate because it ensures the extension represents the
era within which is was constructed and allows the listed building to remain prominent and
visually distinct. The quality of finish will be important and can be managed through condition.
The proposed use of brick as a traditional material will compliment the listed building.

Proposed internal alterations to facilitate the new flats are small scale and would retain to a
large extent the existing layout of the listed building. Where modifications are to be made they
have careful been chosen in locations that have far less significance such as the 19th century
rear extensions to the building. A new single doorway through the gable wall of the oldest part
of the building to facilitate the flat arrangements is a minor change that would not harm the
special interest of the building.

It is considered that the setting of other important listed buildings including those along High
Street would not be compromised. Current views from Jubilee Square area towards Grade Il

158


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_conservation_consultation_appraisals.htm

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

listed St John’s church to the north east would be obscured however it is not considered that
this view is an essential part of the significance of the church building, although serendipitous
views are an attractive element of a townscape.

Overall, the proposals retain and repair the important historical fabric of the listed building. It is
considered that the proposals would preserve the special interest of 109 High Street and
therefore would not cause harm as set out in the NPPF. The quality of the proposal together
with some traditional external materials ensures the scheme complies with Local Plan Policy
LB2. The public benefits of the continued use of the building for residential use together with
much needed repairs to the building are genuine heritage benefits. It is also considered that the
proposal would not harm the setting of nearby listed buildings.

Effects on the character and appearance of the Eton Town Centre Conservation Area

NPPF 126 advises that new development should make a positive contribution to local character
and at paragraph 137 that opportunities for new development should be sought in Conservation
Areas that enhance or better reveal the significance of the Conservation Area. Where a
proposal would cause less than substantial harm NPPF paragraph 134 explains that there
should be public benefits from the scheme that outweigh that harm including putting the building
to its optimum viable use.

The design of the side extension is clearly contemporary, and would provide a clear contrast
between the old and new buildings at the site. While this differs from the styles of surrounding
buildings, the design is of high quality and it is considered that this will preserve the appearance
of the Conservation Area by providing an appropriately scaled extension that is “of its time”
while also achieving a considerable sympathetic approach to the extension of the building. The
more traditional but less visible extensions at the rear are also considered to be acceptable. In
arriving at this recommendation special attention has been paid to the desirability of preserving
or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area, as required under Section
72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

The proposed extensions are therefore also considered to achieve the aims of paragraph 126,
and while some of the historic fabric - part of the side wall at first floor level and (in perspective)
the second floor level will be lost in views from surrounding public viewpoints- the restoration
and refurbishment of the listed buildings will achieve the aim of paragraph 137. The heritage
benefits of the continuing use of the building for largely commercial ground floor with residential
above and the repairs to be undertaken to the building constitute heritage benefits and the
scheme meets the requirements of NPPF paragraph 134.

Other design issues

Policy N2 (Setting of the Thames) requires further consideration of design in this specific
setting, and Policy DG1 also seek high standards of design in the layout, appearance and
landscaping of new development. The Council’s consideration of these matters is assisted by
the Townscape Assessment (TA), which provides a very detailed assessment of the Borough’s
townscape areas and characteristics. The TA classifies the area as a Historic Town Core, and
while there is an area of post-war flats to the south west this is not visible from public vantage
points around the application site.

The small park at the corner of Eton Court makes an important contribution to the streetscape
and the proposed extensions would not diminish the character of that area. The design and
access statement explains that it is not anticipated that the building work would disturb the
planting in Jubilee Gardens. This area is outside the application site boundary.

There is also some scope for introducing discreet landscape elements in the rear car parking
area, which would further contribute to the setting of the listed building and to the character and

159



6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

appearance of the Conservation Area. (see condition 4 in section 10 of this report under
conditions for application 16/01097/full).

As noted above however, the overall design is considered to be acceptable in this historic
context. It is also satisfies the requirements of policy N2 and DGL1 in this respect.

Flooding issues

The site lies within an area at risk from flooding. Flood Zone 3 is land assessed as having a 1
in 100 or greater annual probability of river flooding (>1% in any given year), and is classified as
being at High Risk in flooding terms; Flood Zone 2 is at a moderate risk of flooding. The
building itself is in Flood Zone 2, while the land to the rear is in Flood Zone 3. Local Plan Policy
F1 provides for residential development within the flood plain only where it can be demonstrated
that the proposal would not, either alone or cumulatively with other development, impede the
flow of flood water and increase the number of people at risk from flooding. The National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) both
support this stance. NPPG also advises that development should be directed to the least
vulnerable part of its development site.

NPPG advice requires the following information to be provided for residential sites in areas that
are as risk of flooding:
0] a ‘sequential test’ assessment of other available sites, which should demonstrate
that there are no less floodable sites where the development could be provided,
(i) a site specific Flood Risk Assessment, and
(iii) for development in Flood Zone 3, a demonstration that the development would
provide wider sustainability benefits to the community (the ‘exceptions test’).

No sequential test document had been submitted at the time of writing this report, and this issue
remains to be fully addressed before any planning permission can be granted for the
application. Any additional information will be reported in an update.

A site specific Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted. The proposal would not result in
any additional coverage at ground floor level and the proposal would therefore result in no loss
of flood plain capacity or impedance of the flow of flood water. The proposed flats would be
well above flood level. It remains for the applicant to demonstrate that a safe escape route can
be provided, and progress on this matter will also be reported in an update.

Because the building itself is in Flood Zone 2 and in line with advice in NPPG as cited above,
the application is not required to pass the ‘exceptions test'.

Impacts on the amenities of the neighbouring residents

It is not considered that either the additional windows provided in this extended building or the
rear facing first floor level balcony would result in any significant overlooking or loss of privacy
to nearby properties. The proposal would also not result in any perceptible loss of light to
windows serving adjacent properties.

Parking and highway safety

The site is deemed to be within a sustainable area being within 500m from the Windsor and
Eton Riverside train station which has links to London. Therefore the minimum parking standard
is deemed to be acceptable, which is for 1.5 spaces per 60sgm for the ground floor commercial
use (3 spaces per 120sgm) and 1 car parking space for each one or two bed flat. As there are
eight existing spaces with an allocation of five spaces for the shop and one space each for the
flats, the existing on-site car parking would be sufficient to meet this requirement. It is
considered that a section 106 planning obligation to restrict future residents of the new flats
from being eligible for on-street parking permits would be required. A number of conditions are
requested in the Highways consultation response including a requirement for a construction
management plan to be submitted and approved, and these are recommended below
(conditions 2,7,8 and 9).
160



6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

7.1

Other Material Considerations

Trees

There are a number of trees located at the rear of the site. Local Plan policy N6 requires a tree
survey to be submitted with any application, and for good quality trees to be retained as part of
any development proposal. While no tree survey was submitted, it is noted that the trees are
well separated from the building, and it is therefore considered that the application is acceptable
with the inclusion of a condition requiring submission and approval of tree protection details as
recommended below at condition 10.

Housing Land Supply

Paragraphs 7 and 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that there will
be a presumption in favour of Sustainable Development. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that
applications for new homes should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and that relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of
deliverable housing sites.

It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough'’s housing stock,
subject to all other matters being resolved.

Aircraft noise

The area is subject to significant aircraft noise, and a standard condition to demonstrate that
future occupiers will be protected against aircraft noise is recommended at condition 6.

Living conditions of future occupiers

The proposed residential unit that will be located to the rear of the building will benefit from a
first floor outdoor terrace area. The two maisonettes that are closest to High Street will not.
However, the existing flat arrangement does not benefit from private amenity space and
therefore there is in essence no change in that situation. It is considered that the living
conditions of future residents would be adequate and thus meet the requirements of the Core
planning principles of the NPPF (paragraph 17).

Archaeology

The plan of the medieval town is largely unaltered and previous investigations along the High
Street have recovered medieval and post-medieval remains. This proposal therefore lies in an
area of archaeological importance and has the potential to impact on significant buried remains,
particularly on the High Street frontage, where opportunities for archaeological investigation in
Eton have been very limited.

It is therefore recommended that a condition (see condition 5) is attached to any planning
consent granted so that, once details of known and proposed foundations are established,
mitigation of the impacts of development can be proposed if merited. This is in accordance with
Paragraph 141 of the NPPF which states that local planning authorities ‘should also require
developers to record and advance understanding of the significance of any heritage assets to
be lost (wholly or in part) in a manner proportionate to their importance and the impact, and to
make this evidence (and any archive generated) publicly accessible’.

ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The Council’'s Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) document was subject to examination in
March of this year. While this development is likely to place additional pressure on local
services and infrastructure, the CIL has not yet been adopted, so the development would not be
liable for any financial contributions at this time.

161



CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

Ten occupiers were notified directly of the application. The planning officer posted a statutory
notice advertising the application at the site on 18 April, and the application was advertised in
the Maidenhead and Windsor Advertisers on 21 April 2016.

Six letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

1. | Scale and design of the proposed side extension is inappropriate in this
location and as part of a listed building.

6.2-6.14

Contemporary architecture has often been unsuccessful in Eton

6.2-6.14

Concerns about construction traffic, as the rear of the site provides
access to other nearby residential properties.

6.21

Statutory Consultees

Consultee

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Environment
Agency

The proposed development as submitted is unlikely to
increase flood risk on site and elsewhere. Therefore, we
have no objection to the proposal as submitted. However,
we wish to provide the following advice with regards to our
remit.

The proposed development is located within the 1% Annual
Exceedance Probability (AEP) plus an appropriate allowance
for climate change flood extent. In accordance with
paragraphs 101 to 104 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), you must ensure that the ‘development
is appropriately flood resilient and resistant, including safe
access and escape routes where required...” (NPPF
paragraph 103). Within the application documents the
applicant should clearly demonstrate to you that a
satisfactory route of safe access and egress is achievable. It
is for you to assess and determine if this is acceptable. We
enclose a copy of our safe access and egress guidance
statement to assist you with your assessment. Please note
we have not assessed the proposed access and egress
route. We recommend that consideration be given to the use
of flood resilience measures within the ground floor to reduce
the impact of flooding when it occurs. Flood proofing
measures include barriers on ground floor doors, windows
and access points and bringing in electrical services into the
building at a high level so that plugs are located above
possible flood levels.

6.15-6.19

Other Consultees

Consultee

Comment

Where in the
report this is




10.

considered

Highways: No objections subject to section 106 to control access to 6.21
future parking permits for the new flat, and to conditions.
Berkshire This proposal therefore lies in an area of archaeological Condition 5

Archaeology: | importance and has the potential to impact on significant
buried remains, particularly on the High Street frontage,
where opportunities for archaeological investigation in Eton
have been very limited. However it is noted that the proposal
involves the removal of non-original existing extensions and
their replacement, along the same wall lines, with new
extensions. At face value, this suggests limited impact on in
situ remains, although the foundations for the existing
extensions may be shallow and slight. A condition has been
requested.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A - site location plan
o Appendix B - proposed elevation drawings, floor plans and streetscene drawing

e Appendix C - existing elevation drawings, section and floor plans

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues it is considered that the issues have either been successfully resolved, or
that they are likely to be resolvable.

CONDITIONS IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED
16/01097

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used on the external
surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy Local Plan DG1, LB2
and CA2

No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works, have
been submitted to and approved in writiitha/ the Local Planning Authority and these works shall



10

be carried out as approved within the first planting season following the substantial completion of
the development and retained in accordance with the approved details. If within a period of five
years from the date of planting of any tree or shrub shown on the approved landscaping plan,
that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub planted in replacement for it, is removed, uprooted or
destroyed or dies, or becomes seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub of the
same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the immediate vicinity, unless
the Local Planning Authority gives its prior written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area and the setting of listed buildings. Relevant Policies -
Local Plan DG1, CA2 and LB2.

No development shall take place, other than demolition of the extension to ground level, within
the application area until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of
archaeological works in accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which has been
submitted by the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.

Reason: The site lies within an area of archaeological potential, specifically within the historic
core of the medieval settlement of Eton. A programme of works is required to mitigate the impact
of development and to record any surviving remains so as to advance our understanding of their
significance in accordance with national and local plan policy.

No development shall take place until details of the measures to be taken to acoustically insulate
all habitable rooms of the development against aircraft noise, together with details of measures
to provide ventilation to habitable rooms, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved measures shall be carried out and completed before the
development is first occupied for residential purposes and retained.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable living environment for future occupiers. Relevant Policies
Local Plan NAP2, H10.

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking and turning space has been
provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with a layout that has first been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The space approved shall be kept
available for parking and turning in association with the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking and turning facilities
in order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of
traffic and to highway safety, and to facilitate vehicles entering and leaving the highway in
forward gear. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until a refuse bin storage area and recycling
facilities have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These facilities shall be kept available for
use in association with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate facilities that allow it to be
serviced in a manner which would not adversely affect the free flow of traffic and highway safety
and to ensure the sustainability of the development. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5, DG1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle parking facilities
have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These facilities shall thereafter be kept available for the
parking of cycles in association with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7, DG1

Prior to any equipment, machinery or materials being brought onto the site or commencement of
any works in connection with the planning permission including demolition, protection measures
for the retained trees shall be implemented in full, in accordance with British Standard
B5837:2005 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The protection
measures shall be maintained until the completion of all construction work and all equipment,
machinery and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site. Nothing shall be
stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels
within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the prior

164



11

written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

16/01098/LBC

The works/demolition shall commence not later than three years from the date of this consent.
Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) and to avoid unimplemented consents remaining
effective after such lapse of time that relevant considerations may have changed.

Rainwater goods shall be cast iron or cast aluminium.
Reason: To protect and preserve the character of the listed building. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan LB2.

Prior to commencement a brick panel shall be created for inspection by the Local Planning
Authority showing the proposed brick, bonding, mortar type, pointing detail and shall be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The work shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: To protect and preserve the character of the listed building. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan LB2.

Prior to their insertion, details showing a section of proposed windows and external doors
including opening surrounds shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To protect and preserve the character of the listed building. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan LB2.

Prior to its use in the development a sample of coping material to be used (and elsewhere
indicated for use) shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The
work shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To protect and preserve the character of the listed building. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan LB2.

Prior to the commencement of the scheme a schedule of repairs to be undertaken to 109 High
Street and a timeframe for the work shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To protect and preserve the character of the listed building. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan LB2.

Where new openings are proposed in the listed building plaster will be made good with like-for-
like plaster including lime plaster which it exists. Reason: To protect and preserve the
character of the listed building. Relevant Policies - Local Plan LB2.

This consent does not permit the demolition or dismantling of any part of the building, or the
removal of any internal feature, floor, wall or ceiling surface, except in so far as the alterations
and extension hereby approved necessitate the removal of certain parts of the existing structure
as shown on the approved plans.

Reason: To protect and preserve the character of the listed building. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan LB2

Prior to installation further details shall be provided for the balustrade including a details plan of
the detail and information about the materials and finish to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved detail.

165



Reason: To protect and preserve the character of the listed building. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan LB2.

166



Appendix A — Location Plan

e =

—— i
31012, \
17
square

gy Johns
St John's Square

3 7\
Site location

167



Appendix B — Proposed plans

30
2630

2572 “

FRONT ELEVATION
(EAST ELEVATION)

168



356

300
2630

2572

chuckg b sckder oo

SIDE ELEVATION
(SOUTH ELEVATION)

169




REAR ELEVATION
(WEST ELEVATICN)

170



Om 2m 4m

| im | 3m I

LECENDYREY:
@ [ ENSTING WALLS T 3E RETAINED

TTITT T eI STRUCTURE 13 08 REMOVED

[ WEW WALLE

MKE STORE AND

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

171



LIVING RO

= j *5’1'*:’:17:
——

=

e
2170 18

KITCHEN

=

L=t

ENTRANCE

4 u'aJEC;{.—ll- /-L o

§
H

-
.

ENNEE
ur a— %

Hat

i
i

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

=
[
g
v
i
sailu
.
foeect
BEDADOM 1
h:EFII
TERRACE

172



Om 2m 4m
] im am
| |
LEGENDIREY!
@ [ EXISTING WALLS TO/BE RETMINED
CoTTT T ExlsTIG STRUGTURE 79 BE REMOVED

/O Hewwals

SEDACOM 2

BECRCOM 3

BECROOM 1 | | |
I | |
I

GREEN ROOF | |
AT FIRST |
FLODA LEVEL |

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

173



174




Appendix C — Existing plans

Wiz Rende 1y
finksn

Brkkwor
hkh

FRONT ELEVATION
(EAST ELEVATION)

175



e |
Glay Rt Tlles — s ]

e ——=

SIDE ELEVATION
(SOUTH ELEVATION)

176



Clay Roof Tlk

Clay Roed Tlles

[ = =

=

Bricavenr |
finlsn -EE

Cormugated Ion wol]

TImker si | H
wall flnlsh | ——
Upve wine —

=t ==

= i

LIIIIIIIIIIIIII
= (=1 =]

Upve frame
double doors

REAR ELEVATION
(WEST ELEVATION)

Timber slrlp—l

wall flnlsh

Timber frame
window

177

previous garag
cormverted to offloe



Section A-A

178

soddrg
H é ¥
Lab .'J}'_ wdls Living
Ty | — 1
a
4 Bathraom WC Labby B Lafiby Offlce E "
f ¥ oL
=N : a ] 27
NNE— i
= [l [ =
L L
suda I
Retguch|n Corrjdor 1 4 Corrdor 1 i Waltlng Area 1

[T



Om 2m

I i o _Flaor Firlsn
| =
WAITING RECEPTION
AREA 1 AREA
Timiser Stp Elaar Finlsa Timber Stris Flzer Arlsh
WAITING
AREA 2
Timber Sirlo Fleor Firlsh

ST.2
Theber Slilp. Ca 7
Fhigh norese Floor hhh
L=
I

"

ST, Residential

C Stalr 1
H--

Conorete
Flaee Flrlsh 5T

[+)
g. l Contrabe Floor Flrlsh
[N
2 -
- WAITING || gapy
AREA 3 HANGING Gy,

Thmner Stlp Flaar Flnlsn

STUDIO

'Whke Palnt Floor Fnksn

bt Silp Floor Finlse] | Flo0r FIER

KITCHEN
l.llantamn
Tlef AT

RETOUCHING ROOM

OFFICE
Timizer Stdp Floar Flnlsh

corfdor 2

Lignt Broan
Tllec Floor Firlsh

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

179



S

—;;: T
(E——AQ—

Flocr F{sh 18
adad oot P It 17 16
1 )

il

OFFICE O

Light Geey Carpst Floor Flki

1 &

|_,—I

_IJ .

%) LOBBY
RerFERy iy
“loor Flnlsn

Havey Blue Canzet

FFICE ELAT

or Flrlsh

Light Grey Carped Floor Firsh

L EERN
gy Lobby to|_ § “1

Iat% ngh ey Carpal |
\ ¢ Flnksh .,__| 1

a2l . 1 ]

FLAT

Liaht Gray Carped Floor Flrlsh

Thnber Stp
Floor Firlsh

BATHROOM

—

T riber Stip Floar Flnjsn %

=F

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

180




|

Floar Flnjsh

arpat
Floar Ejash

L_Igrt(:'m] ST.

LOBBY

Floar Flnlsh

—_—

Light Geey Carpet

-
STUDT ;
&
Bedroom Studlo FLAT
Tl ey Carel Hwtrmg—room g Grey Carpel
Floge FHlgh Light Grey Garpet Floar Flnls

Hafore=

L b

—

206)73 24 )33 22
=20

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

181




ov

QDD

ov

NmvaQ

SLAVYW €V®00Z: 1L

ava V0§

a0

Az

Lo

on oma

d

4434
3aM OMT

oN 1037084
ONINNYd 304

snuvis

Arerwox C

NV1d 3LS ONILSIX3
U ONIMY I

NO13
13331S HOIH 601

123r04d

AASNVWAHS o dW

NI

Hmvaa

NOUCRDSIC  3VG A3Y

SILON

wa wezswano 00

$S}0841Y2iV DISMOpUDMET]

HiGH €

pGH STREET

The Christopher

sy umpleg
pue yBisT usny




110D $12A414DIDINSMOPLOMA] MMM
4 00£0¢9 £5£10 1
“HOSANIM 'NOI3 13341 HOIH 0E1

&

oV SLAYW €V®00L:L

HimysC e 3vas
i 00 0g0 d 14454
i onoma amOMO ON12370dd
i ONINNVd 304

svis

NOILYAFTI 1SV ONILSIX3
21U ONIMVET

NOL3

13331S HOIH 401

123rOdd

AASNVYWAHS o dW

rano

NmvaQ NOUDSIG v AZS

e 00

S3ION

(NOILVA31E 1LSVY3)
NOILVATTI LNO¥

$100}IY2JY DISMOPUDMST]

usiuy
19pUBY AUUM ]

usiuy
A 18pUY SlIUM

[Cp

saji jooy Aey

183



o5 rias 43I0 Hines oMl A
SLAYW £V®00L:
] 3va 3OS
i
00 10 d vZeT
] OM OMC 3dAL OMA ONLDIO¥d
i ONINNYd 304
SALVIS
NOILYAZN HINOS ONILSIX3
T ONMAYAQ
NeJE]
i 13331 HOIH 601
H 103r0dd
AXSNYWAHS ¥ 3W
eno
nanvac ouasa ava as
e s 00
:
I
i
i
i
I
i
|
1
|
|
|
| SILON

ﬂomzco:« PISMOPUDMST]

g

E

(NOILYATT3 HLNOS)
NOILVAZ13 3AIS

usjul
Jom¥OLg

dn payooiq
-Ajleusajul MOpUIA

M\ 1L jooy Aefo

L J00Y Aeid

ystuy Asuwiyo
pomyoug

usjup
uompoug

184



ov ov SLAYW €V®00
QTS NMvad avg oS

00 [43¢] d [£4%4

A onoma enome ON 1231084

ONINNVYd 404

snuvis

NOILYAFI3 LSIM ONILSIX3
Tl SNMYED

NO13

133318 HOIH 601

123r0Hd

AASNVWAHS o 3W

NEND

Hmaa

0530 AVO A3¥

i wmesn 00

S3LON

(NOILVAZ1E LSam)
NOILVYA3IT3 ¥v3y

$10611U2lV YSMopuUDMaT]

Mopuim $100p B|gnop
swely Jaquil awely oadn
30140 0} pAUSAUCD ysiuyy jlem
_|wmm‘_mm snojasud _|a_bm 1aquiry
HEEE .
M ; T usjuy awey
oS dpaunn== 1=k S
HRES— =
F— =5 L L= 1S JequilL
4001 uol pajeBniI0g
usiuy
ORI
A A

ystuy flem

A JaqUIIL

s3I jooy Aejd

saiiL Jooy Aejd

185



42IDIASMOPUD ML MMM
29 €5/19 4 00/019 £/
7915 33151538 JOSCMM NOLZ 13331

SLAYW EV®00L:L

GEDIHD NMVAC sva ER%H

00 ov0 d yeee

Az CNOMO  JaA OMC ON DI Odd

ONINNY1d 404

svis

NOILO3S ONILSIX3
1 ONIMY2a

NOI3

13331S HOIH 601
193704
AASNVWAHS o dW

mano

NVAC NOUdIZDSIq AV A3

- era 1

%1 00

V-V Uoloss

~
oo z o —
0510+
g
| eaty Buglepm § sopuiog & E Jopwon
=" aps
=]
3 Nm [ |
i

— o (=]

soe {E] [
» * H MO P} Agjio i Agqo7 oM wooiyjeg

4
oo W T WE RS |
peod
woo —1
BujAr olpny Aqqo
B 3
s L

i 296
i Buidoo.

S3LON

$1991y2Jy DISMOPUDMET]

186



ov SLAVYW EV®001:1L

NAMVEO ava Vs
00 0z0 d
A3 ONOMO 3MOMC

ONINNY1d JOd

SIVIS

NV1d JOOTd ANNOIO ONILSIXI
2 ONMYSQ

W NV1d 40014 ANNOYO
NO13 i

133315 HOIH 601

193r0dd

ANSNVYWAHS 3 IW

NI

S
WOOY ONIHONOL3Y U S o b

umosg Wb

NOUHDSIQ VD A

Z Joplio2

ysjuid Joojd duis sequuy

301440

Usjuld Jool4 jujed SlUM

olanits

Toiug soopg | 11Ut 10013 dais saquy,
dng seaur .Y NIONYHO
oM Agve

Usiul4 10013 31820000 m

L'1S ysiuig Joolg

21010000

ﬁ. 14 100]4 diS Joquil L
€ V3uv
ONILIVM

corridor 1

[— .
8 j10die0
anig Anen

usjutd Jooy
dpig JequilL

ustud 100l dulg JaquiL
A £\
ONILIVM

usiuid ool dpis sequilL ustulg s00l3 ding JequiL
vy I V3¥v
NOILd3O3d ONILIVM

Jool4

al810U0)
J8j0g

w w
wy € weg 4 wo

S310N
[

$inoliyoly Dismopubdman

187



SLAYW €V@00L:1

wvea ava vos
1co d ¥ZeT
oNOMC 3kl OmMQ N 1D3rOMd
ONINNVId 404

smvis

NV1d JOOT LS4 ONILSIX3
ERTEINT)

NOL3

13331S HOIH 601

103(04d

AASNVYWAHS d W

JECIS)

NOHlDSIO  AVQ ASH

S3LION

NV1d 40014 1SHid

usiul 100l
dus JequiL

ONINId
/NIHOLI

b
ysiulg Jooly
adieg 4210 16 SIB|

Siel3 o)
souenul

T
e

.

.
G
%&

usiuig J0ojy
1889 anjg AreN

Lvid 301440

usiuld Joojd Jedied Aei9 Wb

$10841Y2ly DsmopubmeT

usiuly 00}y jadied Aa10 Wb

188

ysjuid Joojd 19die) £a19 Wb



RIITRTION
O Lssais vom ot
SLAVW £v®00L:1
v avos
00 20 1d x4
Ad NOMC 3dALOMO ON 13 Cdd
ONINNV1d 304
SNLVLS
NYId 3001 ANOD3IS ONILSIXI
FULONMYEQ
NOL3
133315 HOIH 601
13108
AASNYINAHS 3 3N
ANEND
NMVEC NOULdIdIS3a VO AJY
i 00
S3LON

§i081IYoly DSMOPUDMET]

wy

we

NV1d J00714 ANOD3S

T

3

usiuld Jooj4

1edie) Aei9 Wb

Agd07

S

i s

ystuig 10013

sl Jooy,
Jodze:
£219 Wb

62:82 12 9252 42 €2 22

usjul J00j3 19dieg £219 1411 usiul4 100]3
jedieg Aeig b uooyl Bulaly 1adie) Aai9 Wb
AL
1v1d R olpnis woolpag
g
B
H 1anis

ame®t

189



ov ov SLAYW £v@00

cyowD  Nwvaa ava oS
"00 €20 d yZee
Mg ONOMG 46 OMQ ON1OH0Nd

ONINNVYd 404

s0vis

NY1d 4003 ONILSIX3 NV1d 4004

UL ONIMYAC

<]

NOL3
13341S HOIH 601
AASNYWAHS o IW
did
- 00 3
%N@ m@

190

ot T

i<

wy wg wQ
SILON

$100}41Yy2JY DISMOPUDMET




WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

20 July 2016 ltem: 7

Application 16/01683/FULL

No.:

Location: 36 - 37 Thames Street Windsor SL4 1PR

Proposal: Change of use of first and second floors from B1/D1 to C3 to provide 4 x 1 bed
apartments

Applicant: Mr Bryant - Chesterton Holdings

Agent: Mr Ben Willcox - WaM Architecture

Parish/Ward: Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628 685739 or at
claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

3.1

3.2

SUMMARY

The application proposes the conversion of first and second floors from office (Bl)/non-
residential institution (D1) into residential use (4x1 bedroom flats). The principle of conversion of
these floors (which are vacant) to residential use is considered to be acceptable, and in
compliance with National and Local Plan Policy.

No external alterations to the building are proposed, and the scheme is considered to preserve
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. Parking is not proposed for the scheme,
however, given this is a sustainable town centre location, parking is not required.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Borough Planning Manager:

1. | To grant planning permission with the conditions listed in section 9 of this report, subject
to a legal agreement to restrict occupiers applying for parking permits is completed by the

31 August 2016.

2. | Torefuse planning permission if a legal agreement restricting parking permits being
issued is not completed by 31st August 2016.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Borough Planning Manager delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS
The site relates to the first and second floors of number 36-37 Thames Street. The ground floor
of the building is used as a restaurant, and does not form part of this application. The building is

situated within Windsor Town Centre, within the designated Specialist Shopping Area.

The building is opposite to the Castle and sits within the Windsor Town Centre Conservation

Area.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Ref. Description Decision and Date
16/01017/CLAS | Change of use of offices to 4 flats Withdrawn on 18" May
SO 2016.
08/00040/CLU | Certificate of Lawfulness to determine whether the | Permitted on 12"

use of the first and second floor as a Beauty February 2008.

191




4.1

4.2

51

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

| Training Centre (D1) and offices (B1) is lawful |

The application seeks planning permission for the change of use of the first and second floors at
numbers 36-37 Thames Street from B1/D1 use to provide 4 x 1 bedroom apartments.

The application proposes no external alterations to the building. Access to the flats would be
gained from a ground floor entrance from Thames Street (as per the existing situation). No
parking is provided as part of the scheme, and refuse and recycling would be provided within
each apartment.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Section 23- Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Section 129- Heritage Assets

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Highways and Conservation Setting of the
settlement area Parking Area Thames
DG1, H6 P4, T5 CA2 N2

Other Local Strategies or Publications

° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

i Principle of conversion;

ii Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area;
iii Parking and highways;

iV Impact on residential amenity

Principle of conversion

Policy H6 of the Local Plan encourages the conversion to residential accommodation of office
space and vacant upper floors in shopping areas (this site is in a specialist shopping area
according to the proposals map). The NPPF also encourages a mix of uses within town centres.
As such, the principle of the conversion of these upper floors to residential use is considered to
be acceptable in principle.

Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area

No external alterations to the building are proposed. The Desigh and Access Statement explains
that the conversion will allow the front of the building to be renovated, which will improve the
appearance of the building. The proposal is considered to preserve the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area. The Council has paid special attention to the desirability
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area, as required
under Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.4

6.5

Parking and highways

Parking is not provided as part of the scheme, however, given that this is a sustainable town
centre location, parking is not required. A legal agreement is necessary to remove rights of

future occupiers to apply for parking permit, and the applicant has indicated they are willing to
enter into this agreement.

Impact on residential amenity

The scheme does not propose any new windows in the elevations. The residential use of the
floors is not considered to have an unacceptable impact upon any nearby residential amenity.
This is a town centre location where a higher degree of overlooking may be expected

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

6 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a site notice advertising the application at the site on 10" June 2016.
An advert was placed in the Maidenhead and Windsor Advertiser on the 9™ June 2016.

No comments have been received to date.

Other Consultees

Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highways No objection. 6.4
Environment | No objection. Noted.
al Protection

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A - Site location plan
o Appendix B — Elevations (Existing/Proposed)
e Appendix C — Proposed Floor plans

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully resolved.

CONDITIONS IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

193




Appendix A-Site location

194



Appendix B- Elevations Proposed/Existing

3}
o

P s A _

FRONT ELEVATION
(South facing)

SIDE ELEVATION
(West facing)

195




MNo. 28

SIDE ELEVATION
(East facing)

REAR ELEVATION
(North facing)

196



Appendix C- Floor plans

Existing

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SECOND FLOOR PLAN

197



Proposed

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR

CROUND FLOCR PLAN

198



WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

20 July 2016 ltem: 8

Application 16/01788/FULL

No.:

Location: Alexandra Gardens Barry Avenue Windsor SL4 5JA

Proposal: Construction of ice rink and attractions from November to January for a period of 3
years

Applicant: Mr Coleman - Citiesonice Windsor

Agent: Not Applicable

Parish/Ward: Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628 685739 or at
claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

11 The application seeks planning permission for the temporary use of Alexandra Gardens to host
visitor/tourist attractions for the Christmas periods of 2016/17, 2017/18, and 2018/19. The
attractions include an ice rink and other rides for children primarily.

1.2 The use of the park for this temporary period only, is considered to have limited impact on the
setting of the Conservation Area (which is adjacent to the application site). In addition, as it will
be in place for a temporary period only, it is not considered to result in the loss of an important
open space.

1.3 The proposal is acceptable on transport grounds. The site is situated in Flood Zone 2 (medium
risk flooding), however, as this is a temporary use and does not involve permanent construction,
the number of people or properties being subject to flood risk is considered to be negligible.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 9 of this report.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Borough Planning Manager delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 Alexandra Gardens is a rectangular area of open space designated as Important Urban Open
Land in the Local Plan, but is not designated as a registered Historic Park or Garden. The
gardens run in an east to west direction between Goswell Road to the east and Barry Avenue
and the railway line to the west. The gardens provide an area of open space between Barry
Avenue and the River Thames to the north and the coach park/car park to the south. Barry
Avenue is lined with mature trees and provides short stay on-street car parking. The gardens
were likely to have been laid out in the late nineteenth century and comprise large lawned areas
which are intersected with a number of paved walkways.

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 The application proposes the temporary use Alexandra Gardens for visitors/tourism attractions,

including a marquee, an ice skating rink, and other rides/attractions for children primarily, for part
of November through to early January in the years 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19.

199



4.2

The applicant has explained that planning permission is being sought for a 3 year period so that
an investment into lighting the area can be made. This would involve the use of natural white
lighting as opposed to multi-colour lighting, which will make the area look more aesthetically

leasing.

Ref.

Description

Decision and Date

15/01800/FULL

Erection of an Ice Rink with family funfair attractions
for a temporary period for use by public over
Christmas period from November 2015 until January
2016

Permitted on the 21°%
August 2015.

14/04074/FULL

Erection of a transportable amusement ride (sky
swing) with kiosk/ catering area for a temporary
period.

Refused 5" March
2015

15/00092/FULL

Bandstand with surrounding paving

Permitted on the 3™
March 2015

14/02390/FULL

Erection of an Ice Rink with family funfair attractions
for a temporary period to be constructed from the 13th
November 2014 in use between the 26th November
2014 through to 7th January 2015 and dismantled
from site by 14th January 2015

Approved on the 10"
October 2014.

12/00875/FULL

Erection of an observation/ferris wheel with
associated equipment and facilities for a temporary
period to be constructed from the 11 May 2012 in use
between the 18th May 2012 through to 15th July 2012
and dismantled and removed from site by 20th July
2012

Approved on the
25.05.12

11/00128/FULL

Erection of an observation/ferris wheel with
associated equipment and facilities for a temporary
period to be constructed from the 4th April 2011 in
use between the 9th April 2011 to 30th October 2011
and dismantled and removed from site by 4th
November 2011.

Approved 17.03.2011

10/00009/FULL

Erection of an observation/ferris wheel with
associated equipment and facilities for a temporary
period to be constructed from the 15th March 2010 in
use between the 27th March 2010 to 31st October
2010 and dismantled and removed from site by 6th
November 2010.

Approved 18.02.2010

08/03102/FULL

Erection of an observation/ferris wheel with
associated equipment and facilities for a temporary
period from 2nd April 2009 to 1st November 2009 and
dismantled and removed from site by 8th November
2009

Approved 23.02.2009

08/00279/TEMP

Erection of a 52m high observation/ferris wheel with
associated equipment and facilities for a temporary
period 17th June to 7th November 2008.

Approved 11.06.2008

07/02201/VAR

Variation of condition 1 of approval 07/00074 to allow
wheel until 9 November 2007

Approved 08.10.2007

07/00074/TEMP

Erection of a 55 metre high observation/ferris wheel
with associated equipment and facilities for a
temporary period of 16 weeks

Approved 01.03.2007

06/00705/TEMP

Erection of a 55 metre high observation/ferris wheel
with associated equipment and faciliies for a
temporary period of 12 weeks.

Approved 26.05.2006

200




5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections:

Paragraph 129- Development affecting the setting of a Heritage Assets

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within settlement Flood Risk | Conservation | Highways/Parking Visitor

area Area issues facilities
Local | DG1, NAP3, R1, F1 CA2 T™M4
Plan N2 T5, P4

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
i The impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area;

i Impact on Important Urban Open Space;
i The impact on the living conditions of occupiers of nearby residents;

i The impact on the area liable to flood;
iv Highway safety, including car parking.

The impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area

Alexandra Gardens is identified as important urban open land and is situated adjacent to the
Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area. The use of Alexandra Gardens for visitors/tourism
attractions, including, an ice skating rink, and other rides/attractions would have some limited
impact on the setting of the Conservation Area, however, this impact is for a temporary period
only, and so there is no concern in respect of any permanent harm to the setting of the
Conservation Area. It is recommended that the height of the attractions (condition 3) does not
exceed 6 metres in height, so the rides do not detract from the setting of Windsor Castle.

Impact on Important Urban Open Space

Policy R1 of the Local Plan seeks to protect important urban open land, however, as the use of
the park for this attraction is for a temporary period only and the land would be returned to its
original state when the structures are removed, there is not considered to be conflict with this
Policy. The impact on the urban open space, has to be taken into account with the consideration
of other material considerations. The loss of this space would only take place for a period of up to
10 weeks of the year. In addition, the scheme is likely to provide spin off benefits to the local
economy and town centre (see section 6.3). Whilst this scheme would not be acceptable on a
permanent basis (i.e. throughout the year), on balance the scheme on a temporary basis is
considered to be acceptable.

Tourism

201



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.4 Policy TM4 of the Local Plan encourages purpose built facilities in the town centre subject to such
facilities being sympathetic to the other objectives in the plan. Whilst Alexandra Gardens is
outside of the town centre, given its close proximity, there could be some benefits to the town
centre. The applicant has not submitted a strong case for the tourism benefits to Windsor town
centre. The Windsor, Eton, Ascot Town Centre Partnership has provided the following information
in respect of the benefits, which include:

1. Windsor on Ice employee up to 24 staff. 14 of whom are from Windsor and the remaining
from Slough and other boroughs.

2. Unique Christmas offer which is not offered by other neighbouring town centres.

3. Opportunity for local community groups, schools and charities to benefit from free access
to the rink as part of the gala night and similar events.

4. Increased dwell time and footfall into the town centre (attendance of over 14000 people).

5. Discount for advantage card holders and shopper in the town centre.

6. Income for Visitor Information team via ticket sales.

The impact on the living conditions of occupiers of nearby residents

6.5 There are no immediate residential properties neighbouring Alexandra Gardens that would be
significantly adversely impacted by the development.

The impact on the area liable to flood

6.6 Alexandra Gardens is situated in flood zone 2 (medium risk flooding). Given that this application
is for a less vulnerable use (in accordance with National Planning Policy), is for a temporary
period, and does not entail any permanent construction, the number of people or properties
being subject to flood risk is considered to be negligible, and the application is considered to be
in compliance with Policy F1 of the Local Plan. The Flood Risk Statement submitted outlines
these points.

Highway safety, including car parking

6.7 It is not considered that the scheme would result in significant additional traffic which would place
an unacceptable pressure on parking.

Other considerations

6.8 Concern has been raised over the condition of the grass in the Gardens when these attractions
are dismantled. On the previous application for this site, it was advised that it was not ideal to lay
the grass in the winter, and that it is normally during March that land will be re-instated to its
former condition; the Parks team previously advised that it is an aim to get the gardens back to
their original condition in time for the Easter break.

6.9 Concern has been raised over the impact of the scheme on the bandstand, which objectors say
should be used in the festive period. This is not a planning consideration, however, if the Council
leases the land to the operator, it is up to the operator as to how the bandstand is used, although
the applicant has advised that the rides would be laid out in order for the bandstand to be
utilised.

6.10 It is stated that the planning permission should not be granted for a 3 year period. It is not
considered that there is a planning reason not to allow a planning permission for a 3 year period.

6.11 Although there is likely to be noise from users of the ice rink and rides, it is not considered that

this would be so much noise to warrant refusal. The park is a recreational space, and so a certain
level of noise would be expected.

202



6.12

6.13

Concern is raised over the advertisements for the event being put up around the town. This is not

however, relevant to the consideration of this planning application.

Planning Balance

Given that the scheme is located on an important urban open space, the proposed use would not
be supported on a permanent basis (i.e. throughout the year). However, there are other material
considerations set out in this report which would indicate that the use of the gardens for up to 10
weeks (to coincide with the festive period) , including the spin-off benefits to the local economy
and to the town centre which weigh in favour of the development. In addition, if the rides are kept
at a lower height as proposed, this will not interfere with views of Windsor Castle.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

14 occupiers were notified directly of the application.
The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 20™ June 2016.

4 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | It would seem that these facilities, draw visitors away from the town 6.4
centre.
2. | The gardens are severely damaged, often until as late as August, 6.8
which gives it little time to recover for the following year.
3. | Consideration should be given to moving the ice rink to Windsor Noted.
Leisure Centre.
4. | The bandstand should be made available to whoever wants to use it, 6.9
and should not be incorporated into the site.
The ‘attractions’ take up at least as much space as the ice rink. Noted.
A 3 year period for this is totally unacceptable- the damage caused 6.10
every year us unsustainable.
The gardens were left by the National Trust for RBWM to look after. Noted.
The land is supposed to be open, and provide unspoilt views of the 6.2
Castle.
9 | These are historic gardens. 3.1
10 | The gardens are unusable for 4 months of the year. Noted.
11 | Adverse impacts from noise and lights- it spoils the tranquillity of 6.11
gardens.
12 | Tatty notices are posted in the town for advertising. 6.12
13 | Shameless of the Council to use this site, when there is a traditional Noted.
pitch for funfairs on the Brocas over the bridge.
14 | Having spent considerable time and money on the bandstand, one Noted.
would think that the Council’s intention is to restore the gardens to its
former glory. There is no place for this 21° century funfair which
obstructs the gardens.
15 | Many Windsorians appreciate the peace and tranquillity of the gardens. | Noted.
16 | We should not tie ourselves to a 3 year planning permission. 6.10

203




9.

17 | The bandstand will not be able to be used, when this is in operation. 6.9

18 | Will the operator include the bandstand, or not? 6.9

19 | The Developer claims that “people made a day of visiting Windsor” and | Noted.
yet provides no evidence to back up this claim. Officers should be
careful of accepting such claims without appropriate evidence.

20 | During the 14/15 season the Developer illegally flyposted across the 6.12
wider area which caused both an eyesore and a cost to the council in
removing such illegally placed posters. It now transpires that last
season was not so successful and the Developer wishes to increase
his promotional activities.

21 | When the Panel refused the Sky ride they stated that they wanted to Noted.
maintain and enhance the character of Alexandra Gardens. This does
the very opposite.

22 | Fewer parking spaces available for those visiting the town. 6.7

23 | Conservation Area deserves more respect than this. 6.3

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout

o Appendix B — Indicative layout plan

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully resolved.

CONDITIONS IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development shall not be commenced until the Monday of the second full week of
November of 2016, 2017 and 2018 and the structures and equipment shall be dismantled and
removed from site by the Friday of the second full week of January for 2017, 2018 and 2019.
The land shall be restored to its former condition by the 30th April in each calendar year.
Reason: The proposal does not constitute a form of development that the Local Planning
Authority would normally permit. However, in view of the particular circumstances of this
application temporary planning permission is granted. Relevant saved policies - Local Plan CA2,
DG1 and F1.

This temporary use of the land hereby permitted shall only operate between the hours of 10.00
hours and 21.00 hours.

Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residents. Relevant saved policies - Local Plan
NAP3.

The height of the structures/ equipment permitted under this temporary use shall not exceed 6
metres in height (measured from ground level).

Reason: In order to safeguard the views of Windsor castle, and views into and out of the
Conservation Area. Policy CA2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

204



Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

205



Appendix A- Site Location

206



Appendix B- Indicative site layout

Cafe Windsor On Ice
Layout 2016/17

Coach Car Park

Aftractions 2 and 3
Race-g-rama & Jets
Attraction 1
Dodgems
Attraction 4 Coffee
— Play pit concession
Sun Dial
and
—>
En'::alnce fr;m 1nand out Oak
amroa
«— Tree
= m
§28
=
§5
o of
12m x 30m skate Hire =
. Private
Covered Ice Rink o
on and off
-
Santa’s Grotto and
9m x 15m 9m x 6m Existing Private

Outside Ice Rink Viewing Bandstand
Platform Area

Function room

Barry Avenue

207



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Urban Panel

20th July 2016

INDEX
APP = Approval
CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use
DD = Defer and Delegate
DLA = Defer Legal Agreement
PERM = Permit
PNR = Prior Approval Not Required
REF = Refusal
WA = Would Have Approved
WR = Would Have Refused
Item No. 1 Application No. 15/02248/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. 13
Location: Thames Court 1 Victoria Street Windsor SL4 1YB
Proposal: Construction of 5 storey building with associated car parking (including provision for public use at specific
times), access and landscaping works following demolition of existing office building.
Applicant:  BMW (UK) Trustees Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 26 November 2015
Limited
Item No. 2 Application No. 15/03135/FULL Recommendation DD Page No. 51
Location: Datchet Mead Cottage 145A Slough Road Datchet Slough SL3 9AE
Proposal: Construction of 9 dwellings; 2 x two beds, 2 x three beds and 5 x four beds following demolition of existing
dwelling. Associated landscaping and parking
Applicant:  Howarth Homes Plc Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 12 April 2016
Item No. 3 Application No. 15/03465/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. 81
Location: Street Record Shirley Avenue Windsor SL4 5LH
Proposal: Erection of residential development of 93 dwellings including 2 x 2 bed, 4 x 3 bed houses, 25 x 1 bed, 57 x 2
bed and 5 x 3 bed flats, refuse and cycle stores, with new road and pavements/cycleways with parking (surface
and underground) and amenity space, hard and soft landscaping, ancillary works following demolition of all
existing commercial buildings.
Applicant:  Medina Property Member Call-in: Clir Collins Expiry Date: 7 May 2016
Limited

AGLIST

209



Item No. 4 Application No. 16/01031/FULL Recommendation DD Page No. 117

Location: Windsor Girls School Imperial Road Windsor SL4 3RT

Proposal: Single storey infill extension, two storey front extension, demolition and relocation of bin store and cycle
shelter, amendments to fenestration, cladding of reception block, reconfiguration of parking and associated
landscaping

Applicant:  Miss Derczynska Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 5 July 2016

Item No. 5 Application No. 16/01033/FULL Recommendation DD Page No. 132

Location: The Windsor Boys School Maidenhead Road Windsor SL4 5EH

Proposal: Sheltered enclosure to 6th Form fire escape, extension to main visitor entrance and single storey infill
extension to dining hall. Single storey extension to changing rooms and alterations to first floor fenestration of
proposed staff room. New security fence with gate at staff entrance with associated minor landscaping works.

Applicant:  Miss Derczynska Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 8 July 2016

Item No. 6 Application No. 16/01097/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 157
Location: 109 High Street Eton Windsor SL4 6AN

Proposal: Single storey rear and two storey side extensions with amendments to fenestration, following the removal of
the existing non-original extensions. Part change of use to class C3 (residential)

Applicant:  Mr Shymansky Member Call-in:  Clir Alexander Expiry Date: 7 June 2016
Item No. 6 Application No. 16/01098/LBC Recommendation PERM Page No. 157
Location: 109 High Street Eton Windsor SL4 6AN

Proposal: Single storey rear and two storey side extensions with amendments to fenestration, following the removal of
the existing non-original extensions. Part change of use to class C3 (residential)

Applicant:  Mr Shymansky Member Call-in:  Clir Alexander Expiry Date: 7 June 2016

Item No. 7 Application No. 16/01683/FULL Recommendation DLA Page No. 193

Location: 36 - 37 Thames Street Windsor SL4 1PR

Proposal: Change of use of first and second floors from B1/D1 to C3 to provide 4 x 1 bed apartments

Applicant:  Mr Bryant - Chesterton Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 13 July 2016
Holdings

Item No. 8 Application No. 16/01788/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 201

Location: Alexandra Gardens Barry Avenue Windsor SL4 5JA

Proposal: Construction of ice rink and attractions from November to January for a period of 3 years

Applicant:  Mr Coleman - Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 22 July 2016

Citiesonice Windsor

Appeals Decision Report Page no. 211

210

AGLIST



RoYAL BOROUGH oF WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD
PANEL UPDATE

Windsor Urban Panel

Application 15/02248/FULL

No.:

Location: Thames Court
1 Victoria Street
Windsor
SL41YB

Proposal: Construction of 5 storey building with associated car parking (including provision for
public use at specific times), access and landscaping works following demolition of
existing office buiiding.

Applicant: BMW (UK) Trustees Limited

Agent: Mr Philip Marsden - Savills (UK} Limited

Parish/Ward: Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628 685739 or at
claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

1.1

1.2

13

21

2.2

SUMMARY

There were errors in the main report. This update report provides clarification over the description
of the development, what the applicant is proposing in respect of the public use of the car park,
and the acceptability of the development in respect of parking provision and travel plan targets
proposed.

The applicant has provided s'amples of materials that could be used on the proposed building.
Comments from the Council’s Parking Officer, and Thames Valley Police is respect of the

proposed public use of the car park have been received. The applicant has provided comments in
respect of security for the car park.

There is no change to the recommendation in the main report.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The applicant has advised that they could sign a legal agreement for the use of the car park for the
public, to include the Heads of Terms set out in paragraph 6.42 of the main report, and the
additional Heads of Term referred to at paragraph 2.4 of this update report, and that they could
sign this agreement before the grant of a planning permission.

The applicant has provided samples of materials that could be used on the proposed building,
these are set out below:

The brick will be:

- Terca- Anglesey Weathered Buff
- |bstock- Tonbridge Handmade Heather Grey

The cladding for the top floor of the proposed building will be metal; the following options for
materials have been put forward.

Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

211



- Bronze Satin Stainless

- Granex M1A Bronze Stainless
- Anthra- Zinc by VMZINC

~  Quartz- Zinc Plus by VMZINC

e

2.3

The applicant is proposing that in order to provide further protection to the privacy of the
residential unit at Lancaster House, the three windows on the Second Floor in closest proximity to
the balcony would be fitted with opaqgue glazing, so that there would be no direct overlooking to
Lancaster House. Officers are of the view that the development would still result in unacceptable
overlooking to the balcony of Lancaster House, as only parts of the glazing are proposed to be
opaque, and owing to the proximity of the proposed building and amount of glazing (that would not
be opaque), there would still be overlooking to the balcony of Lancaster House.

2.4 An additional Head of Term is proposed in response to the comments from Thames Valley Police,
the applicant is suggesting that details under the Head of Term for the Car Parking Management
Plan would include details of CCTV to provide full coverage of the car park and vehicular entrance
point.

2.5 There were errors in the main report, this update report corrects the points made in the main
report.

Reference in main report Officer comments

Paragraph 1.3- Proposed public use of | This paragraph is incorrect. Please refer to paragraph

car park 6.42 of the main report. The applicant has indicated
their willingness to enter into a legal agreement to
secure the public use of the car park.

Paragraph 4.4- Reference 1o proposed | Reference should be made to paragraph 6.42 of the

public use of car park main report.

6.37 and 6.38- Travel Plan targets These paragraphs are incorrect. it was advised in the
update report at the May 2016 Panel meeting that the
revised Travel Plan targets were considered to be
acceptable.

Pages 22 and 23 and consultee table- : Highways are not raising an objection- this was

Reference to Highways raising an explained in the update report at the previous Pane!

objection. meeting.

Paragraph 6.39 and 6.40 (regarding the | Reference should be made instead fo paragraph 6.42

car park) are not up fo date.

Comments from Consuliees

2.6

Change to
Comment Officer response recommen
dation?
Council's Parking Officer: Noted. No

We would have fo add the car park to the
councils off street parking places order and then
we could enforce.

Any additional resident or public parking in the
evening or at weekends would be greatly
received.

Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

212



Thames Valley Police Raise concerns over the
proposed public use of the car park in respect of
crime prevention terms. The main points for
concern are summarised below:

The concerns are noted.
However, if the application was
being recommended for approval,
it is considered that measures

could be secured to ensure

No

| ~Victoria Road car park is open 1o the general
public 24/7 and suffers historic and existing
issues of vagrancy, ASB, and criminal activity.

-Public accessible rear parking courts are
considered problematic in terms of crime
prevention and community cohesion. They
make rear boundaries, building and vehicles
vuinerable to criminal activity as they lack
natural surveillance, provide gathering
opportunities and often attract anti social
behaviour (ASB).

-Due to the design and layout this rear court
facility appears to lack natura! surveillance
outside of normal office hours. Secluded
unrestricted areas such as this are likely to
provide places where individuals can gather
unobserved.

-If the parking facility is opened up for public use,
there are concerns over the above mentioned
lack of surveillance and access control will
leave the neighbouring Boundary of the
Windsor Arm Barracks vulnerable.

surveillance of the car parking
area, such as lighting and CCTV.
Also, the flats of Vitoria Court
would overlook this area,
providing a degree of natural
surveillance.

Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

213

(2



Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

214

& ©



ROYAL BOROUGH oF WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD
PANEL UPDATE

Windsor Urban Panel

Application 15/03135/FULL
No.:
Location: Datchet Mead Cottage
145A Slough Road
Daichet
Slough
SL3 9AE
Proposal: Construction of 9 dwellings; 2 x two beds, 2 x three beds and 5 x four beds following
demolition of existing dwelling. Associated landscaping and parking
Applicant: Howarth Homes Plc
Agent: Mr Sam Tiffin - Progress Planning
Parish/Ward:  Datchet Parish
If you have a question about this report, please contact: Alistair De Joux on 01628 685729 or at
alistair.dejoux@rbwm.gov.uk N
1. SUMMARY
1.1 There is evidence of bats at the site, as such this will require mitigation measures to be secured
and implemented — such matters can be addressed through the use of a condition. The S106
Agreement is at an advanced stage and will need to be signed by relevant parties by 1% August
2016.
There is no change to the recommendation in the main report.
2, ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
2.1 The Bat Surveys have been reviewed by the Council's Ecologist. These show that the Soprano
Pipistrelle bat has a roost in the existing building on the site. The applicant’s ecologist has put
forward measures to mitigate the impact on the bats. As such, a condition is recommended to
secure the full details of the mitigation measures (see condition 4 of the main report).
2.2

The S106 Agreement is at an advanced stage but has not been signed. The Agreement will
secure;

- the affordable housing;
- the landscaping on the boundary of the site; and,
- the previous obligations secured under the planning permission 10/02486/FULL.

Development Contro! Panel Windsor Urban

215



Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

@) 216



RoyaL BOoROUGH OF WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD
PANEL UPDATE

Windsor Urban Panel

Application 16/03465/FULL

No.:

Location: Street Record
Shirley Avenue
Windsor
SL4 5LH

Proposal: Erection of residential development of 93 dwellings including 2 x 2 bed, 4 x 3 bed
houses, 25 x 1 bed, 57 x 2 bed and 5 x 3 bed flats, refuse and cycle stores, with new
road and pavements/cycleways with parking (surface and underground) and amenity
space, hard and soft landscaping, ancillary works following demolition of all existing
commercial buildings.

Applicant: Medina Property Limited

Agent: Mr M Carter- Carter Planning L td

Parish/Ward:  Clewer North Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Alistair De Joux on 01628 685729 or at

alistair.dejoux@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 Since writing the main report, a further reason for refusal is recommended in respect of the
development not passing the ‘Exceptions Test in relation to national planning policy in relation to
flooding. In addition, clarification is provided on the status of the draft Borough Local Plan as a
material consideration in the determination of this application.

The recommendation in the main report is changed to include an additional reason for

refusal relating to the development not passing the ‘Exceptions Test’, as set out in section
3 of this update report.

2. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

21 In order for the development to provide for sustainability benefits to the community to pass the
exceptions test relating to national policy in respect of flooding, paragraph 6.27 of the main report
refers to a safe escape being provided in this development which could also be used for
neighbouring properties to the north, both at the Vale House site and for residents at Rutherford
Close and other properties. However, it has not been demonstrated how this safe escape would
link to the neighbouring sites and the mechanism to secure this so that it can be used by existing

and future residents in this part of Dedworth. As such, it is considered that the exceptions test is
not passed.

2.2 In the main report in relation to the principle of the development, paragraph 6.6 states that “...it is
not considered that any weight can be given to the draft Borough Local Plan.” The emerging Local
Plan has been posted on the Council's website in advance of formal consultation and proposes to
allocate this site for housing instead of employment.

2.3 The draft Borough Local Plan is at an early stage and is subject to formal consultation, so at this
stage it can in fact be given limited weight, rather than no weight — as was specified in the main
Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

T

C,D 217 C



report — as a material consideration in the determination of this planning application. However,
given the limited weight to the draft Borough Local Plan as a materiat consideration, this is not
sufficient to outweigh the conflict with policies of the current, adopted Local Plan.

Additional reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the scheme will result in wider sustainability benefits
to the community that outweigh flood risk and as such the development cannot pass the

Exceptions Test. The proposal is contrary to paragraph 102 of the National Planning Policy
Framework,

Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

218



RoYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD
PANEL UPDATE

Windsor Urban Panel

Application 16/01031/FULL
No.:
L.ocation: Windsor Girls School
imperial Read
Windsor
SL4 3RT
Proposal; Single storey infill extension, two storey front extension, demolition and relocation of
hin store and cycle shelter, amendments to fenestration, cladding of reception block,
reconfiguration of parking and associated landscaping
Appticant; Miss Derczynska
Agent: Mr Simon McNabb - McBains Cooper
Parish/Ward:  Clewer East Ward
if you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at
adam.jackson@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

Additional drainage information has been submitted. The Lead L.ocal Flood Authority comments
that the proposals to manage surface water drainage are not acceptable. For clarification the site is
not located within the flood zone, and as such there is no requirement for the Environment Agency
to be consulted or for a Flood Risk Assessment to be submitted. The recommendation has
therefore been amended to reflect this.

Itis recommended the Panel authorises the Borough Planning Manager:

1. | To grant planning permission on the submission of the information requested by the Lead
l.ocal Ficod Authority with the conditions listed in section 9 of the main report and suitably
worded conditions to ensure the development is undertaken in accordance with drainage

information.

2. | Torefuse blanning permission if the information requested by the Lead l.ocal Fiood
Authority does not provide adequate drainage measures by the 24th August 2016.

2. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

2.4 The amended drainage information is not acceptable. Additional information is required regarding;
peak runoff rates and volumes and drainage systems. !t is considered that an acceptable solution
to these matters is possible, and as such it is recommended that the application is deferred to
allow the Borough Planning Manager to approve the application foliowing the submission of a
suitable drainage strategy.

Development Control Pane! Windsor Urban

219



Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

220

o

LR



RoyvaL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD
PANEL UPDATE

Windsor Urban Panel

Application 16/01033/FULL

No.:

Location: The Windsor Boys School
Maidenhead Road
Windsor
SL4 5EH

Proposal: Sheltered enclosure to 6th Form fire escape, extension to main visitor entrance and
single storey infill extension to dining hall. Single storey extension to changing rooms
and alterations to first floor fenestration of proposed staff room. New security fence
with gate at staff entrance with associated minor landscaping works.

Applicant: Miss Derczynska

Agent: Mr Simon McNabb

ParishiWard:  Castle Without Ward

if you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at

adam jackson@rbwm,gov,uk

1. SUMMARY

A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been submitted. This has been assessed in section 2 below.
For clarification whilst the site is located within flood zone 3 there is no requirement to consult the
Environment Agency due to the proposed extensions being under 250sgm. Additional surface
water drainage information has also now been submitted and this has found to be acceptable.

it is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 9 of the main report with the additional conditions in section 3 below.

2. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

2.1 A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted which confirms that it is not possible to provide a
safe means of escape to an area wholly outside of the floodplain. However, in the River Thames
catchment sufficient warning times can be given to alert the school of a floed. As such a safe
means of escape is not considered necessary.

2.2  As the proposed developments are extensions to the existing school buildings it is not possible to
raise the floor levels above the predicted flood levels in order to allow water to flow under the
buildings and so as not to reduce floodplain capacity.

2.3 Instead a void in the school grounds is proposed which would fill up with water during a flood. This
would be achieved by excavating a section of the school field to the west of the site. However,
there are a number of trees along this boundary which form important screening and impact
positively on the character of the area. lt is not clear how the excavation would impact on these
frees and there are concerns that they could be damaged. The proposed flood compensation is not
therefore considered acceptable. Due to the constrained nature of the site it is considered unlikely
there are any alternative locations for this flood compensation. As such excavation within the
school grounds would not be feasible. The lack of flood compensation will affect the free flow of
water and reduce the floodplain capacity in the event of a flood.

2.4 Paragraph 72 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that great importance is attached

Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

221

(W



to the ensuring a sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and
new communities and Local Planning Authorities should give great weight to the need to create,
expand or aiter schools. There is fast-growing demand for pupil places across all ages locally and
there are no other upper schools for boys within Windsor. The need to provide additional space for
=-pupils-at-the Windsor.Boys School.is therefore high and.as such it is.considered that the benefits . . ...

that the extensions would provide the school and the local community would outweigh the flood
risk.

2.3 Additional drainage information has been submitted and has been found to be acceptable on
surface water drainage grounds. The Lead Local Flood Authority has commented that they no

longer object to the application subject to conditions. These suggested conditions are in section 3
of this report.

3. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

3.1 Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall take place until full details of the
tnvert leveis of the existing surface water system and the management and maintenance plan
relating to the surface water drainage system have been  submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved surface water drainage system shall be

implemented in accordance with the approved detailed design prior to the use of the building
commencing, and maintained thereatfter.

Development Controf Panel Windsor Urban

222

(D ()



RoyYAaL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR AND MAIDENHEAD

PANEL UPDATE

Windsor Urban Panel

Application 16/01788/FULL
No.:
Location: Alexandra Gardens
Barry Avenue
Windsor
SL4 5JA
Proposal: Construction of ice rink and attractions from November to January for a period of 3
years
Applicant: Mr Coleman - Citiesonice Windsor
Agent: Not Applicable
Parish/Ward: Castle Without Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628 685739 or at
claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

1.1

2.1

SUMMARY

Two letters of objection have been received; one letter from a resident and another from the
Windsor and Eton Society. Issues raised are either ones which cannot be taken info account in
the determination of the application, or are ones that have already been addressed in the main

report.

There is no change to the recommendation in the main report.

Comments from Interested Parties
1 additional comment received, summarised as;

Comment

Officer response

Change to
recommendation?

Plans are dated 2014 which means the applicant
has given no consideration to changes in the
park.

This is not a material

planning consideration.

No

Attractions are not associated with Christmas.

This is not a material

planning consideration.

No

Gardens will be out of use longer than the period
specified, owing to recovery time needed for the
park.

See 6.8 of main report

No

Granting a 3 year licence would tie the Council's
hands, and would not allow for more appealing
attractions that might come up.

See 6.10 of main
report.

No

Last year the ice rink and attractions did not
make profit.

This is not a material
ptanning consideration

No

Did not see any provision for additional toilets.

This is not a material
planning consideration

No

Would prevent use of the bandstand at
Christmas.

6.9 of main report.

No

Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

223



It is not for the applicant to offer use of the 6.9 of main report. No 1

bandstand, that is for the council tax payers

Altractions are noisy and ugly. 6.2 of main report No

The use of the gardens for this purpose means This is a temporary No

—ezz-glderly-people.can'tusethe.gardens.... ... ..._._.{impact.and-otherpars | ..o
of the open space are
available.

Impact on parking See 6.7 of main report. | No

Flood risk assessment is not credible See 6.6 of main report. | No

A hefty fine must be imposed for illegal See 6.12 of main No

advertising. report,

If upgrading the power supply is required, who Not relevant to the No

will pay for it? planning consideration.

Would be happy for council tax to cover This is not a material No

maintenance of the grass. planning consideration.
Comments from Consultees

2.2
. Change fo

Comment Officer response recommendation?
Windsor and Eton Sociely comment that: See main report, No

Alexandra Gardens is a significant visual,
recreation and landscape resource. The funfair
attractions are contrary to the objectives of the
Alexandra Gardens and Goswell Management
Pian.

Last year the gardens were unusable for the best
past of 6 moths.

Concerns that the attractions will render the
bandstand unusable.

If planning permission is granted, it should only
be for 1 year

Development Control Panel Windsor Urban

N . 224

14 " \@



WINDSOR URBAN

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:
Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Agenda ltem 5

The Royal Borough

Appeal Decision Report

4 June 2016 - 8 July 2016

Windsor

16/00018/REF 15/03677/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/16/

3142823

Mrs S Quinlan c/o Agent: Mr Duncan Duncan Gibson Duncan Gibson Consultancy 74
Parsonage Lane Windsor SL4 5EN

Planning Ref.:

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse
Construction of 1 no. detached dwelling

Land At 17 Rydings Windsor

Allowed Decision Date: 27 May 2016

The Inspector states that despite being wider, the proposed dwelling would be in keeping
with the height and appearance of the donor property and other dwellings in the same
terrace. Although its corner location and diagonal boundary line would compromise the
symmetry of the front garden area, there are similar design compromises elsewhere in the
locality resulting from space constraints. The Inspector concludes therefore that the
proposed development would not harm the character and appearance of the area and having
had regard to all other matters raised concludes that the appeal should succeed and
planning permission be granted.

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

16/00036/REF 15/01185/0UT Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/16/

3145536

Mr Nick Pellew - Castle Members Club Ltd c/o Agent: Mr John Andrews John Andrews
Associates The Lodge 66 St Leonards Road Windsor Berkshire SL4 3BY

Committee

Planning Ref.:

Officer Recommendation: Refuse

Outline application with some matters reserved (Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and
Scale) for the development for a health and leisure club with new access

Land At Excelsior Rowing Club Maidenhead Road Windsor

Dismissed Decision Date: 9 June 2016

The proposal would be inappropriate in, and lead to a significant reduction in the openness
of, the Green Belt. Furthermore it would be likely to materially harm the character and
appearance, and ecology, of the area. There are also unresolved flood risk issues. The
substantial harm that would be caused by the proposal in these regards would not be clearly
outweighed by the significant benefits identified, and therefore very special circumstances to
justify the proposal do not exist.

225

Maidenhead



Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:
Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

16/00043/REF Planning Ref.: 15/04028/TPO Pins Ref.:  APP/TPO/T035
5/5120

Karen Mitchell - First Port Property c/o Agent: Mr Tom Butterfield Dryad Tree Specialists
Ltd Oak Hill Wood Street Village Guildford Surrey GU3 3ET

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse
(T1) Oak (TPO 039 of 1996) - See description of works

Path Adjacent 25 Nightingale Walk Windsor

Allowed Decision Date: 28 June 2016

The appeal tree makes a significant contribution to the visual amenity of the locality, street
scene and the wider landscape and the proposed work would have no materially adverse
effect on the form of the character and appearance of the area. The work can be justified
on grounds of safety and amenity benefits.

226



The Royal Borough

Planning Appeals Received

4 June 2016 - 8 July 2016

Windsor &
Maidenhead

WINDSOR URBAN _

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Further information on planning appeals can be found at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ Should you wish
to make comments in connection with an appeal, please use the Plns reference nhumber and write to the relevant
address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/23 Hawk Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square,
Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN or email teamel@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Room 3/10A Kite Wing Temple Quay House 2 The Square Bristol BS1
6PN or email teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Parish/Ward: Datchet Parish
Appeal Ref.: 16/60068/ENF Enforcement 15/50554/ENF PIns Ref.:  APP/T0355/C/16/
Ref.: 3150896

Date Received: 28 June 2016 Comments Due: 9 August 2016

Type: Enforcement Appeal Appeal Type: Inquiry

Description: Appeal against the enforcement notice: Without planning permission the material change of
use of the Land from residential to a mixed use of residential and business.

Location: 32 Montrose Way Datchet Slough SL3 9ND

Appellant: Maninder Singh Virdi c/o Agent: Mr Anil Kakaria 18 Fairfield Avenue Datchet Slough SL3
9INQ

227


https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/
mailto:teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf

	3 MINUTES
	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)
	15_02248_item_1.pdf
	15-02248.pdf
	15_03135_item_2.pdf
	15-03135.pdf
	15_03465_item_3.pdf
	15-03465 Appendix A.pdf
	15-03465 Appendix B.pdf
	15-03465 Appendix C.pdf
	16_01031_item_4.pdf
	16-01031.pdf
	16_01033_item_5.pdf
	16-01033.pdf
	16_01097_item_6.pdf
	16-01098 appx A-B..pdf
	16-01098 Appx C.pdf
	16_01683_item_7.pdf
	16-01683.pdf
	16_01788_item_8.pdf
	16-01788.pdf
	20July2016WUrbanIndex
	Panel_Update_Report

	5 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

